GOVERNING BOARD
MEETING AGENDA
McCormick & Schmick’s
2101 Rosecrans Ave
El Segundo, CA 90245

Thursday, December 14, 2017
10:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER
ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM/INTRODUCTIONS
PUBLIC COMMENTS
This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Board relative to matters of ICRMA
that are not on the agenda. Persons wishing to address items on the agenda will be permitted to do
so during the discussion of the item. No action may be taken on non-agenda items unless authorized
by law. Comments will be limited to five minutes per person, twenty minutes in total.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED
As a matter of procedure, the Board should approve the agenda.
CONSENT CALENDAR
If the Board would like to discuss any item listed, it may be pulled from the Consent Calendar.
A. Minutes of September 26, 2017 Governing Board Meeting .................................................... 4
B. Provide Settlement Authority for Final Resolution of Fullerton Property Claim ..................... 6
C. Refund Interest Payments Associated with Deferred Premium Repayment ........................... 94
D. Governing Board 2017/2018 Attendance Record .................................................................. 95
E. Check Registers for October and November 2017 ................................................................. 96
F. Financial Audit Update ......................................................................................................... 100
Action: Approve items A-C and direct staff to finalize; review and file items D-F.
OPEN SESSION
As to each agenda item, the Board may take action and/or receive informational reports as
appropriate.
A. Net Asset Target Review (Jim) ............................................................................................... 101
Action: Review the net asset position and determine that: 1) Neither assets nor dividends
are indicated in the workers’ compensation program; and 2) affirm the current assessment
plan in the liability program.
B. Consideration of a Software License with Intacct for Financial Services (Beth) ................... 113
Action: Provide authorization to license the Intacct Financial Software for an annual
recurring fee of $13,104.
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C. Consideration of the Artex Financial Services Contract (Luther/Beth) .................................. 115
Action: 1) Review the draft contract with Artex and provide feedback; 2) Authorize interim
general counsel and the executive director to complete negotiations with Artex; and 3)
direct the president execute the contract
D. Resolution 2017-01 for Banking and Resolution 2017-02 for LAIF (Beth)........................... 130
Action: Adopt Resolution 2017-01, rescinding Resolutions 2016-02 and 2012-01,
Establishing All Bank Accounts, Credit Card, and Investment Services; and 2) Adopt
Resolution 2017-02, rescinding Resolution 1-2016-02, Authorizing Signers for the
Investment of Monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund.
E. Cost Allocation Formula Review (Tyler/Mindy) .................................................................... 135
Action: Affirm cost allocation methodology to be implemented with the 2018-19 fiscal year,
increase member retained limits for several members in each program, eliminate the
$100,000 member retained limit in the liability program.
F. Provision of Actuarial Services (John) ................................................................................... 152
Action: Award professional actuarial services contracts to: 1) Milliman, for member cost
allocations and loss funding for new members in the amount of $6,500; 2) Bay Actuarial
Consultants, for all other required actuarial services in the amount of $76,090; 3) Authorize
the Executive Director to execute contracts with both vendors, and 4) Place the actuarial
services procurement in abeyance for one year.
G. Carl Warren Staffing and Contract Update (Beth).................................................................. 154
Action: Review and provide feedback
H. Consider revisions to the Property/APD Bylaws (Beth) ......................................................... 155
Action: Approve the addition of section 3.1.3 Settlement Authority to the Property/Auto
Physical Damage Bylaws and authorize the Executive Director to amend the contract with
AdminSure, the program’s TPA.
I. RPA Staffing Updates & Vendor Contact Information (Beth) ............................................... 156
Action: Review and file
J. Risk Control Service Update (Bob) ........................................................................................ 158
Action: Review and file
K. Workers’ Compensation Program Update (Beth) .................................................................. 170
Action: Discuss the concept of a single workers’ compensation program TPA and provide
direction
L. Revised Outline of a Performance Review Process (Sara/Beth) ............................................ 174
Action: Review and provide direction
M. Governing Document Project Update (Sara/Beth) ................................................................. 176
Action: Discuss the update and provide direction as appropriate
N. Member withdrawal notices of Alhambra, Downey, and Hermosa Beach (Beth) ................. 239
Action: Review and file
CLOSED SESSION
The Board will hold a closed session to discuss any or all claims listed on the agenda. Members are
reminded to destroy closed session materials after the meeting.
Discussion of Open Claims and Conference with Legal Counsel pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.95(a)
• Redondo Beach v. ICRMA
• Lopez v. Inglewood
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REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION
Report from Closed Session: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board must report
in open session any action taken in closed session.
PRESIDENT’S REPORT
CLOSING COMMENTS
This time is reserved to identify matters for future Governing Board business.
ADJOURNMENT
FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS
February 8, 2018 at 10:00 AM
April 12, 2018 at 10:00 AM
June 14, 2018 at 10:00 AM
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, please contact ICRMA at (949) 349-9879. Notification 48 hours before
the meeting will enable ICRMA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility (28 CFR
35.102.35.104 ADA Title II).
The Open Session portion of this meeting may be recorded. The recording may be destroyed after
30 days.
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MINUTES OF THE
SPECIAL GOVERNING BOARD MEETING
SEPTEMBER 26, 2017
A special meeting of the Governing Board was held via webinar on September 26, 2017.
MEMBERS PRESENT:
Alhambra
El Monte
El Segundo
Fullerton
Glendora
Hermosa Beach
Huntington Park
Inglewood
Monterey Park
San Fernando
South Gate

Velia Rodriguez
Angela McCray
Joe Lillio
Gretchen Beatty
Vicki Cross
Vanessa Godinez
Donna Schwartz
Sara Nazir
Tom Cody
Nick Kimball
Nellie Cobos

MEMBERS ABSENT:
Baldwin Park
Bell
Downey
Hawthorne
Lynwood
STAFF PRESENT:
RPA

Johnson Schachter & Lewis

Beth Lyons
Christina Floe
Ashley O’Brian
Tyler LaMantia
Cindy LaMantia
Luther Lewis

1. CALL TO ORDER
President Cody called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m.
2. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM/INTRODUCTIONS
Introductions took place and it was determined a quorum was present.
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.
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4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED
A motion was made by Vicky Cross, Glendora seconded by Joe Lillio, El Segundo and
unanimously carried via roll call to approve the agenda as posted.
5. CLOSED SESSION
The Board entered closed session at 9:13 a.m.
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--EXISTING LITIGATION
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)
• City of Redondo Beach v. ICRMA
6. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION
The Board convened in open session at 9:29 a.m. Luther Lewis reported the Board granted
authority to hire Byrne Conley of Gibbons & Conley to defend ICRMA in the City of
Redondo Beach v. ICRMA claim.
7. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.

Page 5 of 266

Governing Board
Subject:

December14, 2017

Provide settlement authority for final resolution of Fullerton Property Claim

Action for consideration:
Provide authority in the amount of $76,117.94 for final resolution of the Fullerton property claim
Background:
A tenant of a city-owned airport-hanger building vacated city property during the eviction process,
removing and/or taking many interior fixtures and vandalizing much of the building interior.
Adminsure, ICRMA’s property/auto physical damage third party claim administrator, confirmed
property coverage for the building, evaluated the circumstances of the loss, and is seeking authority
of $76,117.94 to resolve the claim.
Attachments:

TPA Report #2 Investigation/Authority Request

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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3380 Shelby Street
Ontario, CA 91764-5566
Telephone (909) 861-0816
Fax (909) 860-3995

Report # 2 Investigation / Authority Request
ICRMA First-Party Property
18201 Von Karman, Suite 200
Irvine, CA 92612

December 1, 2017

Attention: Ms. Beth Lyons, Senior Pool Administrator
Reference:

Principal: ICRMA First Party Property
Loss Date: September 1, 2017
Claim(s) Made: September 1, 2017
Claimant(s): City of Fullerton
Our File Number: 17-132311

FACTS IN BRIEF: Tenant of a City owned airport-hanger building, vacated City property
during the eviction process, removing and/or taking many interior fixtures and vandalizing
much of the building interior.
MEMBER/DEPARTMENT: City of Fullerton – Airport Operations – Primary Contact and
PMK is Brendan J. O’ Reilly, C.A.E., Airport Manager.
TENANT: Actual – prior corporate tenant – Michael J. Blackstone dba AIR COMBAT USA,
a California Corporation and the following parties: Air Combat U.S.A. Inc., ACUSA
Maintenance and Air Combat Maintenance and SkyCoasters LLC and SkyThrills, a Deleware
Corporation.
The lease was dated June 1st 2011 and covered 5-years with a 30-year option necessarily
exercised 60-days before vacating the building. It is our understanding that the tenant
continued on month-to-month prior to vacating the building and that one-month of rent was
lost in the amount identified by the City as:
“…the tenant paid through July and finally moved out Aug 31, so really just a month
at $1256. There was a 3% CPI increase each year.”
DATE, TIME & PLACE: This loss was “discovered” by City personnel upon viewing the vacated
property identified as 3815 W. Commonwealth Ave., Air Combat USA, on or September 1, 2017.
COVERAGE: Review of the Property Schedule for the Member City confirms coverage subject to a
$10,000.00 Deductible and $250,000.00 Pool Limit on:
Fullerton

Address

021

001 FULLERTON AIRPORT

City

State

Zip

HANGAR AIR COMBAT OFFICES
ISO
Class

# of
Stories

Year
Built

Sq Ft

Building
Value
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3815 W.
COMMONWEALTH
AVE.
FULLERTON CA

92833

1

1

1955

8376 1081872

OTHER INSURANCE: Coverage for the building and improvements located at the above described
address could be available through the tenant as required in the Lease Agreement under Section 20,
Subsection “D”, however, such coverage if it was available, would not cover “intentional acts” such as
the removal of internal improvements and purposeful vandalism.
EXCESS: This matter does not warrant notification above the ICRMA First-Party Pool insuring
carrier Homeland Insurance of New York as it is anticipated that this loss will not exceed 50%
of the ICRMA Pool SIR.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: A general valuation of the building and its improvements was
conducted by the City of Fullerton for the purpose of determining the appropriate rent for re-negotiation
of same in today’s marketplace and independently, a Marshall Swift Report was pulled confirming the
building valuation as follows:
Buss-Shelger Associates – Annual Rental Valuation $76,080.00
Commercial Building Valuation Report – Marshall & Swift/Boeckh, LLC - $813,832.00
NEWSPAPER ARTICLE/MEDIA: A recent newspaper Article published by the Register Newspaper
on December 1, 2017 confirms the dates and the disputed nature of this landlord tenant relationship over
the conversion of the 5-year lease to a 30-year lease - which we speculate may have been the motive
behind this tenant’s removal and destruction of improvements to the property - retaliation against the
City of Fullerton.
POLICE REPORT: A City of Fullerton police department investigation was commenced immediately
upon discovery of the loss and damage under case number 17-57539, also confirming Facts in Brief.
PHOTOGRAPHS: Photographs taken by the undersigned are included in this report that illustrate the
condition of the property upon inspection for assessment of the loss and damage in tandem with a
licensed contractor, Sunny Hills Construction.
Additionally, a photograph was provided by airport administration showing the general nature and
quality of improvements to the building interior, subsequently destroyed and/or removed by the tenant.

PROPERTY DAMAGE: Loss and damage to the building and improvements located at 3815
W. Commonwealth Ave., Fullerton, CA are summarized as below:

Initial Estimate
Less Cleaning
Less 50% of Concrete / Asphalt
Renewal
Less 50% of Painting (many
intact wall surfaces)

$103,207.73
-2,994.50 (necessary with any move out)
-9,908.12 Split the cost 50/50 to account for
normal wear and tear
-4,148.46 Impacted primarily near windows, doors
& fixtures that had been removed
(split the cost 50/50)
-17,001.08
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Sub-Total of deductions
Less $ % of above 3 as to Profit
and Overhead 16.42%
Sub-Total Deduction including
related Profit & Overhead

-2,791.58 ($17,001.08 x 16.42% = $2,791.58)
-19,792.66

Total Due based on Estimate
adjustments (as of 10.30.17)

$83,415.07

Plus difference see Revised Estimate
(as of 11.7.17)
Plus one month of rent less Deposit
Subtotal:
Less Deductible
Revised Total

+ 2,530.87 (Includes minor electrical; Stucco
repair; hazardous waste & trash dump)
+ 172.00 ($1,256.00 rent -$1,084.00 initial deposit)
$86,117.94
-$10,000.00 (Property Deductible)
$76,117.94
=========

SALVAGE / SUBROGATION: None of the items removed from the building were present
as salvage and some cabinetry and doors that remained were not re-useable – no salvage value.
Subrogation for the full loss and damage will be commenced for the City of Fullerton’s
deductible amount of $10,000.00 as well as for the verified damages to be paid by the ICRMA
first-party pool in the amount of $76,117.94.
As this loss is currently in litigation as against the tenant, the City Attorney for the City of
Fullerton will be directly involved in any subrogation and keep the undersigned apprised as to
the status of that subrogation effort.
AUTHORITY REQUEST: We hereby request authority from ICRMA to obtain a Sworn Statement in
Proof of Loss from the insured Member and thereafter, payment in this matter as follows:
Amount of Repair Estimate: $86,117.84
Less Deductible:
- 10,000.00
Authority Request: $76,117.94

CLAIM STATUS/RESERVE:
Claimant
1.
City of Fullerton

Status
Open – Property

Reserve
$105,000.00

WORK TO BE COMPLETED:
 Obtain a complete copy of the Police Investigation for subrogation purposes
COMMENT: Upon your approval of our Request for Authority, we will obtain closing
documents and coordinate subrogation efforts through the Office of the City Attorney for the
City of Fullerton as against this former tenant. Our report of progress will follow on a monthly
basis.
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Sincerely,

Michael Reed, Claims Manager
AdminSure Inc.
3380 Shelby Street
Ontario, CA 91764-5566
Phone 909-612-5644 | Fax 909-860-3995
mreed@adminsure.com
Enc:











Photographs of loss and damage
Initial Estimate of Damage and by Percentage
Final Estimate
Photograph of pre-loss condition of interior
Lease Agreement
Buss-Shelger Associates – Annual Rental Valuation $76,080.00
Commercial Building Valuation Report – Marshall & Swift/Boeckh, LLC
Invoice for lead and asbestos testing with results
Assignment for fire alarm testing
Newspaper Article

cc: Claims @ Arthur Gallagher & Co.
cc: James Marta & Company, Attention: Nicole Rushing
cc: City of Fullerton, Risk Management
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View of Airport hanger from the street - Commonwealth at 3815
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Closer view of back of hanger at 3815 - note lettering on building says "Air Combat USA."
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Closer view of building and evidence of prior use / company name.
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View of the hanger from the airport side.
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Large bay doors - note outside debris left by prior tenant.
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View on east side of the building where toxic chemicals were left behind and will require identificaton
and removal.

Page 16 of 266

Closer view of toxic liquids - oil, paint and unidentified.
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Some of
the cabinet

materials removed by
the prior tenant.

Page 18 of 266

Wiring pulled out of the building along with other materials
left behind by the former tenant upon eviction. Some
like wiring etc was ripped from the walls in haste,
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View of downstairs office where window and doors were removed as well as light fixtures and
wiring was left exposed.
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Missing light fixtures and fire extinguishers.
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Fire call box pulled form wall and
thermostadt wiring removed in places.
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Shelving and cabinet pulled from wall in area of west side downstairs office.
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Evidence of removal of permanent shelving and cabinets in downstairs office.
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Another office with missing shelving.
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Abandoned wiring and view into the other offices on the lower west-end of the building.
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View out of the front office, west-end with lower
window broken.
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Bathroom fixtures removed including sink and
cabinets for reasons unknown.
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Overhead light fixture removed from the ceiling in downstairs west-end office.
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Another fixture removed from the ceiling of a downstairs office.
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Permanent cabinetry removed from downstairs office.
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Another light fixture removed from an office.
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Another office with fixtures and cabinets removed.

Page 33 of 266

Bill Roy of Sunny Hills assisting us in the inspection and estimation of repair/replacement.
Note another fixture missing from the wall on the right.
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Looking up from the ground floor at the second floor offices above the west-end offices.
Note that the windows have been removed and as well as all hand railings on the
second floor. As well, interior ceiling tiles and duct work as well as wiring was ripped
out.
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View of downstairs office next to stairs where the windows and door were inexplicably removed.
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View of the stairway to the second floor where the hand railing
has been removed on the inside of the stairway and the lower
part of the outside of the stairway.
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Carpet was pulled up at bottom and debris left all over it, windows
missing with fixtures and safety equipment missing.
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View back across to the east side of the hangar from this
second floor office area - note missing hand railing all
along the second floor.
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Fire and Alarm equipment ripped out and or disconnected here.
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Ceiling tiles removed, light fixtures removed, wiring and duct work
ripped out for reasons unknown.
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Another view of missing ceiling tiles and duct work with fixture wiring pulled out and missing.
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Air conditioning system missing but thermostadt
remains in place.
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Fire Extinguishers taken along
with their mounting brackets.
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December 14, 2017

Governing Board

Subject:

Refund Interest Payments Associated with Deferred Premium Repayment

Action for consideration:
Authorize interest refunds associated with deferred premium repayment to Lynwood and Azusa.
Background:
During the 2004/05 and 2006/07 budget cycles, the Governing Board allowed members to defer a
portion of their liability and workers’ compensation contributions. Members could elect to pay
contributions at a lower confidence level than was approved by the Board during those program
years, and the difference would be loaned by either the Liability or Workers’ Compensation
Programs. Four members elected this option for a total of $176,287.
There was not a specific plan outlined for repayment, but the expectation was that the loan
repayment would be made from future dividends. Because the net position of the liability program
decreased significantly over the past several years, and the net position in the workers’ compensation
program has not reached the levels for consideration of dividends, in June 2015 the Governing Board
required repayment of these loans through non-dividend contributions.
All four cities received invoices.
• Redondo Beach paid, no interest was charged
• Azusa, Lynwood, and Manhattan Beach all repaid the deferred premium amounts, but only
after interest fees were charged
According to the finance team, the following amounts were invoiced for interest on unpaid deferral
invoices:
City of Manhattan Beach
$735.32
Unpaid; waived by Board on 10/12/2017
City of Lynwood
$962.09
Paid via check on 8/29/2017
City of Azusa
$1,695.80
Paid via wire transfer 7/31/2017
At its October meeting, the Board approved Manhattan Beach’s requested waiver of the $735.32
interest payment. The Board also directed staff to agendize approval of an interest refund to the other
impacted cities.
Attachments: None
Prepared by: Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Governing Board
Subject:

December 14, 2017

2017/18 Governing Board Attendance Record

Action for consideration:
Review and file
Background:
The Governing Board’s (Board) attendance record is presented for review. Attendance at Governing
Board meetings during the 2017/18 fiscal year is noted below. Section 5.2.2 of the Bylaws states that
every member is expected to have its delegate representative, alternate representative or substitute
alternate representative attend Board meetings.

City

Alhambra
Baldwin Park
Bell
Downey
El Monte
El Segundo
Fullerton
Glendora
Hawthorne
Hermosa Beach
Huntington Park
Inglewood
Lynwood
Monterey Park
San Fernando
South Gate
Total Cities:

8/10/2017

9/26/2017
Special
Meeting

10/1112/2017

1
0
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
14

1
0
0
0
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
11

1
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
14

12/14/2017

2/8/2018

Attachments:

None

Prepared by:

Christina Floe, Administrative Assistant

4/12/2018

6/14/2018

% of
Attendance
100%
0%
67%
33%
100%
100%
100%
100%
67%
100%
100%
100%
33%
100%
100%
100%
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Governing Board

Subject:

December 14, 2017

Check registers for October and November 2017

Action for consideration:
Receive and file
CHECK REGISTER REPORT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR October 1 THROUGH November 30, 2017
Summary of October 2017 Payment Activity
● General Administrative Payments
● Liability Claims Payments
● Workers' Compensation Claims Payments
Total Payments Issued for October 2017

$

146,901.79
745,301.92
-

$

892,203.71

Summary of November 2017 Payment Activity
● General Administrative Payments
$ 524,646.61
● Liability Claims Payments
532,790.00
● Workers' Compensation Claims Payments
Total Payments Issued for November 2017
$ 1,057,436.61

Summary of October and November 2017 Payment Activity
● General Administrative Payments
$ 671,548.40
● Liability Claims Payments
1,278,091.92
● Workers' Compensation Claims Payments
Total Payments Issued for Oct and Nov 2017
$ 1,949,640.32
Attachments: Check registers for October and November 2017
Prepared by: Nicole Rushing, Finance Manager
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ICRMA
Check Register
10/1/2017-10/30/2017
General and Adm inistrative Paym ents
Date
Vendor
10/4/2017
VEN_1161--C arl Warren and C ompany
10/4/2017
VEN_1077--C ompany Nurse
10/4/2017
VEN_1153--C ity of South Gate
10/4/2017
VEN_1144--C ity of Hermosa Beach
10/4/2017
10/4/2017
10/4/2017
10/5/2017
10/23/2017
10/23/2017
10/23/2017

VEN_1129--Tom C ody
VEN_1109--Origami Risk LLC
VEN_1084--Dennis Hernandez
VEN_1098--Johnson Schachter and Lewis
VEN_1107--Occu-Med
VEN_1235--AdminSure Inc
VEN_1198--VTD
VEN_1097--James Marta and C ompany

Check No
11187
11180
11186
11185
11184
11183
11181
11182
11189
11194
11195
11191

Amount
27,500.00
5,037.50
1,081.74
28,479.37
680.56
33,500.00
562.54
12,265.24
4,250.00
6,744.00
15,000.00
11,800.84
146,901.79

Memo
Sept 2017 Monthly Flat Fee
October 17 Monthly Fee
Ergonomic Evaluation - risk management fund
hermosa beach APD loss reimbursed by
Hanover ck 08020916
C AJPA reimbursement
license and service fee
10.03.17 Reimbursement
IC RMA General
October 2017 Services
10488 Prop/APD TPA Srvc Jul-Sept17
Year end audit services
Accounting Services for Sept 2017
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ICRMA
Check Register
10/1/2017-10/30/2017
Liability Claim s Paym ents
Date
10/4/2017
10/4/2017

Vendor
VEN_1229--Royal C oaches Auto Body and Towing
VEN_1098--Johnson Schachter and Lewis

Check No
11188
11182

10/4/2017
10/5/2017
10/5/2017
10/5/2017
10/23/2017
10/23/2017
10/23/2017

VEN_1014--C arpenter, Rothans and Dumont LLP
VEN_1231--Pacific Life and Annuity Services Inc
VEN_1230--Douglas Hicks Law APC
VEN_1232--Olivarez Madruga Lemieux O Neill LLP
VEN_1233--Sunny Hills Restoration
VEN_1134--C ity of Baldwin Park
VEN_1234--Gibbons and C onley

11179
.
1061
11190
11192
11196
11193

Amount
5,117.63
157.50
227.50
262.50
840.00
367.50
402.50
455.00
105.00
157.50
280.00
140.00
87.50
1,207.50
52.50
35.00
105.00
140.00
455.00
297.50
87.50
245.00
70.00
4,786.00
365,000.00
335,000.00
166.50
1,164.00
26,183.67
1,706.62
745,301.92

Memo
C ity of Baldwin 17-131929
Rodriguez, Aurora v. C ity of Lynwood
Juarez, Jose v. C ity of Azusa
Sharp, Timothy v. C ity of El Monte
Goodin, Jeffrey v. C ity of Glendora
Miller, Norris v. C ity of Glendora
Lombard, Kristina v. C ity of Baldwin Park
MSG Forum v. C ity of Inglewood
Reidy et al v. C ity of Inglewood
IRATE v. C ity of Inglewood
Wong v C ity of Alhambra
McC olgan, Lance v. Hermosa Beach
Spears, David v. C ity of Lynwood
Kithara v Monterey Park
Lyles, Alvin v. C ity of Huntington Park
Yoo v San Francisco
Weinrauch, Deborah v C ity of Hawthorne
Sellan, Donovan v C ity of Hermosa Beach
Nakada v C ity of El Monte
Nchoson v C ity of Inglewood
Alameda C orridor v C ity of Huntington Park
Fire Truck Incident (170273)
Haro, Yolanda v. C ity of San Fernando
Kitahara v Monterey Park 1877213
Rodriguez v Upland
Rodriguez v Upland
Medina v El Monte
17-132311 C ity of Fullerton
0001-2006-00051 Alvarez v C ity of Baldwin
17 Sept 664 Redondo Beach v IC RMA

892,203.71
*Note: 4 digit check numbers are printed in accounting office, 5 digit check numbers are printed via check delivery
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ICRMA
Check Register
11/1/2017-11/30/2017
General and Adm inistrative Paym ents
Date
Vendor
11/2/2017
VEN_1160--BANKCARD CENTER-Beth Lyons

Check No
EFT

11/9/2017
11/9/2017
11/9/2017
11/9/2017
11/9/2017
11/27/2017
11/27/2017
11/27/2017
11/27/2017

VEN_1140--City of El Segundo
VEN_1077--Company Nurse
VEN_1107--Occu-Med
VEN_1097--James Marta and Company
VEN_1161--Carl Warren and Company
VEN_1156--Risk Pool Administrators
VEN_1146--City of Inglewood
VEN_1238--Milliman
VEN_1220--HR Dynamics Performance Management

11200
11197
11199
11198
11201
11210
11202
11208
11204

11/27/2017
11/29/2017
11/29/2017
11/29/2017
11/29/2017

VEN_1235--AdminSure Inc
VEN_1067--Arthur J. Gallagher and Co.
VEN_1067--Arthur J. Gallagher and Co.
VEN_1067--Arthur J. Gallagher and Co.
VEN_1160--BANKCARD CENTER-Beth Lyons

11205
11213
11212
11214
EFT

Amount
200.00
75.00
1,866.98
5,037.50
4,250.00
11,800.84
27,500.00
239,200.00
385.00
5,000.00
2,250.00

Memo
Zadro August Monthly Web Hosting
State Bar of C alifornia
C AJPA conference
November 17 Monthly Fee
November 2017 Services
Accounting Services for Oct 2017
Oct 2017 Monthly Flat Fee
Risk Management Fee - Installment 3 of 4
Inglewood-PRIMA Gov't Member Fee
Liab and WC Analysis through October 2017
Tasks 10-11 C ity of Bell C ontract - RM Fund
Balance refund

2,248.00
200,000.00
8,039.00
774.00
1,456.88
261.75
12,858.02
204.60
59.94

Property/APD Adjusting Services Fees
17-18 Broker Fee 11.01.16-10.31.18
16-17 APD Audit Adjustment
17-18 APD Audit Adjustment
Board Meeting - Second C ity El Segundo
Board Meeting -Aloft El Segundo
Board Meeting -Aloft El Segundo
C laims C ommittee Meeting - Panera
Financial Ad Hoc C ommittee Meeting Subway

1,079.10
100.00
524,646.61
Liability Claim s Paym ents
Date
11/27/2017
11/27/2017
11/27/2017
11/27/2017
11/27/2017

Vendor
VEN_1239--Express Auto Appraisals
VEN_1205--The Gary Law Firm
VEN_1237--Liberty Life Assurance Company of Bost
VEN_1236--Sailer Law Firm APC
VEN_1232--Olivarez Madruga Lemieux O Neill LLP

Check No
11209
11203
11207
11206
11211

Amount
120.00
7,670.00
180,000.00
345,000.00
144.00

Rio Hondo Event C enter
Zadro August Monthly Web Hosting

Memo
17-132548 C ity of Monterey Park
Kitahara v. Monterey Park (1877213)
Medina v El Monte (IC RMA-ELM-2013-051)
Medina v El Monte (IC RMA-ELM-2013-051)
Medina v El Monte (IC RMA-ELM-2013-051)

532,790.00
1,057,436.61
*Note: 4 digit check numbers are printed in accounting office, 5 digit check numbers are printed via check delivery
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Governing Board
Subject:

October 11-12, 2017

Financial Audit Update

Action for consideration:
Review and file
Background:
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (VTD) is in the process of conducting an audit of ICRMA’s
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.
The audit commenced in early August and staff provided the audit draft report on 9/11/2017 with the
exception of a portion of the MD&A the Description of Facts or Conditions Expected to have a
Significant Effect on Financial Position or Results of Operations Section, which was provided
9/12/17.
Staff met with audit manager Jessica Anderson on October 3 and were advised the auditors need
additional time to complete the financial audit and quality control procedures.
Attachments:

None

Prepared by:

James Marta, Finance Director
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Governing Board

Subject:

December 14, 2017

Review of ICRMA Net Assets, Dividends, and Assessments

Action for consideration:
Review the net asset positions and determine that:
1. Neither assets nor dividends are indicated in the workers’ compensation program
2. Affirm the current assessment plan in the liability program
Background:
The Governing Board has adopted a Net Asset Policy (Policy) which provides guidance to ICRMA
in making annual funding, dividend and assessment decisions for the Liability Program and
Workers’ Compensation Program. A copy of the Net Assets Policy is attached. Staff has applied the
parameters outlined in the Net Asset Policy, including the Important Net Asset ratios and probability
levels. The parameters are explained below and the results have been provided for consideration.
Important Net Asset Ratios
Net Contributions to Net Assets: Target ≤ 2:1
This ratio is a measure of how Net Assets compare to the rate at which the pool is taking on risk (or
growing), measured by the current annual volume of contributions, less contributions passed through
to reinsurers or insurers. A low ratio is desirable.
Outstanding Reserves to Net Assets: Target ≤ 3:1
This ratio is a measure of how Net Assets is leveraged against possible reserve inadequacies. A low
ratio is desirable.
Net Assets to Self-Insured Retention: Target ≥ 5:1
This ratio measures how conservative the Net Assets position is by virtue of how many retained
occurrences the Net Assets amount could absorb. A high ratio is desirable.
Reserve Development: Target ≤ 20%
This is a measure of the change in aggregate ultimate losses from one valuation period to the prior
valuation(s). Generally, the one-year and two-year reserve development to Net Assets threshold
should be less than 20%. A low ratio is desirable.
Change in Net Assets: Target ≥ -10%
This ratio measures the stability Net Assets, from recent events. A decline in excess of 10% may
signal a new adverse trend and warrant consideration of more conservative financial decisions in the
near term. A positive or low-negative ratio is desirable.
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Governing Board

December 14, 2017

The Governing Board has adopted a Net Asset Policy (Policy) which provides guidance to
ICRMA in making annual funding, dividend and assessment decisions for the Liability
Program and Workers’ Compensation Program. A copy of the Net Assets Policy is attached.
Staff has applied the parameters outlined in the Net Asset Policy, including the Important Net
Asset ratios and probability levels. The parameters are explained below and the results have
been provided for consideration.
Important Net Asset Ratios
Net Contributions to Net Assets: Target ≤ 2:1
This ratio is a measure of how Net Assets compare to the rate at which the pool is taking on
risk (or growing), measured by the current annual volume of contributions, less contributions
passed through to reinsurers or insurers. A low ratio is desirable.
Outstanding Reserves to Net Assets: Target ≤ 3:1
This ratio is a measure of how Net Assets is leveraged against possible reserve inadequacies.
A low ratio is desirable.
Net Assets to Self-Insured Retention: Target ≥ 5:1
This ratio measures how conservative the Net Assets position is by virtue of how many
retained occurrences the Net Assets amount could absorb. A high ratio is desirable.
Reserve Development: Target ≤ 20%
This is a measure of the change in aggregate ultimate losses from one valuation period to the
prior valuation(s). Generally, the one-year and two-year reserve development to Net Assets
threshold should be less than 20%. A low ratio is desirable.
Change in Net Assets: Target ≥ -10%
This ratio measures the stability Net Assets, from recent events. A decline in excess of 10%
may signal a new adverse trend and warrant consideration of more conservative financial
decisions in the near term. A positive or low-negative ratio is desirable.
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December 14, 2017

Governing Board

Table 1
Liability Program
Ratio Analysis
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016
Net Assets at 6/30/14: $30,402,945
Target Net
Assets

Target
Ratio

2017
6/30/17 6/30/16 Result

Net Contributions to Net Assets

$60,805,890

≤ 2:1

0.39:1

0.48:1

MET

Outstanding Reserves to Net Assets

$91,208,835

≤ 3:1

1.23:1

1.39:1

MET

Net Assets to Self-Insured Retention

$24,000,000

≥ 5:1

6.33:1

4.05:1

MET

2-YR Reserve Development

≤ 20%

13%

-362%

MET

1-YR Reserve Development

≤ 20%

-60%

-177%

MET

Ratio

NOT
MET
The results for the Workers’ Compensation Program are shown in Table 2. As you can see,
the ratios remained fairly stable and were consistent with the prior year.
≥ -10%

Change in Net Assets

-340%

245%

Table 2
Workers’ Compensation Program
Ratio Analysis
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016
Net Assets at 6/30/17: $10,910,903
Target Net
Assets

Target
Ratio

6/30/17

6/30/16

2016
Result

$21,821,806

≤ 2:1

0.34:1

0.26:1

MET

$32,732,709

≤ 3:1

1.51:1

1.09:1

MET

$23,250,000

≥ 5:1

2.35:1

2.39:1

NOT
MET

2-YR Reserve Development

≤ 20%

14%

-6%

MET

1-YR Reserve Development

≤ 20%

10%

3%

MET

Change in Net Assets

≥ -10%

-9%

-4%

MET

Ratio
Net Contributions to Net
Assets
Outstanding Reserves to Net
Assets
Net Assets to Self-Insured
Retention
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Governing Board

December 14, 2017

Dividend and Assessment Analysis
Dividends may be declared by the Board provided the net assets of the program as a whole
meet the criteria set forth in Table 3, before and after the dividend, in accordance with the
respective program bylaws.
Table 3
Dividend Criteria
LP
WCP
1. Overall Net Assets Required
90% Probability level, 90% Probability
Discounted
level, Undiscounted
2. Program Year Age Eligibility
On sixth year
3. Individual Program Year Net 90% Probability level, 90% Probability
Assets Required
Discounted
level, Undiscounted
4. Minimum Net Assets Required 90% Probability level, 90% Probability
level, Undiscounted
after dividend for overall program Discounted
and individual program year
5. Other Requirements
Board must review target equity ratios to
determine if results are appropriate and, if
indicated, justify declaration of a dividend
before and after the dividend.
Assessments may be levied by the Board when an actuary finds that the assets of the Liability
or Workers’ Compensation Programs, as a whole, do not meet the unpaid losses at the central
estimate, discounted to net present value. If the assessment is not sufficient to relieve the
pool of the actuarially determined deficit in the year of the assessment, assessments shall be
levied each subsequent year until the actuarial deficit is relieved. The timing of the payment
shall be determined by the Board at the time of the assessment.
The net assets as of June 30, 2017, are shown in Table 4 at the probability levels required for
consideration of dividends and assessments.
Table 4
Net Asset Probability Level Analysis
Liability
Workers Compensation
Net Assets at 90% probability
($610,262)
$ 5,307,848
Net Assets at central
$30,402,945 *
$10,910,903
probability
* Included in net assets is the assessment receivable of $36,172,439

While the Net Assets for both programs meet many of the ratios outlined in the Net Asset
Policy, the liability program does not meet the 90% confidence level threshold which would
allow for consideration of the declaration of a dividend. Furthermore, both programs have
adequate Net Assets to be funded above the central probability, which is the threshold for
consideration of an assessment. However, the equity in the liability program includes a longterm assessment receivable the value at 6/30/17 is $36,172,439.
Prepared by: James Marta, Finance Director
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ICRMA LIABILITY PROGRMA
Financial Statements - Adjusted for Ratio Analysis
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017, and 2016

6/30/2017

INCOME STATEMENT
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

REVENUES:
Participant contributions
Assessments
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
EXPENSES:
Claims expense - Current Year
Claims expense - Prior Years
Excess insurance premiums
Brokerage and professional
General and administrative
Member dividend
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment earnings
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Balances per
Audit
16,218,704
25,337,691
41,556,395

Adjustments
for Ratios

6/30/2016

Adjusted

Balances per
Audit

-

16,218,704
25,337,691
41,556,395

14,617,339
12,500,000
27,117,339

33,095,730

4,413,689
953,504
431,911
(1,483,306)

-

(7,282,410)
4,413,689
953,504
431,911
(1,483,306)

43,039,701

-

43,039,701

41,073
41,073

-

41,073
41,073

43,080,774

-

43,080,774

(9,005,268)

(12,677,829)

(3,672,561)

30,402,945

(12,677,829)

(7,282,410)

(12,677,829)
30,402,945

-

Adjustments
for Ratios

Adjusted

-

14,617,339
12,500,000
27,117,339

2,442,250
838,365
576,732
36,953,077

-

33,095,730
2,442,250
838,365
576,732
36,953,077

(9,835,738)

-

(9,835,738)

830,470
830,470

-

830,470
830,470
(9,005,268)
(3,672,561)

-

(12,677,829)
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ICRMA LIABILITY PROGRMA
Financial Statements - Adjusted for Ratio Analysis
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017, and 2016

6/30/2017

BALANCE SHEET

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments (current and long term)
Member receivables
Interest receivable
Excess receivable
Other receivable
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Claims liability (current and long term)
Capital lease
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Balances per
Audit

Adjustments
for Ratios

5,285,522
26,260,894
116,308
154,288

6/30/2016

Adjusted

Balances per
Audit

5,285,522
26,260,894
116,308
154,288
36,172,439
53,972
-

780,268
27,954,593
2,073,347
136,554

-

68,043,423

41,703,796

28,701
54,352,924

37,640,478

-

94,223
37,546,255
37,640,478

30,402,945

-

30,402,945

36,172,439
53,972

68,043,423

94,223
37,546,255

Adjustments
for Ratios

Adjusted

780,268
27,954,593
2,073,347
136,554
10,714,286
44,748
-

10,714,286
44,748

-

41,703,796

54,381,625

-

28,701
54,352,924
54,381,625

(12,677,829)

-

(12,677,829)
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ICRMA
Financial Ratios - Liability Program
at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016

1. Net Contribution to Equity Ratio
This ratio is a measure of how equity is leveraged against possible pricing inaccuracies. A low ratio is desirable.
6/30/2017
6/30/2016
Net Contributions Received

11,805,015

9,389,743

Total Equity as of period end

30,402,945

19,446,552

0.39:1

0.48:1

Target Met

Target Met

Calculated Ratio

Target

≤ 3:1

2. Outstanding Reserves to Equity Ratio
This ratio is a measure of how equity is leveraged against possible reserve inaccuracies. A low ratio is desirable.
6/30/2017
6/30/2016
Total Unpaid Loss and LAE at period end

37,546,255

27,033,589

Total Equity at period end

30,402,945

19,446,552

1.23:1

1.39:1

Target Met

Target Met

Calculated Ratio

3. Equity to Self-Insured Retention Ratio
This ratio is a measure of the maximum amount that equity could decline due to a single loss. A high ratio is
desirable.
6/30/2017
6/30/2016
Total Equity at period end

30,402,945

19,446,552

Largest SIR at period end

4,800,000

4,800,000

Calculated Ratio

6.33:1
6.33
Target Met

4.05:1

Target

≤ 3.5:1

Target

≥ 5:1

4.05
Target Not Met
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ICRMA
Financial Ratios - Liability Program
at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016
4. Reserve Development
This is a measure of the change in aggregate ultimate losses from one valuation period to the prior valuation(s).
Generally, the one-year and two-year reserve development to equity threshold should be less than 20%.
2-Yr
Development
Ultimate loss for accident years 98/99 through 13/14, valued as of 6/30/14
Ultimate loss for same accident years, valued at 6/30/15
Change

Target

4,026,153
30,402,945

Total Equity at end of period

Two Year Reserve Development

Ultimate loss for accident years 98/99 through 12/13, valued as of 6/30/13
Ultimate loss for same accident years, valued at 6/30/15
Change

13%

≤ 20%

1-Yr
Development

Target

Target Met

(18,353,984)
30,402,945

Total Equity at end of period

One Year Reserve Development

-60%

≤ 20%

Target Met

#REF!

5. Change in Equity
This ratio measures the percentage change in equity from year to year.

Total Equity at 6-30-17

Not more than 10%
reduction

Target Not Met

30,402,945 ------------> -340% decrease

Total Equity at 6-30-16

(12,677,829)

245% increase

Total Equity at 6-30-15

(3,672,561)

-119% decrease

Total Equity at 6-30-14
Total Equity at 6-30-13
Total Equity at 6-30-12
Total Equity at 6-30-11
Total Equity at 6-30-10
Total Equity at 6-30-09
Total Equity at 6-30-08
Total Equity at 6-30-07
Total Equity at 6-30-06
Total Equity at 6-30-05
Total Equity at 6-30-04
Total Equity at 6-30-03

19,446,552
25,898,754
25,951,986
20,698,538
19,057,171
21,595,001
21,524,882
21,943,763
15,872,632
14,828,483
12,082,144
11,034,332

------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>

-25%
0%
25%
9%
-12%
0%
-2%
38%
7%
23%
9%
41%

decrease
decrease
increase
increase
decrease
increase
decrease
increase
increase
increase
increase
increase
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ICRMA
Financial Statements - Adjusted for Ratio Analysis
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017, and 2016

6/30/2017

INCOME STATEMENT
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Balances per
Audit

REVENUES:
Participant contributions

4,090,086

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

4,090,086

EXPENSES:
Claims expense - Current Year
Claims expense - Prior Years
Excess insurance premiums
Brokerage and professional
General and administrative
Member dividend
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment earnings
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

Adjustments
for Ratios

6/30/2016

Adjusted

Balances per
Audit

4,090,086

3,786,203

-

4,090,086

3,786,203

2,803,431

5,136,405

-

3,359,719
429,945
1,038,832
307,909
5,136,405

(1,046,319)

-

(1,046,319)

3,359,719
429,945
1,038,832
307,909

2,284
2,284

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

(1,044,035)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

11,954,938

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

10,910,903

-

-

2,284
2,284
(1,044,035)

Adjustments
for Ratios

3,786,203
-

3,786,203

-

2,803,431
365,004
1,193,400
330,176
4,692,011

365,004
1,193,400
330,176
4,692,011

Adjusted

(905,808)

-

(905,808)

406,255
406,255

-

406,255
406,255

(499,553)

-

(499,553)

11,954,938

12,454,491

10,910,903

11,954,938

12,454,491
-

11,954,938
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ICRMA
Financial Statements - Adjusted for Ratio Analysis
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017, and 2016

6/30/2017

BALANCE SHEET

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments (current and long term)
Member receivables
Interest receivable
Excess receivable
Other receivable
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Claims liability (current and long term)
Capital lease
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Balances per
Audit

Adjustments
for Ratios

4,298,988
23,031,426
13,477
79,433

6/30/2016

Adjusted

Balances per
Audit

4,298,988
23,031,426
13,477
79,433
30,342
-

7,846,769
18,377,617
13,477
58,528

-

27,453,666

26,307,631

8,052
14,344,641

16,542,763

-

41,883
16,500,880
16,542,763

10,910,903

-

10,910,903

30,342

27,453,666

41,883
16,500,880

Adjustments
for Ratios

Adjusted

7,846,769
18,377,617
13,477
58,528
11,240
-

11,240

-

26,307,631

14,352,693

-

8,052
14,344,641
14,352,693

11,954,938

-

11,954,938
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ICRMA
Financial Ratios - Workers Compensation Program
at June 30, 2017 and 2016

1. Net Contribution to Equity Ratio
This ratio is a measure of how equity is leveraged against possible pricing inaccuracies. A low ratio is desirable.
6/30/2017
6/30/2017
Net Contributions Received

3,660,141

3,149,282

Total Equity as of period end

10,910,903

11,096,656

0.34:1

0.28:1

Target Met

Target Met

Calculated Ratio

Target

≤ 3:1

2. Outstanding Reserves to Equity Ratio
This ratio is a measure of how equity is leveraged against possible reserve inaccuracies. A low ratio is desirable.
6/30/2017
6/30/2017
Total Unpaid Loss and LAE at period end

16,500,880

12,090,372

Total Equity at period end

10,910,903

11,096,656

1.51:1

1.09:1

Target Met

Target Met

Calculated Ratio

3. Equity to Self-Insured Retention Ratio
This ratio is a measure of the maximum amount that equity could decline due to a single loss. A high ratio is
desirable.
6/30/2017
6/30/2017
Total Equity at period end

10,910,903

11,096,656

Largest SIR at period end

4,650,000

4,650,000

Calculated Ratio

2.35:1

2.39:1

2.35

2.39

Target Not Met

Target Not Met

Target

≤ 3.5:1

Target

≥ 5:1
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ICRMA
Financial Ratios - Workers Compensation Program
at June 30, 2017 and 2016
4. Reserve Development
This is a measure of the change in aggregate ultimate losses from one valuation period to the prior valuation(s).
Generally, the one-year and two-year reserve development to equity threshold should be less than 20%.
2-Yr
Development
Ultimate loss for accident years 02/03 through 12/13, valued as of 6/30/13
Ultimate loss for same accident years, valued at 6/30/16
Change

Target

1,484,187
10,910,903

Total Equity at end of period

Two Year Reserve Development

Ultimate loss for accident years 02/03 through 13/14, valued as of 6/30/14
Ultimate loss for same accident years, valued at 6/30/15
Change

14%

≤ 20%

1-Yr
Development

Target

Target Met

1,089,273
10,910,903

Total Equity at end of period

One Year Reserve Development

10%

≤ 20%

Target Met

#REF!

5. Change in Equity
This ratio measures the percentage change in equity from year to year.

Total Equity at 6-30-17

10,910,903 ------------>

-9% decrease

Total Equity at 6-30-16

11,954,938

-4% decrease

Total Equity at 6-30-15

12,454,491 ------------>

12% increase

Total Equity at 6-30-14
Total Equity at 6-30-13
Total Equity at 6-30-12
Total Equity at 6-30-11
Total Equity at 6-30-10
Total Equity at 6-30-09
Total Equity at 6-30-08
Total Equity at 6-30-07
Total Equity at 6-30-06
Total Equity at 6-30-05
Total Equity at 6-30-04

11,096,656
10,796,535
9,345,596
12,091,430
12,206,224
11,225,972
9,455,820
7,773,576
3,012,876
(1,967,795)
(2,426,737)

------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>
------------>

3%
16%
-23%
-1%
9%
19%
22%
158%
253%
19%

increase
increase
decrease
decrease
increase
increase
increase
increase
increase
increase

Target Met

Not more than
10% reduction

Page 112 of 266

Governing Board
Subject:

December 14, 2017

Consideration of a Software License with Intacct for Financial Services

Action for Consideration:
Provide authorization to license the Intacct Financial Software for an annual recurring fee of
$13,104.
Background:
In 2016 ICRMA’s financial data was transferred from Microsoft GP to Intacct software when the
financial team changed. Due to the transition to a new financial team in a few weeks, another data
transfer was imminent.
ICRMA is interested in ensuring a smooth transition for its new financial team and reducing future
costs and challenges associated with data transfers. With that in mind, it is in ICRMA’s best interest
to directly license the financial software, and require its finance team to use the selected software.
Artex staff contacted Intacct, the current software being utilized by James Marta & Company, to
explore pricing.
Attached is the Intacct pricing. The pricing includes the platform hosting (provided by Intacct) and
essential support (provided by BT Partners). Intacct will waive any costs associated with moving
ICRMA’s Intacct instance from James Marta & Company’s instance to its own. Intacct applied a
discount of 20% which is an ongoing discount. The total costs of $13,104 are unbudgeted.
It will take approximately 7-10 days for Intacct to have Artex up and running. With the holidays,
ICRMA needs to provide approval by close of business on Friday, December 15, to ensure Artex has
access by the transition date of January 4.
Attachments:

Annual Subscription License for Intacct through Business Technology
Partners

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Prepared For:

Prepared By:

Business Technology Partners, LLP
Beth Lyons
Independent Cities Risk Management Authority
18201 Von Karman, Suite 200

Todd Perlman
1751 Lake Cook Rd Ste 400
Deerfield, IL 60015
(847) 418-8149
tperlman@btpartners.com

Irvine, CA 92612

(949) 349-9879

beth_lyons@riskpooladministrators.com

Date Prepared:

November 9, 2017

Terms
Term Length: 12 (months)
Subscription Period: 1/1/2018 through 12/31/2018

Products
Core Modules & Users
Product Name

Description

Intacct Financial
Management
(Single Business Entity)

Intacct Financial Management includes the following - General Ledger, Cash
Management, Purchase Order, Accounts Payable, Order Entry, Accounts
Receivable, Employee Expenses, Standard Reports, Dashboard, Customization
Services. Intacct Financial Management includes 15 GB of storage (5GB of
data/transaction storage and 10GB of file storage).

Quantity
1

Price Each

User License
Business User
Employee User Pack – 10
Users
Subscription Discount

Adds additional users with unlimited access rights to all applications. Can be
restricted based on permissions assigned by an Administrator.

5

2,520

12,600

Adds additional users with reporting, dashboards, and approvals access

1

1,260

1,260

Not-for-Profit Discount

1

(3,276)

(3,276)

$

Total Price
2,520 $

Core Modules & Users: $

2,520

13,104

Support
Product Name

Description

Quantity

Price Each

Intacct Application
Hosting, Infrastructure
and Security Services

Hosting of Intacct Applications at a secure top tier data center, and disaster
recovery services at a separate secure data center in a different geographic locale,
described in detail in the Buy With Confidence program. Additionally, data is
backed up to tape and stored off-site.

1

Included

Included

Buy with Confidence
Guarantee

Intacct distinguishes itself via its "Buy with Confidence" program. Guaranteed
system uptime, disaster recovery protection, data security and response times are
all included in Intacct's differentiating "Buy with Confidence" guarantee.

1

Included

Included

Essential Support

Essential Support is included at no additional charge to all customers of Intacct
reseller Partners. Your Intacct Partner will respond to your initial request for
support. Your Partner has direct access to all of Intacct's support resources
including Intacct's comprehensive knowledgebase and Intacct's support personnel.
Should your Partner be unable to resolve your support case, they will escalate to
Intacct Support on your behalf. Intacct will work with your Partner, or directly with
you, as needed, to resolve the case. Essential Support gives your company direct
access to the Intacct Customer Portal- a single path to submit cases, check the
status of cases and search Intacct's comprehensive knowledgebase for answers to
commonly asked questions. This is also where your organization can recommend
product enhancements directly to Intacct as well as vote on product enhancement
requests submitted by others.

1

Included

Included

Annual Recurring Fees:

Total Price

$13,104

1. Terms of Service
This Order Schedule and its associated terms and conditions, together with the Intacct Terms of Service (the 'Terms') located at
http://us.intacct.com/endusertermsandconditions/termsofservice, as amended from time to time, and any other documents or terms expressly
incorporated by reference, are a legal agreement between you (the 'customer' identified in this Order Schedule above) and Intacct that
govern all access to and use of Intacct's Services. Unless otherwise defined in this Order Schedule, capitalized terms shall have the
meanings set forth in the Terms of Service. You represent that you have reviewed the Terms and expressly agree to all of the terms of this
agreement as of the last signature date below (or in the case of electronic signature, as of the date of that electronic signature), and in their
then-current form on the date of any renewal of this agreement. This Order Schedule will remain in effect until all User subscriptions ordered
under this Order Schedule have expired or have been terminated.

2. Duration of Subscriptions
All initial subscriptions specified in this Order Schedule above will run for the initial subscription period set forth in this Order Schedule above.
All subscriptions will automatically renew for additional subscription periods of one year at the then-current Intacct price and subject to the
then-current version of the Terms unless either party gives the other party notice of non-renewal at least 30 days prior to the end of the
relevant subscription period. If you add subscriptions after the beginning of a subscription period, the initial term of such new subscriptions
will run for the remainder of the then-current subscription period.

3. Fees
The fees applicable to the Services you are ordering under this Order Schedule are set forth in the table above. Subscriptions added during
the term will be pro-rated and billed for the remainder of the then-current term at the pricing applicable to then-existing subscriptions. Intacct,
from time to time, may change fees. You will be notified at least 30 days in advance of the effective date of changes in fees. Such changes
will become effective upon your next renewal term and will not affect the prices for Services during the current term. All fees listed in this
Order Schedule are exclusive of any taxes. You will be responsible for all taxes, including sales or use taxes, imposed on such amounts,
excluding taxes on Intacct's net income.

Confidential
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Governing Board
Subject:

December 14, 2017

Consideration of the Artex Financial Services Contract

Action for consideration:
1) Review the draft contract with Artex and provide feedback; 2) Authorize interim General
Counsel and the Executive Director to complete negotiations with Artex; and 3) Direct the
President to execute the contract
Background:
On October 6, James Marta & Company elected to exercise the 90-day termination provision in its
contract with ICRMA. The finance function is critical to the pool and the members, so prompt action
by the Board was necessary.
RPA staff provided multiple options to the Board at its October meeting and the Board provided
direction. RPA staff contacted Artex, a bidder during the 2015 RFP process, regarding its interest in
providing financial services to ICRMA. Multiple meetings and conversations have taken place since
that time to discuss the account and negotiate contract terms. Proposed contract terms include:
1. Artex to provide financial services through June 30, 2018 at the adopted budget amount of
$72,613
2. Beginning in the 2018-19 fiscal period, Artex’s annual fee is proposed at $200,000
3. The contract term is for approximately 3.5 years (January 4, 2018 – June 30, 2021)
4. Artex agreed to a fee adjustment (i.e. participation adjustment) if members join or leave the pool
5. Obligations and exclusions are outlined in Exhibit B. If Artex is asked to perform duties that are
excluded (e.g. creation of all IRS 1099 and 1098 forms for 2017), the additional services will be
subject to fees as outlined in Exhibit A.
As of the date of agenda distribution, interim General Counsel Luther Lewis was reviewing the draft
contract. He will be present at your meeting to report additional highlights and concerns, if any.
Attachments:

Draft contract between ICRMA and Artex

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Financial Services Agreement
This Financial Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made between Artex Risk Solutions, Inc. (“Artex”), and
Independent Cities Risk Management Authority, a California Joint Powers Authority (“ICRMA”), (collectively “Parties”,
and each a party).
RECITALS
ICRMA wishes to proceed and engage Artex to provide certain financial services.
OFFER, ACCEPTANCE, AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT
This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and will constitute our contract for certain specified
financial services to ICRMA and will supersede any previous understandings that we have regarding this matter. You
should review this Agreement and have a clear understanding of all that is mentioned here, including the Fees section
attached hereto as Exhibit A, prior to signing this Agreement.
For the consideration of the separate and mutual obligations imposed herein, Artex and ICRMA agree to be bound by
the provisions of this Agreement.
1. Artex Obligations - Artex shall be under the obligations as described elsewhere herein and in the
attached Exhibit B.
2. ICRMA’s Obligations - ICRMA shall be under the obligations as described elsewhere herein and in the
attached Exhibit C. ICRMA agrees that the commencement of Artex’s obligations and performance under
this Agreement is contingent upon the purchase by ICRMA of the Intacct software.
GENERAL AUTHORITY
Artex shall have the authority to conduct certain specified financial services for ICRMA in carrying out the programs
authorized by the Board. Though Artex shall report directly to the ICRMA Governing Board, its team shall work in
close cooperation with ICRMA’s administrator.
DISCLOSURE
Please note that Artex is an alternative risk service provider. Artex is not a law firm, accounting firm or financial
investment advisor. Artex does not take the place of ICRMA’s insurance broker. Artex does not act as ICRMA’s
lawyer, or property and casualty broker. ICRMA acknowledges that Artex has encouraged it to consult with its own
attorneys and advisors prior to entering into this Agreement, and that it has had ample opportunity to do so. Artex
recommends that ICRMA consult with other professionals and advisors regarding the appropriateness, terms, and
conditions of this Agreement.
NOTICES
Except as may otherwise be required by law, any notice to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be personally delivered, sent by electronic mail, or sent by first class mail, postage pre-paid and addressed as
follows:
For ICRMA
Attn: Tom Cody, ICRMA Board President
Monterey Park City Hall
320 W Newmark Ave, E3
Monterey Park, CA 91754
tcody@MontereyPark.ca.gov

Attn: Luther R. Lewis, ICRMA General Counsel
Johnson Schachter & Lewis, A P.L.C.
2180 Harvard St, Ste 560
Sacramento, CA 95815
luther@jsl-law.com

For Artex_____________________________________________________________________________________
Attn: Diana Dunkin-Vasquez, Account Executive
Attn: Matt Anderson, Senior Captive Manager
Artex Risk Solutions, Inc.
Artex Risk Solutions, Inc.
1635 N Greenfield Rd, Ste 127
1635 N Greenfield Rd, Ste 127
Mesa, AZ 85205
Mesa, AZ 85205
diana_dunkinvasquez@artexrisk.com
matt_anderson@artexrisk.com

ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services
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Should the person holding any of the above positions change during the course of this Agreement, the notice
requirement for that party will shift ex officio to the office address of the current holder of the position.
MEMBERSHIP CHANGES
Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent ICRMA from adding new members, or having one or more members
withdraw.
INDEMNIFICATION
ICRMA agrees to indemnify, protect, save and keep harmless Artex from any and all loss, costs, damage or expense
arising from any financial obligation to pay premiums to any insurer, excess insurer or reinsurer or provide funds for
any payments due from ICRMA or the legality or validity of the operation, organization, or structure of ICRMA or any
member.
Artex agrees to indemnify, protect, save and keep harmless from any and all Actual Losses, as defined in the
limitation of liability, arising primarily from the negligence of Artex provided that Artex is not liable for the proportionate
share of Actual Losses attributable to the negligence or misconduct of other persons besides Artex. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Artex’s obligation to indemnify ICRMA is subject to and may not exceed the limitation of liability
described in such section of this Agreement.
Artex also holds ICRMA harmless against any liability that it may incur toward Artex’s employees relating to employer
obligations including, but not limited to, liability for payment of workers compensation benefits.
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
ICRMA and any substitute thereto agree that Artex shall have no liability (whether direct or indirect, in contract, tort or
otherwise) to ICRMA or its substitute or any related party to ICRMA or its substitute, for any losses, claims, taxes,
demands, damages, attorneys’ fees, liabilities, costs or other expenses of any nature arising out of or in connection
with this Agreement or the services rendered or contemplated hereunder (collectively, “Losses”), other than actual
Losses of ICRMA (“Actual Losses”) that have resulted primarily from Artex’s negligence. Taking into account the
negligence or misconduct of others, Artex’s liability to ICRMA may not exceed the proportionate share of the Actual
Losses attributable to Artex’s negligence. Actual Losses does not include any indirect, consequential or punitive
damages.
Notwithstanding the above or any other understanding, Artex’s total liability for losses resulting from or in any way
related to this Agreement, shall not exceed twenty (20) million dollars in the aggregate.
Furthermore, Artex shall have no liability or responsibility for the condition of ICRMA’s bookkeeping or records prior to
January 4, 2018.
TERMINATION AND WITHDRAWAL
Subject to the last sentence of this paragraph, either party may choose to terminate this Agreement for any reason
upon ninety (90) days' advance written notice. Unless sooner terminated, this Agreement shall automatically renew
for successive one-year terms after the end of the initial term. Except as described below, the earliest date at which
either party may terminate this Agreement is July 1, 2021.
Artex may elect to cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ advance written notice for cause, which notice shall
specify the particular cause and the facts and circumstances justifying the termination of the Agreement for cause, if
ICRMA or any substitute thereto is in breach of this Agreement, if ICRMA or its substitute refuse to cooperate with
Artex or refuse to follow Artex’s advice concerning a significant matter, if ICRMA or its substitute is more than 30 days
past due on an invoice from Artex, or if for any reason the continued representation of ICRMA or its substitute would
render Artex’s relationship unlawful or unethical. At the termination of this Agreement ICRMA or its substitute shall
promptly pay all accrued but unpaid fees and costs as well as any other fees and costs, including but not limited to
audit fees, due through the time of termination.
ICRMA may elect to cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ advance written notice for cause, which notice shall
specify the particular cause and the facts and circumstances justifying the termination of the Agreement for cause, if
Artex or any substitute thereto is in breach of this Agreement, or if Artex or its substitute refuses to cooperate with
ICRMA.
The terms of this section survive the termination of this Agreement and/or the dissolution or other effective termination
of the business of Artex or ICRMA.
ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services
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Artex shall transfer any data, report, document or other material prepared or obtained in connection with this
Agreement that may be in Artex’s possession to ICRMA in a mutually agreed format by the effective date of the
termination. Artex may retain copies of documents as required to comply with its internal record retention policies and
expectations of licensed professionals.
ARBITRATION
Artex and ICRMA and any substitute thereto agree that in the event of any dispute that cannot be resolved between
the Parties, the Parties will seek to resolve such disputes through mediation at the principal office of ICRMA in
California, and if that fails, that all disputes will be subject to binding arbitration at the principal office of ICRMA in
California.
When an arbitrator is necessary to resolve a dispute under this Section, such arbitrator shall be selected as agreed
upon by the Parties, and if no agreement as to arbitrators is reached, then such dispute shall be arbitrated by the
American Arbitration Association (AAA).
Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the California Code of
Civil Procedure, sections 1280 et seq.
Discovery under an arbitration proceeding pursuant to this section shall not include materials directly pertaining to
persons other than the Parties, and with respect to other materials, discovery shall not impair or prevent the redaction
of identifying information and confidential information pertaining to persons other than the Parties and matters not
relevant to the proceeding. In the case of a controversy as to what is relevant for discovery under this Section, the
arbitrator(s), or such persons as the arbitrator(s) may designate, shall decide exparte whether or not such materials
are relevant to such arbitration proceeding.
Each party shall bear its own costs in such mediation and arbitration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a party that acts
in bad faith during an arbitration proceeding under this section, or subsequent to it in relation to such arbitration
proceeding, shall pay the reasonable costs and expenses of the other party that are attributable to such bad faith
action(s).
By virtue of this provision each party waives its right to file a lawsuit or otherwise initiate legal action against any Party
or related person regarding any matter arising out of or related to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
Party shall retain the right to file a lawsuit or otherwise initiate legal action against another Party, to enforce an
arbitration judgment under this section or to seek injunctive relief to prevent harm from the disclosure of confidential
information. To the extent permitted under this Agreement, the Parties agree that no court action will be maintained
except in the Federal district court residing in and for the state of California or if there by no Federal jurisdiction, then
the court of competent jurisdiction of the State of California.

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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AMENDMENTS
This Agreement may only be amended by the written agreement of both parties.
GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement and all claims or disputes that arise hereunder are governed by the laws of the State of California.
INTERPRETATION
This Agreement shall be interpreted consistent with the intents and purposes indicated herein and in the case of
ambiguity or uncertainty in any term in this Agreement, such term shall be construed as if both parties were equal
drafters of this Agreement and equally the cause of the existence of such uncertainty or ambiguity.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and all
prior or contemporaneous understandings, whether oral or in writing, between the parties hereto (and their
representatives) with respect to the subject matter hereof are superseded by this Agreement. No limitations,
modifications, supplements, waivers or changes herein or hereof shall be binding on any party hereto unless set forth
in a document duly executed by or on behalf of the party to be charged.
SEVERABILITY
In the event any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is for any reason rendered void or unenforceable, such
offending term, condition or provision shall be stricken and all remaining terms, conditions and provisions shall remain
and continue as valid and enforceable obligations of the parties hereto.
COUNTERPARTS
This Agreement may be executed by the parties in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an
original copy.
EXECUTION
Agreed to the terms contained herein this ___ day
of _____________________, __________.

Agreed to the terms contained herein this ___ day
of _____________________, __________.

ARTEX RISK SOLUTIONS, INC.

INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY

By

By

Karl N. Huish
Executive Vice President – North America

[Formal ICRMA Representative Name]
[Independent Cities Risk Management Authority
Representative Title]

ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services
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EXHIBIT A
FEES
ARTEX FINANCIAL SERVICES FEE
Annual Financial Services Fee:
• $72,613 from execution through June 30, 2018, due and payable by December 31, 2017
• $200,000 for fiscal year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, automatically renewed for two additional annual
terms, due in monthly installments on the first of each month beginning August 1
RENEGOTIATION
Either party may request to reopen negotiations on the Annual Financial Services Fee at least ninety (90) days prior to
the July 1 renewal each year if the party feels that Artex is over or under compensated for the financial services
performed herein. Upon such request both parties shall renegotiate the Annual Financial Services Fee in good faith.
The Annual Financial Services Fee is subject to any renegotiation above described.
PARTICIPATION ADJUSTMENTS
Artex will deliver the certain financial services outlined in this Agreement for the Annual Financial Services Fee of
$200,000. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent ICRMA from adding new members, or having members withdraw.
However, for the term of this Agreement, ICRMA and Artex agree that the Annual Financial Services Fee will change
for either the addition or withdrawal of members. For member withdrawals or additions, the Annual Financial Services
Fee will be adjusted proportionate to the amount of premium from such terminating or additional member compared to
the total premium in the ICRMA program, but in no event shall the Annual Financial Services Fee be adjusted
downward more than ten percent (10%) per year.
FEES FOR ADDITIONAL SERVICES
ICRMA agrees to pay as an additional fee to Artex for other services provided by Artex to ICRMA not described
in Exhibit B an amount calculated on the basis of hours worked based on the following rates:
Artex Hourly
Name
Role
Rate
Diana Dunkin-Vasquez Account $250
Executive
Fay Okamoto
SVP
$250
Matt Anderson
Senior
$225
Captive
Manager
David Woods
Captive
$180
Manager
As assigned
$140
As assigned
$120

ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services
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Finance Director
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Finance Manager

Senior Accountant
Staff Accountant
Staff Accountant -Junior
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EXHIBIT B
ARTEX OBLIGATIONS
In exchange for the Financial Services Fee (as defined above), but subject to the Exclusions listed, Artex agrees to
use its best efforts to provide to ICRMA the following services as necessary, required or appropriate:
In General
1) Performance Evaluation
Artex agrees to be evaluated by performance measures as jointly developed and agreed upon each year of this
Agreement. Such performance measures shall be appended to this Agreement.
2) Ethics & Conflict of Interest
Artex shall conduct its business so as to fulfill all legal and ethical requirements and standards of the industry and
the State of California, and shall place the best interests of ICRMA ahead of any other concerns in the provision
of Service under this Agreement. To this end, Artex:
a. Warrants that it will adhere to its ethical obligations to ICRMA to deliver honest, transparent, competitive, and
meaningful service and advice;
b. Does not, to the best of its knowledge as of the signing of this Agreement, have a conflict of interest in
carrying out the provisions of this Agreement;
c. Shall make every good faith attempt to avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest between Artex,
ICRMA, and any provider of any insurance product or Service, and will promptly notify ICRMA of any real or
potential conflict of interest;
d. Agrees to provide the President with a copy of Artex’s most recent Ethics Statement or Code, to be updated
as necessary, or make Artex’s Compliance Statement available on Artex’s website; and
e. Acknowledges the mutual trust and confidence by both Parties, and that all actions of Artex under this
Agreement shall be for the specific benefit of ICRMA and its Program as a whole.
3) Disaster Continuity
Artex agrees to establish and implement a Disaster Recovery Plan to secure, and if necessary, restore
information, physical and electronic data that may be in Artex’s possession, affected by a security breach, force
majeure or natural disaster. In addition, Artex will make commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that, at all
times, it has a sufficient number of trained personnel on hand to meet its obligations under this Agreement during
any such event.
4) Insurance & Bond
Consistent with the Contractual Risk Transfer Manual ICRMA uses, Artex shall procure and maintain for the
duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by Artex, its agents, representatives, or
employees. In the alternative, subject to Board approval, Artex may submit proof of self-insurance sufficient to
satisfy the minimum requirements described herein.
Artex shall maintain insurance policies for the work to be provided to ICRMA. Before commencement of work,
Artex will deliver to ICRMA certificates of insurance evidencing that the following insurance coverage is in place
with insurance carriers with an A.M. Best rating of A-or better and licensed to do business in the state of
California:
a) Workers Compensation and Employers liability coverage. The workers compensation coverage shall meet
the statutory limits, and the employers’ liability coverage will have limits of at least $500,000 each accident or
disease. Coverage shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of ICRMA;
b) Commercial General Liability Insurance, including coverage for premises and completed operations liability
with limits of $1,000,000 Each Occurrence and at least $2,000,000 General aggregate. Coverage should be
primary and non-contributory, and include waiver of subrogation clause. Artex will also name ICRMA as an
Additional Insured.
c) Business Automobile Liability Insurance, covering any owned or non-owned and hired auto with limits of at
least $1,000,000 each accident;
d) Umbrella Liability coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 aggregate and $5,000,000 per occurrence including
additional insured clause; Coverage should be primary and non-contributory and include waiver of
subrogation clause; and
ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services
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e) Professional Errors and Omissions limit $10,000,000 Per Occurrence. If coverage is written on a Claims
Made basis, it should include extended reporting conditions of no less than two (2) years.
f) Employee Dishonesty insurance covering all employees or contractors with limits of not less than $1,000,000.
The policy shall contain an endorsement covering Client’s Funds or third party coverage for the full limit.
Artex shall maintain all such insurance policies in full force and effect at all times during the performance of the
services and with regard to Professional Liability and Crime, for a period of two (2) years after ending of the final
contract. The certificate of insurance will be provided prior to beginning work and such certificates of insurance
should include a 30-day notice of cancellation and non-renewal to ICRMA. Approval of any of Artex’s insurance
policies by ICRMA shall not relieve Artex of any obligations contained herein, including Artex’s defense
obligations and indemnity obligations set forth herein, even for claims in excess of Artex’s policy limits.
Artex shall procure and maintain a two million ($2,000,000) Fidelity Bond that covers those Artex staff members
who provide services to ICRMA in those activities relating to this Agreement.
a. Specific Provisions / Endorsements
The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the
following provision: ICRMA, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as insureds as
respects: liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of Artex, or automobiles owned,
leased, hired, or borrowed by Artex.
b. Acceptable Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with issued by an insurance company currently authorized by the Insurance
Commissioner to transact business of insurance in the State Of California with a current AM Best’s rating of
no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to ICRMA.
c. Proof of Insurance
Artex shall furnish ICRMA with certificates evidencing the coverage required by this clause. All certificates are
to be received and approved by ICRMA before work commences.
d. Limitation
Insurance obtained by Artex does not apply or shall not be construed as being applicable for damages arising
out of the bodily injury to any person, personal injury to any person, or damage to property of others resulting
from the negligence of ICRMA and its officers, employees, and agents, if applicable.
5) Staffing & Employment Matters
a. General Duties
Artex and all of its employees, and any support staff hired and appointed by ICRMA, shall act for and on
behalf of ICRMA in accordance with applicable California law, and also in accordance all that is contained in
Exhibit D attached hereto.
b. Independent Contractor
It is understood and agreed that Artex is engaged to perform services under this Agreement as an
independent contractor. The Parties hereto agree that neither has any relationship with or contractual liability
to the other with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement other than as set forth herein.
c. Key Personnel
Artex agrees Key Personnel will be responsible for performance of the designated functions for ICRMA.
Should such personnel become unavailable to perform Services for ICRMA, Artex agrees to replace, as soon
as practical, such personnel with personnel of comparable skills.
d. Equal Opportunity Employer
Artex shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion,
color, sex, age, or natural origin.
e. Fair Employment Practices
Artex agrees that all persons employed by Artex shall be treated equally by Artex without regard to or
because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, handicap, sex, sexual preference, or age and in
compliance with all anti-discrimination laws of the United States of America and the State of California. Artex
agrees that during the performance of this Agreement, Artex and any other parties with whom Artex may
subcontract, shall adhere to equal opportunity employment practices to assure that applicants and employees
are treated equally and are not discriminated against because of their race, religious creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, handicap, sex, sexual preference, or age. Artex agrees to state in all of its solicitations or
advertisements for applicants for employment that Artex is an “Equal Opportunity Employer” or that all
qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to their race, religious creed,
color, national origin, ancestry, handicap, sex, sexual preference, or age. Artex shall, if requested to do so by
ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services
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ICRMA, certify to ICRMA that Artex has not, in the performance of this Agreement, discriminated against
applicants or employees because of their membership in a protected class.
From Execution until Jan 3, 2018 (Transition with James Marta & Company LLP (“Marta”))
1) Seek to receive instruction and education from Marta to come up to speed on the role that Artex will
assume with respect to ICRMA after January 3, 2018.
After January 3, 2018
1) Executive-Level Financial Management
a. Provide executive-level guidance to ICRMA and its Governing Board for financial matters in line with strategic
and long-term financial plans and priorities, while implementing Board financial policies and ensuring
continuous financial improvement as a pool.
b. Provide financial analysis and recommendations to the ICRMA Governing Board regarding:
i. Emerging trends in risk pool finances as well as changes in industry standards;
ii. Selection of service providers as appropriate;
iii. The results of various actuarial studies, financial audits, claims audits, and investment reports; and
iv. Financial benchmarks, surplus targets, retention levels, and member rates.
c. Provide financial oversight of the activities of the independent investment advisors, actuaries, external
auditors, or other providers of finance or accounting related services to ICRMA.
d. Oversee and manage all financial matters, including but not limited to all day-to-day and long-term financial
management of ICRMA, in line with ICRMA governing documents, agreements, established policies and
procedures, strategic goals, industry standards, and legal constraints.
e. Ensure compliance in financial matters with relevant laws and regulatory requirements
f. Cooperate with requests for financial information and documents requested by regulators
g. Prepare or provide for the preparation and submission of regulatory filings listed in Exhibit E in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations in coordination with ICRMA’s various vendors.
h. Prepare the annual budget for ICRMA approval and oversee its implementation.
i. Provide timely delivery of financial statements, investment reports, annual budgets, audited financials, and
management letters, particularly to keep the Governing Board informed on the financial status and
performance of ICRMA.
j. Implement all program billing, collections, banking, and disbursements in accordance with all Boardestablished procedures, with appropriate records of each.
k. Develop premium and refund/assessment amounts by:
• Using payroll/loss information as collected/compiled by ICRMA administrator and claims managers
• Directing the activities of the ICRMA actuary
• Calculating annual contributions in pooled programs
• Verifying premium rates
• Calculating refunds or assessments
l. Calculate annual renewal allocations using pool quotes received from ICRMA’s administrator and the ICRMA
allocation formula to determine members annual premiums for renewal
m. Collect reinsurance reimbursements, excess insurance reimbursements, primary insurance reimbursements,
and other reimbursements due from reinsurers, insurers, or vendors
n. Coordinate activities with other service providers to assure ICRMA program and service success
o. Maintain any additional financial or other records as may be necessary or appropriate to the operation of
ICRMA, including but not limited to financial reports to ICRMA members, service providers and interested
parties.
p. Complete any other related duties and/or special reports as requested by a duly authorized official
q. Respond to requests for confirmation made by member agencies' financial auditors
r. Provide advice and assistance to member agencies, as requested
2) Management’s Annual Financial Statements
a. Prepare financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America based on information provided by you; and
b. Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of financial statements
without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be
made to the financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
c. We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide to
us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion.
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Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion nor provide any assurance on the financial
statements.
d. Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any financial statement misstatements,
including those caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the entity or
noncompliance with laws and regulations.
3) Accounts Payable
Process payables, including receive and record all invoices, obtain approval when necessary, and prepare and
issue checks per ICRMA policy, specifically:
a. Obtain and or gather vendor invoices on a semi monthly basis or as directed
b. Record by placing invoices into Intacct and enter transaction to submit to the ICRMA administrator for
approval
c. Once the invoices are approved, the Treasurer will receive notification to approve invoices
d. Once the Treasurer or other authorized signer approves the invoices, checks will be electronically submitted
to check service company to print and mail checks out to the vendors
4) Accounts Receivable / Billing
Process receivables, including verify demands for payment made upon ICRMA and prepare a warrant listing to
include all such demands made since the last warrant listing, specifically:
a. Receive and record invoices, receive and record payments, and follow up delinquent accounts
b. Obtain underwriting data and member premiums to be billed
c. Upload data into Intacct and send out electronic invoices to members
d. Upon receipt of payment, deposit the payment electronically via desktop deposit or wire transfer
e. Ensure upload is accurate
5) General Ledger / Journal Entries
In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), maintain detailed records of all income, expenditures, deposits, and
withdrawals, including maintain check registers of all applicable accounts and submit to Board in a timely manner,
specifically:
a. Perform accrual journal entries every month
b. Enter periodic adjusting entries
c. Ensure each account has supporting documentation attached.
6) Investment Reconciliation
Reconcile the investment activity as reported by both the independent investment advisor and custodian bank and
monitor investment activities.
a. Reconcile to custodian statement.
b. Verify balance to advisors statement.
c. Review securities to ensure that investments are being transacted in accordance with ICRMA’s investment
policy.
d. Act as liaison between associated investment advisors and custodian banks, as required
7) Cash Management & Bank Reconciliation
a. Perform required money transfers between accounts and/or financial institutions per the ICRMA policies.
b. Reconcile all bank accounts on a monthly basis
c. Act as liaison between associated banks, as required.
8) Reporting
a. Quarterly and annual financial statements will be generated for fiscal year using economic resources
measurement approach and financial flow measurement focus.
b. Budget vs Actual report will be generated and available online.
c. Monthly report of cash receipts and disbursements will be prepared
d. Additional reports will be available online for viewing
9) Strategic Loss Review
Work with ICRMA’s administrator to review alternatives for financially strengthening ICRMA’s programs, and
report on such alternatives
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10) Data Management & Analysis
Coordinate with ICRMA’s administrator liability and workers’ compensation programs reports in the quarterly and
annual financial statements
11) Meeting Management & Support
Prepare for and staff ICRMA Governing Board, sub-committee and ad hoc meetings as well as special events and
retreats as determined by the Governing Board, including preparation and timely delivery of requested agenda
materials. Notwithstanding, Artex will not be obligated to provide in person staffing for meetings other than for 12
person travel instances (e.g., 2 people for 1 meeting is 2 person travel instances) in a given year. If ICRMA
requires more than this in a given year, then the excess will be treated as an additional service subject to an
additional fee.
12) Record Management & Transparency
Ensure implementation of processes and procedures relating to the protection of electronic data, including a
suitable security and back-up system for all stored data and a written policy with respect to disaster recovery,
physical and electronic data security, and electronic data retention, across vendors as per the standards for
Accreditation with Excellence by the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities.
13) Deliverables
a. Monthly
(i) Reconciliation of bank accounts on a monthly basis.
(ii) Process accounts payable
(iii) Accounts payable reconciliation (unpaid bills listing)
(iv) Record monthly receivable billing and reconcile
(v) Report of all cash receipts and disbursements
(vi) Perform treasury function as needed
(vii)Be available for board and committee meetings
b. Quarterly
(i) Prepare financial statement for board meetings, including:
•
Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet)
•
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position (Income Statement)
•
Cash Flow Statement
•
Report detailing all funds on hand, classified by depository
•
Budget versus Actual analysis
•
Notes to the financial statements
(ii) Review quarterly financial reports with the ICRMA Board, appropriate committee, and/or the Treasurer (in
the event of scheduling conflicts, Artex may meet with the Treasurer or other designated officer of ICRMA
and provide the required reports and update and/or send an alternate accountant to attend)
(iii) Provide claims accounting and analysis, including claims paid listing for all claims paid by ICRMA for the
most recent quarter and reconciliation among the pool administrator’s reports, actuary reports and the
general ledger
c. Annually
(i) Prepare and timely file Form 1099's with the Internal Revenue Service as appropriate
(ii) Assist the financial auditor during audit, including preparation of financial statements, footnote
disclosures, required supplementary information, and supplemental information, and making available
any other custom schedules and supporting work papers
(iii) Assist in filing of State Controller’s Annual Financial Transaction Report
(iv) Assist with filing audit report with County and State
(v) Perform calculation of premiums and refund/assessments
14) Additional Items
a. Ensure users have access to the Intacct dashboard providing key data and performance matrix.
b. Develop and maintain comprehensive budget by program
c. Review custodian and advisors statements
d. Collect reinsurance reimbursements, excess insurance reimbursements, primary insurance reimbursements,
and other reimbursements due from reinsurers, insurers, or vendors
e. Obtain loss data for the liability and workers’ compensation programs and record claim activity in the quarterly
and annual financial statements
f. Reconcile claim payment activity reported in the general ledger to the activity recorded in the loss data
g. Review actuarial studies and determine accuracy of data and reasonableness of estimates
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h.
i.
j.
k.
l.

Review claims audit and provide assistance in strengthening internal controls.
Work with external auditors on the financial audit
Calculate premium and refund/assessment amounts by member
Report all funds on deposit including receipts and disbursements of funds during the month just ended
Provide all supporting documents and answer questions from the external auditors, including, but not limited
to:
(i) Online access to files and supporting documents
(ii) Communicating significant accounting policies used
(iii) Communicate any discrepancies with prior accounting work performed
(iv) Communicate any lack of supporting documents

15) General Expectations
a. Provide appropriate staff, equipment, supplies and technological support for all of the above; support services
required to satisfactorily carry out the terms of this Agreement.
b. Perform its duties pursuant to and in accordance with the Governing Documents itemized in Exhibit D and all
applicable laws and regulations of the State of California and the United States of America.
c. Actively participate in industry activities (e.g., conferences) in order to develop professionally and maintain
visibility for ICRMA as a pool. In doing so, maintain contacts with public agency risk managers and the
insurance industry by participating in appropriate risk management and pool management related trade
organizations.
d. Artex will perform any other duties or task that would normally be part of a Finance department in the course
of similar business. Artex, when mutually agreed by ICRMA and Artex, may perform additional services
outside that normal scope. Additional fees may be negotiated on a case-by-case basis for these additional
services.
Exclusions
Notwithstanding the above enumerated services, the following are excluded from the obligations of Artex, and Artex is
not responsible for:
1) Items Prior to January 3, 2018
a. Accounting and the production of financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2017;
b. Creation, completion, filing, and transmission of all IRS Forms 1099 and 1098 required pertaining to financial
activity occurring in the year ending December 31, 2017;
c. Completion and filing with the respective agencies, the audit of ICRMA for the period ending June 30, 2017;
d. Completion and filing of the Special districts Financial Transactions Report pertaining to the year ending
December 31, 2017 and due January 31, 2018;
e. Reconciliations for the balance sheet accounts as of December 31, 2017;
f. Research on claims payments;
g. Prior assessment questions;
h. Accounting work due to current litigation from incidents arising prior to January 1, 2018; and
i. Any other matters pertaining to any period prior to January 1, 2018.

To the extent that ICRMA wishes Artex to perform any of the services described in this Exclusions section, such
services shall be considered additional services subject to the fees outlined in Exhibit A, pertaining to additional
services. If Artex performs such services, it will do as soon as reasonably possible, but it may not be able to meet
normal deadlines.
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EXHIBIT C
INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY OBLIGATIONS
In addition to other responsibilities retained, ICRMA will fulfill the responsibilities listed below:
• Provide Artex with all financial documents needed to perform its duties, including but not limited to documents
related to ICRMA created by or in the possession of other vendors or former vendors of ICRMA;
• Schedule and provide a calendar of meetings for the fiscal year in advance so that deadlines can be established
and travel arrangements made in advance;
• Provide Artex with the format of the financial reports that are needed by ICRMA and work with the Administrator
to define any additional reports that are needed to help manage the financial affairs of ICRMA;
• Promptly communicate with Artex;
• Pay all required Artex, domicile or third-party service provider invoices on time;
• Provide and require member agencies to provide on a timely basis any information required by Artex to carry out
its duties and obligations under this Agreement;
• Provide Artex access to ICRMA’s legal counsel and require that ICRMA’s legal counsel provide Artex with legal
advice on any and all legal matters having a bearing on and relevant to Artex’s obligations under this Agreement.
ICRMA also specifically agrees to provide or require that its vendors or former vendors provide the following to Artex:
• Trial balance as of September 30, 2017
• Chart of Accounts
• All audits for all years
• All actuary studies for all years
• All financials presented to the board for all years
• Finance Policies
• Authority Matrix for check requests and purchase orders
• Finance Agenda items by board meeting
• Approved budgets for all years
• Budgeted templates with respective files for the details
• Assessment spreadsheets with respective files
• All Filings with the respective agencies done for ICRMA
• Banking information, signature cards, established paperwork
• Information on ICRMA Credit Card
• Strategic Plan
• Engagement Letters for TPAS
• Financial Record Retention and Boxes at Marta's Office
• Special handling of specific Claims
• Copies of all Tax Filings
• Reconciliations of balance sheet accounts
• Vendor Contracts and W-9s
• Vendor List
• Member list and contact information
th
th
• Training time with Marta and Company (traveling December 5 and 6 , 2017), additional travel time on December
th
18 , 2017 if needed
• Any spreadsheets, reports, or additional information to complete the financial knowledge transfer
ICRMA specifically agrees to purchase Intacct software and also specifically agrees that the commencement of Artex’s
obligations and performance under this Agreement is contingent upon the purchase by ICRMA of the Intacct software.
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EXHIBIT D
GOVERNING DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Artex understands that its duties and obligations under this Agreement must be performed consistent with all of the
following (collectively “Governing Documents”):
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

ICRMA Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
ICRMA Bylaws
ICRMA Conflict of Interest Code
ICRMA Record Retention Policy
ICRMA Underwriting Manual
ICRMA Universal Data Specifications
Liability Program Bylaws
Liability Memorandum of Coverage
Liability TPA Performance Standards
Liability Program Litigation Management Policies & Procedures
Property Program Bylaws
Workers’ Compensation Program Bylaws
Workers’ Compensation Memorandum of Coverage
Workers’ Compensation TPA Performance Standards
Workers’ Compensation Program Litigation Management Policies & Procedures

This list shall include subsequent versions of each of the above as well as any additional applicable master program
documents, memoranda of coverage, resolutions, and the policies of ICRMA.
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EXHIBIT E
Regulatory Filings

As described in Exhibit A, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and in coordination with ICRMA’s various
vendors, Artex will prepare or provide for the preparation and submission of regulatory filings listed below:
FILINGS
Filing
1099 / 1098

Agency
Internal
Revenue
Service

Frequency

Notes

Annually

California State
Controller
Audited Financial
Statements*
County Auditor

Annually
within 12 months
of the end of each
fiscal year

CAL Gov’t. Code §§ 6505(c), 26909(a)(2)
See www.sco.ca.gov/ard_reporting.html
Must file in County in which ICRMA’s office resides (Currently
Orange County)

CAL Gov’t. Code § 53901

Operating Budget

County Auditor

Within 60 days of
the beginning of
the fiscal year as
required

Special Districts
Financial
Transactions Report

California State
Controller

Annually

Division of Local Government Fiscal Affairs Special District Unit;
See www.sco.ca.gov/ard_locinstr_districts_forms.html

*Artex is under no obligation to and ICRMA understands that Artex will not prepare this item; Artex is, however, obligated
to file it once prepared by the vendor contracted by ICRMA to prepare it.
AGENCY FILING LOCATIONS
Agency
California State
Controller
Orange County
Auditor

Send to

Notes

RDA-SDSupport@sco.ca.gov

Current address, subject to change

Leisha.bolland@ac.ocgov.com; Nancy.Ishida@ac.ocgov.com

Current address, subject to change

ICRMA / Artex – Financial Services

Page 14 of 14

Page 129 of 266

December 14, 2017

Governing Board

Subject:

Resolution 2017-01 Banking and Resolution 2017-02 LAIF

Action for consideration:
1) Adopt Resolution 2017-01, rescinding Resolutions 2016-02 and 2012-01, Establishing All Bank
Accounts, Credit Card, and Investment Services; and 2) Adopt Resolution 2017-02, rescinding
Resolution 1-2016, Authorizing Signers for the Investment of Monies in the Local Agency
Investment Fund.
Background:
At the June 2016 Board meeting, the Board approved Resolution 2016-02 Establishing All Bank
Accounts, Lines of Credit, and Investment Services. This resolution was revised to place the new
financial team on the banking and investment accounts. Because two signatures are required, three
financial team members were added to ensure there is always a backup. The Executive Director
(General Manager) was removed from the general account, which has been the practice for the past
18 months. She will continue to provide ongoing review and approval of payment requests for
compliance with contractual terms and the adopted budget.
The resolution continues to allow the ICRMA Executive Director/General Manager to maintain a
business credit card with a credit line of up to $20,000 to help eliminate the urgency to process
checks. The credit card is used primarily for meeting, training, and conference expenses.
Also attached for consideration and adoption is Resolution 2017-02 Authorizing Signers for the
Investment of Monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund. This resolution rescinds resolution 12016 and is being presented to reflect removal of staff members of James Marta and Company and
replacement with Artex staff members.
Attachments:
1. Resolution 2017-01 Establishing All Bank Accounts, Credit Card, and Investment Services
2. Resolution 2017-02 Authorizing Signers for the Investment of Monies in the Local Agency
Investment Fund
Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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RESOLUTION NO. 2017-01
RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE INDPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
ESTABLISHING ALL BANK ACCOUNTS, CREDIT CARD, AND INVESTMENT SERVICES
WHEREAS, the Governing Board (Board) of the Independent Cities Risk Management
Authority (ICRMA) has determined that it is in the best interest of the ICRMA to establish bank
and investment accounts for the deposit and disbursement of funds, and establishment of letters
of credit for satisfaction of State regulatory requirements,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board authorizes entry into all
agreements set forth in the Deposit Documents, which Documents it acknowledges having
received and read before any deposit account or special feature contemplated thereby is used.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows:
Section 1: This resolution rescinds Resolutions 2016-02 and 2012-01
Section 2: The following ICRMA officers or officials holding the title(s) specified herein below
are here by The authorized Signer(s) may sign/pay checks, make withdrawals, originate wire
transfers, make telephone transfers, establish investment management and custodial services,
night deposit relationships and online services, perform cash management activities and
subscribe to any additional banking product or service associated with the account(s).
General Account (requires two signatures):
1. President
2. Vice President
3. Treasurer
4. Finance Director
5. Finance Manager
6. Senior Accountant
Investment Account (requires one signature):
1. President
2. Vice President
3. Treasurer
4. Finance Director
5. Finance Manager
6. Senior Accountant
Section 3: This resolution shall remain in full force and effect until rescinded by the Board of
Directors of ICRMA by resolution and a copy of the resolution rescinding this resolution is
furnished to the Bank.
Section 4: The ICRMA Governing Board also authorizes the Executive Director/General
Manager to maintain a Business Credit Card with a credit line up to $20,000.
Section 5: The President acting alone is hereby authorized, in connection with wire transfers out
of our accounts at California Bank & Trust (or other bank, as authorized by the Board), to
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ICRMA
Resolution No. 2017-01
Page 2
designate persons who may request wire transfers and to execute and deliver such agreements,
documents, and other instruments and to perform such other acts, relating to wire transfers as the
Secretary shall approve. However, the President can only designate individuals listed above.
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the Governing
Board at a regular meeting of the Board on December 14, 2017, El Segundo, California, by the
following vote:
AYES
NOES
ABSTAIN
ABSENT

PRESIDENT
ATTEST:
__________________
ICRMA SECRETARY

__
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RESOLUTION 2017-02
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (ICRMA)
AUTHORIZING SIGNERS FOR THE INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE LOCAL
AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
WHEREAS, the Local Agency Investment Fund is established in the State Treasury under
Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of
investment by the State Treasurer; and
WHEREAS, the Governing Board hereby finds that the deposit and withdrawal of money in
the Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with Government Code 16429.1 et. seq. for the
purpose of investment as stated therein is in the best interests of the Independent Cities Risk
Management Authority (ICRMA).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board hereby authorizes the
deposit and withdrawal of ICRMA monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the State
Treasury in accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of
investment as provided therein.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows:
Section 1. This resolution rescinds Resolution 1-2016.
Section 2. The following ICRMA officers holding the title(s) specified herein below or their
successors in office are each hereby authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the
Local Agency Investment Fund and may execute and deliver any and all documents necessary or
advisable in order to effectuate the purposes of this resolution and the transactions contemplated
hereby:
Tom Cody
(Name)

Nick Kimball
(Name)

Joseph Lillio
(Name)

President
(Title)

Vice President
(Title)

Treasurer
(Title)

(Signature)

(Signature)

(Signature)
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Diana Dunkin-Vasquez
(Name)

Matt Anderson
(Name)

David Woods
(Name)

Finance Director
(Title)

Finance Manager
(Title)

Senior Accountant
(Title)

(Signature)

(Signature)

(Signature)

Section 3. This resolution shall remain in full force and effect until rescinded by the Board of
Directors of ICRMA by resolution and a copy of the resolution rescinding this resolution is filed with
the State Treasurer’s Office.
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the Governing
Board at a regular meeting of the Board on December 14, 2017, El Segundo, California, by the
following vote:
AYES
NOES
ABSTAIN
ABSENT

PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

SECRETARY
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Governing Board
Subject:

December 14, 2017

Cost Allocation Formula Review

Action for consideration:
Both Programs:
• Affirm the following cost allocation methodology to be implemented with the 2018-19 fiscal
year:
o Use 10 years of loss and exposure history
o Approve a formula that allocates losses based upon 70% losses (experience) and 30%
exposure (payroll)
o Eliminate the ex-mods
• Implement a premium cap by calculating necessary funding increases then applying a 20%
cap to limit the minimum/maximum change for members
Liability Program:
• Increase member retained limits for the following members for the 2018-19 coverage period:
Hawthorne, Huntington Park, Lynwood, and Monterey Park $500,000, and Inglewood $2
million
• Cap losses at $3 million
• Eliminate the $100,000 member retained limit
Workers’ Compensation Program:
• Cap losses at $2 million
• Increase member retained limits for the following members for the 2018-19 coverage period
as follows: Baldwin Park $750,000 and El Segundo $500,000
Background:
ICRMA last evaluated its cost allocation formulas in 2015. At that time the committee was focused
on the experience modifier (ex-mod) formula, and identified the following primary objectives for the
use of an ex-mod in ICRMA’s cost allocation model:
• Allocates costs in a manner that provides rough equity over the long term;
• Provides for stability in annual contributions;
• Does not hinder competitiveness;
• Motivates members to emphasize loss control; and
• Easy to understand.
With these objectives in mind, the committee reviewed and the Board approved the following
changes to the ex-mod formula which were implemented with the 2016-17 fiscal year:
• Lower the credibility by adjusting the credibility factor from .50 to .75;
• Apply 10% declining weights to the incurred losses for each loss year as they age; and
• Asked that information be provided to determine whether increases to member retained
limits were necessary
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In the meantime other changes occurred (increased incurred losses over the past several years and
changes to the legal environment) that drastically impacted the liability program’s performance. In
order to quickly address these issues, President Cody appointed a financial ad hoc committee
(Committee) to review ICRMA’s member retained limits and the cost allocation formulas. Joe Lillio
(El Segundo), Anil Gandhy (Downey), and Nick Kimball (San Fernando), served on the Committee.
In addition, Rickey Manbahal (Hawthorne) and Annie Yaung (Monterey Park) participated in the
meetings.
The Committee met twice to analyze information prepared by actuary Mindy Steichen of Milliman
and focused on long-term solutions while being mindful of the impact to the members. The primary
goals were to ensure member retained limits were set at optimal amounts and to ensure the cost
allocation formula is equitable. This report presents the ad hoc committee’s recommendations
regarding member retained limits and modification of ICRMA’s cost allocation formulas.
The actuary developed several models for review. After discussion, the committee asked the actuary
to display the following assumptions for the Board’s affirmation. The assumptions are also outlined
in Exhibit 1 of both program attachments and include the following:
•
•
•
•
•

Use 10 years loss data
Allocate costs by weighting 70% to losses and 30% to exposure (payroll)
Cap claims at the current pool retained limit of $3 million/occurrence (liability) and $2
million/occurrence (workers’ compensation)
Use a loss trend of 1%
After applying overall funding need increases, limit member premium changes to +/-20%

Allocation of costs using new formula
Ultimately the committee observed that any change to the model would present advantages and
disadvantages. The committee carefully examined each option including the volatility, un-capped
premium, and member cost increases under each scenario.
After reviewing several models, the committee identified an option that combined increasing
member retained limits for five members in the liability program and two in the WC program with
an overall 20% cap on the costs. The committee discussed the alternative of keeping member
retained limits as-is and using the uncapped premium, but that was viewed as less desirable.
Exhibit 2 depicts costs by member upon application of the assumptions above. The Committee asked
that the exhibit be provided without member names to ensure focus on the proposed concept rather
than evaluation of the impact to a particular city.
It is important to remember that the exhibits reflect an estimate of what the costs would have been
for the 2017-18 coverage period. The illustrations are based upon December 31, 2016 loss data and
2017-18 funding estimates and reinsurance premiums. Changes will occur to all of those variables,
thus the estimates provided will not be reflective of what ICRMA members will pay in 2018-19.
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Member retained limits (MRL):
The actuary proposed a combination of new MRLs for every member with a debit greater than 15%
and an overall premium cap increase/decrease of 20%. Because the MRL increase was substantial in
some cases, the committee recommended a mid-point MRL, when available or appropriate, between
the city’s current MRL and the actuarially proposed MRL. For example, a member with an MRL of
$500,000, with an actuarially proposed MRL of $1,000,000, was placed at $750,000. Alternatively, a
member with an MRL of $250,000, with an actuarially proposed MRL of $500,000, was not placed
at $300,000 because the $50,000 increase would not be expected to materially impact the city’s
losses for the pool. Using this methodology, estimated premium amounts for 2017-18 are illustrated
in Column 11 of Exhibit 2.
ICRMA’s Board has the authority to alter member retained limits:
ICRMA Bylaws:
Section 5.1 - Governing Board
5.1.3 The Governing Board reserves unto itself the authority to do the following (except where
specifically otherwise noted, the majority of the Governing Board members present at a meeting may
take action)
…
5.1.3.5 Alter a member’s retained limit;
Liability Program Bylaws:
Section 2.2 Retained Limits
…
2.2.2 The participant may only alter the retained limit at the inception of a program year upon (60)
days advance written notice.
2.2.3 The Governing Board, as provided in Section 5.1.3.5 of the Authority Bylaws, may also require,
at the inception of a program year, a member entity to have a retained limit different from the
expiring program year, upon 60 days advance written notice.
Workers’ Compensation Program Bylaws:
Section 2.2 Retained Limits
2.2.2 The participant may only alter the retained limit at the inception of a program year upon sixty
(60) days advance written notice.
2.2.3 The Governing Board, as provided in Section 5.1.3.5 of the Authority Bylaws, may also require,
at the inception of a program year, a member entity to have a retained limit different from the
expiring program year, upon sixty (60) days advance written notice.

If members do not wish to change their MRLs, and the Board does not want to enforce an
adjustment, the alternative would be to use the uncapped premium allocations (see column 4 on
Exhibit 2) at the current MRLs.
Loss Ratios
Loss ratios (Exhibit 3) were also developed for each member to illustrate the “debits and credits”
evaluated by the committee in evaluating formula equity. The 10-year average loss ratios were
calculated by dividing the total incurred losses that fell between the member retained limit and $3
million (liability) or $2 million (WC), by the premium paid by each member during that same
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period. If the 10-year average loss ratio is greater than 100%, the member has presented losses to the
pool that are greater than the contributions it made during that period.
The Ad Hoc Committee recommends Board approval of the following:
Both Programs:
• Affirm the following cost allocation methodology to be implemented with the 2018-19 fiscal
year:
o Use 10 years of loss and exposure history
o Approve a formula that allocates losses based upon 70% losses (experience) and 30%
exposure (payroll)
o Eliminate the ex-mods
• Implement a premium cap by calculating necessary funding increases (e.g. 7% actuarial loss
funding increase), then applying a 20% cap to limit the minimum/maximum change for
members
Liability Program:
• Increase member retained limits for the 2018-19 coverage period for the following members:
o Hawthorne
$500,000 (currently $250,000)
o Huntington Park
$500,000 (currently $250,000)
o Inglewood
$2,000,000 (currently $1,500,000)
o Lynwood
$500,000 (currently $100,000)
o Monterey Park
$500,000 (currently $300,000)
• Cap losses at $3 million
• Eliminate the $100,000 member retained limit
Workers’ Compensation Program:
• Cap losses at $2 million
• Increase member retained limits for the 2018-19 coverage period for the following members:
o Baldwin Park $750,000 (currently $500,000)
o El Segundo $500,000 (currently $350,000)
The proposed changes will address the challenges identified with the existing model which have
resulted in effectively incentivizing members with positive loss experience to leave the pool, ensure
members have appropriate retained limits based upon their loss experience, and serve as an incentive
to attract prospective members with positive loss records to consider ICRMA.
Attachments:

Allocation of Liability Program Costs
Allocation of Workers’ Compensation Program Costs

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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15800 Bluemound Road
Suite 100
Brookfield, WI 53005-6069
USA
Tel +1 262 784-2250
Fax +1 262 923-3686
milliman.com

Memorandum
DATE:

December 6, 2017

TO:

Independent Cities Risk Management Association

FROM:

Mindy Steichen

RE:

Allocation of Liability Program Costs

Milliman, Inc. (Milliman) has been retained by Independent Cities Risk Management Association (ICRMA)
to provide allocations of their 2017/2018 program costs for the liability program to the member cities. This
memorandum summarizes the allocation of the premium to the member cities based on claims experience
and exposure information provided to us for the 2006/2007 through 2015/2016 claim periods. Data used
in our analysis was valued as of December 31, 2016. The allocation assumptions were provided by
ICRMA’s pool administrator, Risk Pool Administrators.
Limitations on Distribution
Milliman’s work has been prepared solely for the internal use of ICRMA. No portion of Milliman’s work may
be provided to any other party without Milliman’s prior written consent. Milliman does not intend to benefit
or create a legal duty to any third party recipient of its work. Milliman’s work may not be filed with the SEC
or other securities regulatory bodies. In addition, references to Milliman or its estimates in communication
with third parties are not authorized.
Milliman’s consent to release its work product to any third party may be conditioned on the third party
signing a Third Party Release Agreement, subject to the following exceptions:
(a) ICRMA may provide a copy of Milliman’s work to its auditor to be used solely for audit purposes. In the
event the auditor’s audit reveals any error or inaccuracy in the data underlying Milliman’s work, Milliman
requests the auditor or ICRMA notify Milliman as soon as possible.
(b) ICRMA may provide a copy of Milliman’s work to governmental entities, as required by law.
(c) ICRMA may provide a copy of this report to its insurers, insurance brokers, and current or prospective
excess insurers provided they agree not to use Milliman’s work for any purpose other than to provide
services to ICRMA and agree not to distribute the work to any other person or entity.
In the event Milliman consents to release its work product, it must be provided in its entirety. We
recommend that any such party have its own actuary or other qualified professional review the work product
to ensure that the party understands the assumptions and uncertainties inherent in our estimates. No third
party recipient of Milliman’s work product should rely upon Milliman’s work product.
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Any reader of this report agrees that they shall not use Milliman’s name, trademarks or service marks, or
refer to Milliman directly or indirectly in any third party communication without Milliman’s prior written
consent for each such use or release, which consent shall be given in Milliman’s sole discretion
Assumptions
Attached Exhibit 1 summarizes the assumptions used in the premium allocations to member districts.
These assumptions were provided by Risk Pool Administrators.
Program Amounts
The 2017/2018 total program amount (premium) of $14,765,053 for the liability program was provided to
us by Risk Pool Administrators. We are not opining on the reasonability of this figure.
Member Losses
We were provided with incurred loss data evaluated as of December 31, 2016 for each member city for
liability for the 2006/2007 through 2015/2016 claim periods. We used losses from this 10-year period. We
trended each individual claim to the 2017 trend year using a trend rate of 1.0% per year. We then used the
portion of the trended losses between each City’s member retained limit (MRL) and the limits used in our
analysis as follows:

Liability

Limits Used in Analysis
$3,000,000

For each member city, we then added the trended and capped loss amounts to determine total incurred
losses in the 10-year period, and then calculated the city’s losses as a percentage of the total.
Exposure Measures
We were provided with 2016/2017 payroll for each member as an exposure measure. We weighted the
payroll by a MRL adjustment factor to account for the different limits retained by member. The weighted
payroll for each member was used in the allocation to calculate the member’s share relative to the total.
Loss Exposure Weights
We used a loss to exposure weighting of 70% losses and 30% exposure.
New MRL Scenarios
We also provided scenarios which reflect increased MRL’s for some of the district’s with the highest debits.
Guidance was provided by ICMRA’s pool administrators in selecting the proposed MRL’s. The total
premium collected in these scenarios was reduced based on historical losses which would be eliminated
under the proposed MRL’s.
Allocations
On attached Exhibit 2 we display the weighting of the 10-year incurred losses and 2016/2017 exposure
measures for each member using the 70/30 weighting. The results of this weighting are displayed in the
“uncapped” column as well as the percentage change from each member’s current 2017/2018 premium.
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Minimum/Maximum Percentage Change from 2017/2018 Premium
Exhibit 2 also provides an allocation using the same assumptions as previously described but limited to a
minimum and maximum 20% change for each member from their 2017/2018 contribution as directed by
pool management. The adjusted premium amounts were calculated by applying the overall change from
2017/2018 to each member. The final allocation for each scenario is re-balanced after applying the
minimum and maximum in order to achieve the total loss contribution amount. This exhibit also displays
what each member’s contribution for 2016/2017 was and the percentage change for 2017/2018.
Finally, this exhibit displays the results of increased MRL’s for five members where the new results have
also been capped at the 20%.
Loss Ratios
Exhibit 3 provides a 10-year loss ratio for each member city. The loss ratio is calculated by dividing the 10year history of losses in the pool layer by the 10-year contributions for each member. The contributions
only include reinsurance and loss costs and are displayed both with and without assessments.
Qualifications and Limitations
In performing this analysis we have relied on data and other information provided to us by Risk Pool
Administrator and Ms. Beth Lyons, Senior Pool Administrator for ICRMA. We have not audited or verified
this data and other information. If the underlying data or information is inaccurate or incomplete, the results
of our analysis may likewise be inaccurate or incomplete.
We have performed a limited review of the data used directly in our analysis for reasonableness and
consistency and have not found material defects in the data. If there are material defects in the data, it is
possible that they would be uncovered by a detailed, systematic review and comparison of the data to
search for data values that are questionable or relationships that are materially inconsistent. Such a review
was beyond the scope of our assignment.
In performing this evaluation, we have assumed that ICRMA (a) used its best efforts to supply accurate and
complete data, and (b) did not knowingly provide any inaccurate data.
The premium allocations provided in this memo are based on the assumptions and limitations described.
Different allocation results would be obtained if different assumptions were used. We acknowledge that
there are various methods to allocate costs to members.
We relied on Risk Pool Administrators for the total premium amounts, loss data, and for the assumptions
underlying the allocations.
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Independent Cities Risk Management Association.

MMS/bas
cc:

Debbie James

J:\CLIENT\ICR\2017\12Dec\Memo-Allocation of Liability Only(Rev. 12-6-17).docx
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Exhibit 1

DRAFT
Independent Cities Risk Management Association
Liability Program
Allocation of Premium to Member
Assumptions

Original
Premium Amount

New MRL

14,765,053

Number of Years of Loss Data Used

13,750,000

10

Allocation Selection Percentages
% 10-Year Losses
% 2016-2017 Payroll
Total

70.0%
30.0%
100.0%

Loss Cap
Pool Coverage Limit
MRL to Loss Limit

3,000,000
3,000,000

Trend Year Beginning 7/1
Loss Trend

2017
1.0%

Percentage Change from 2017-2018 Premium
Minimum/Maximum % Change

Milliman

20.0%
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Exhibit 2

DRAFT
Independent Cities Risk Management Association
Liability Program
Allocation of 2017-2018 Premium to Member
10-Year Loss History1, 70/30 Loss/Exposure Weight, $3M Pool limit

(1)

(2)

Member Name
City A
City B
City C
City D
City E
City F
City G
City H
City I
City J
City K
City L
City M
City N
City O
City P

2016-2017
Premium
455,694
616,201
1,148,562
1,466,740
1,641,069
1,012,903
332,100
395,411
1,566,402
1,045,521
788,221
340,416
998,539
599,106
550,811
651,690

2017-2018
Premium
559,426
659,769
1,519,075
1,312,004
1,770,469
1,286,799
341,412
444,026
1,386,868
1,111,770
1,071,224
288,618
1,061,905
633,110
608,294
710,284

TOTAL

13,609,386

14,765,053

1
2

(3)
= (2) / (1)

% Change
from
2016-2017
Premium
22.8%
7.1%
32.3%
-10.5%
7.9%
27.0%
2.8%
12.3%
-11.5%
6.3%
35.9%
-15.2%
6.3%
5.7%
10.4%
9.0%

(4)

(5)
= (4) / (2)

(6)

(7)
= (6) / (2)

Uncapped
Premium
to Member
1,979,906
783,843
1,788,177
1,532,688
2,044,139
1,442,563
297,145
385,259
1,125,079
877,712
789,909
211,286
669,584
342,363
271,091
224,310

Uncapped 20% Capped 20% Capped
Percentage
Premium
Percentage
Change
to Member
Change
253.9%
671,311
20.0%
18.8%
791,723
20.0%
17.7%
1,822,890
20.0%
16.8%
1,568,780
19.6%
15.5%
2,092,273
18.2%
12.1%
1,476,533
14.7%
-13.0%
304,142
-10.9%
-13.2%
394,331
-11.2%
-18.9%
1,151,572
-17.0%
-21.1%
910,360
-18.1%
-26.3%
877,159
-18.1%
-26.8%
236,332
-18.1%
-36.9%
869,529
-18.1%
-45.9%
518,415
-18.1%
-55.4%
498,095
-18.1%
-68.4%
581,608
-18.1%

14,765,053

14,765,053

(8)

Current
MRL
100,000
250,000
1,500,000
250,000
300,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
750,000
750,000
2,000,000
8,000,000
250,000
300,000
250,000
300,000

(9)

Actuarially
Suggested
MRL
1,000,000
500,000
2,000,000
750,000
750,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
750,000
750,000
2,000,000
8,000,000
250,000
300,000
250,000
300,000

(10)

Selected
MRL
500,000
500,000
2,000,000
500,000
500,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
750,000
750,000
2,000,000
8,000,000
250,000
300,000
250,000
300,000

(11)

Selected
Selected
MRL
MRL
20% Capped 20% Capped
Premium2 Percentage
to Member
Change
670,554
19.9%
645,758
-2.1%
1,324,518
-12.8%
1,172,161
-10.7%
1,961,174
10.8%
1,542,417
19.9%
323,295
-5.3%
422,316
-4.9%
1,238,601
-10.7%
950,459
-14.5%
856,979
-20.0%
230,894
-20.0%
849,524
-20.0%
506,488
-20.0%
486,635
-20.0%
568,227
-20.0%
13,750,000

Ten-Year Losses include losses in 7/1/06-6/30/07 through 7/1/15-6/30/16 periods.
Premium at Selected MRLs estimated based on losses eliminated.
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Exhibit 3

DRAFT
Independent Cities Risk Management Association
Liability Program
Evaluated as of 12/31/16
Calculation of Ten-Year Loss Ratios by City

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)=(3)/(2)

(5)

2

City
City of Lynwood
City of Monterey Park
City of Hawthorne
City of Inglewood
City of Downey
City of El Monte
City of Huntington Park
City of San Fernando
City of El Segundo
City of Alhambra
City of South Gate
City of Baldwin Park
City of Bell1
City of Hermosa Beach
City of Fullerton
City of Glendora
TOTAL

Total
Ten Year2
Premium3
3,269,084
4,537,243
5,027,288
5,932,274
2,270,093
5,281,055
3,982,547
1,819,219
4,364,643
7,076,865
5,734,873
3,080,512
463,576
3,601,010
1,713,600
2,869,448
61,023,330

Ten Year
Incurred Losses
in Layer
Between
MRL and $3M
7,749,146
7,289,900
4,958,045
5,334,030
2,000,000
4,323,307
2,455,858
1,052,419
2,292,942
3,500,000
1,224,942
640,026
50,000
276,786
0
0
43,147,400

Ten Year2
Average
Loss Ratio
237.0%
160.7%
98.6%
89.9%
88.1%
81.9%
61.7%
57.9%
52.5%
49.5%
21.4%
20.8%
10.8%
7.7%
0.0%
0.0%
70.7%

Total
Ten Year2
Premium3 with
Assessments
5,246,862
6,252,458
7,427,741
8,017,398
2,927,629
7,409,087
5,654,391
2,667,488
6,148,722
10,328,859
8,745,410
4,458,080
550,696
5,307,233
1,713,600
4,107,185
86,962,840

(6)=(3)/(5)
With
Assessments
Ten Year2
Average
Loss Ratio
147.7%
116.6%
66.8%
66.5%
68.3%
58.4%
43.4%
39.5%
37.3%
33.9%
14.0%
14.4%
9.1%
5.2%
0.0%
0.0%
49.6%

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)=(9)/(2)
2

Number
of Claims in
ICRMA Layer
15
7
13
5
2
7
3
3
2
2
7
2
1
4
0
0

Selected MRL
Number
of Claims in
ICRMA Layer
4
4
3
5
2
7
2
3
2
2
7
2
1
4
0
0

Ten Year
Incurred Losses
in Layer Between
Selected MRL
and $3M
5,013,789
6,263,648
3,364,025
2,834,030
2,000,000
4,323,307
1,786,567
1,052,419
2,292,942
3,500,000
1,224,942
640,026
50,000
276,786
0
0

Selected MRL
Ten Year2
Average
Loss Ratio
153.4%
138.0%
66.9%
47.8%
88.1%
81.9%
44.9%
57.9%
52.5%
49.5%
21.4%
20.8%
10.8%
7.7%
0.0%
0.0%

73

48

34,622,481

56.7%

1

The Premium and Losses are two-year totals for the City of Bell.
The Ten-Year Premium and Losses include premium and losses in the 7/1/06-6/30/07 through 7/1/15-6/30/16 periods.
3
The Ten-Year Premium only includes reinsurance and loss costs. It does not include other costs such as administrative costs.
2
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15800 Bluemound Road
Suite 100
Brookfield, WI 53005-6069
USA
Tel +1 262 784-2250
Fax +1 262 923-3686
milliman.com

Memorandum
DATE:

December 6, 2017

TO:

Independent Cities Risk Management Association

FROM:

Mindy Steichen

RE:

Allocation of Workers’ Compensation Program Costs

Milliman, Inc. (Milliman) has been retained by Independent Cities Risk Management Association (ICRMA)
to provide allocations of their 2017/2018 program costs for the workers’ compensation program to the
member cities. This memorandum summarizes the allocation of the premium to the member cities based
on claims experience and exposure information provided to us for the 2006/2007 through 2015/2016 claim
periods. Data used in our analysis was valued as of December 31, 2016. The allocation assumptions were
provided by ICRMA’s pool administrator, Risk Pool Administrators.
Limitations on Distribution
Milliman’s work has been prepared solely for the internal use of ICRMA. No portion of Milliman’s work may
be provided to any other party without Milliman’s prior written consent. Milliman does not intend to benefit
or create a legal duty to any third party recipient of its work. Milliman’s work may not be filed with the SEC
or other securities regulatory bodies. In addition, references to Milliman or its estimates in communication
with third parties are not authorized.
Milliman’s consent to release its work product to any third party may be conditioned on the third party
signing a Third Party Release Agreement, subject to the following exceptions:
(a) ICRMA may provide a copy of Milliman’s work to its auditor to be used solely for audit purposes. In the
event the auditor’s audit reveals any error or inaccuracy in the data underlying Milliman’s work, Milliman
requests the auditor or ICRMA notify Milliman as soon as possible.
(b) ICRMA may provide a copy of Milliman’s work to governmental entities, as required by law.
(c) ICRMA may provide a copy of this report to its insurers, insurance brokers, and current or prospective
excess insurers provided they agree not to use Milliman’s work for any purpose other than to provide
services to ICRMA and agree not to distribute the work to any other person or entity.
In the event Milliman consents to release its work product, it must be provided in its entirety. We
recommend that any such party have its own actuary or other qualified professional review the work product
to ensure that the party understands the assumptions and uncertainties inherent in our estimates. No third
party recipient of Milliman’s work product should rely upon Milliman’s work product.
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Any reader of this report agrees that they shall not use Milliman’s name, trademarks or service marks, or
refer to Milliman directly or indirectly in any third party communication without Milliman’s prior written
consent for each such use or release, which consent shall be given in Milliman’s sole discretion
Assumptions
Attached Exhibit 1 summarizes the assumptions used in the premium allocations to member districts.
These assumptions were provided by Risk Pool Administrators.
Program Amounts
The 2017/2018 total program amount (premium) of $3,378,624 for the workers’ compensation program was
provided to us by Risk Pool Administrators. We are not opining on the reasonability of this figure.
Member Losses
We were provided with incurred loss data evaluated as of December 31, 2016 for each member city for
workers’ compensation for the 2006/2007 through 2015/2016 claim periods. We used losses from this
10-year period. We trended each individual claim to the 2017 trend year using a trend rate of 1.0% per
year. We then used the portion of the trended losses between each City’s member retained limit (MRL)
and the limits used in our analysis as follows:

Workers’ Compensation

Limits Used in Analysis
$2,000,000

For each member city, we then added the trended and capped loss amounts to determine total incurred
losses in the 10-year period, and then calculated the city’s losses as a percentage of the total.
Exposure Measures
We were provided with 2016/2017 payroll for each member as an exposure measure. We weighted the
payroll by a MRL adjustment factor to account for the different limits retained by member. The weighted
payroll for each member was used in the allocation to calculate the member’s share relative to the total.
Loss Exposure Weights
We used a loss to exposure weighting of 70% losses and 30% exposure.
New MRL Scenarios
We also provided scenarios which reflect increased MRL’s for some of the district’s with the highest debits.
Guidance was provided by ICMRA’s pool administrators in selecting the proposed MRL’s. The total
premium collected in these scenarios was reduced based on historical losses which would be eliminated
under the proposed MRL’s.
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Allocations
On attached Exhibit 2 we display the weighting of the 10-year incurred losses and 2016/2017 exposure
measures for each member using a 70/30 weighting. The results of this weighting are displayed in the
“uncapped” column as well as the percentage change from each member’s current 2017/2018 premium.

Minimum/Maximum Percentage Change from 2017/2018 Premium
Exhibit 2 also provides an allocation using the same assumptions as previously described but limited to a
minimum and maximum 20% change for each member from their 2017/2018 contribution as directed by
pool management. The adjusted premium amounts were calculated by applying the overall change from
2017/2018 to each member. The final allocation for each scenario is re-balanced after applying the
minimum and maximum in order to achieve the total loss contribution amount. This exhibit also displays
what each member’s contribution for 2016/2017 was and the percentage change for 2017/2018.
Finally, this exhibit displays the results of increased MRL’s for two members where the new results have
also been capped at 20%.

Loss Ratios
Exhibit 3 provides a 10-year loss ratio for each member city. The loss ratio is calculated by dividing the 10year history of losses in the pool layer by the 10-year contributions for each member. The contributions
only include reinsurance and loss costs.

Qualifications and Limitations
In performing this analysis we have relied on data and other information provided to us by Risk Pool
Administrator and Ms. Beth Lyons, Senior Pool Administrator for ICRMA. We have not audited or verified
this data and other information. If the underlying data or information is inaccurate or incomplete, the results
of our analysis may likewise be inaccurate or incomplete.
We have performed a limited review of the data used directly in our analysis for reasonableness and
consistency and have not found material defects in the data. If there are material defects in the data, it is
possible that they would be uncovered by a detailed, systematic review and comparison of the data to
search for data values that are questionable or relationships that are materially inconsistent. Such a review
was beyond the scope of our assignment.
In performing this evaluation, we have assumed that ICRMA (a) used its best efforts to supply accurate and
complete data, and (b) did not knowingly provide any inaccurate data.
The premium allocations provided in this memo are based on the assumptions and limitations described.
Different allocation results would be obtained if different assumptions were used. We acknowledge that
there are various methods to allocate costs to members.
We relied on Risk Pool Administrators for the total premium amounts, loss data, and for the assumptions
underlying the allocations.

Milliman

Confidential Draft - For Discussion Purposes Only. This draft is intended for discussion purposes only.
Page
147 of
It should not be distributed to any third party, or published in whole or in part in any form, without prior written
consent.

266

MEMORANDUM
December 6, 2017
Page 4

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Independent Cities Risk Management Association.

MMS/bas
cc:

Debbie James

J:\CLIENT\ICR\2017\12Dec\Memo-Allocation of Workers' Comp Only(Rev. 12-6-17).docx
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Exhibit 1

DRAFT
Independent Cities Risk Management Association
Workers' Compensation
Allocation of Premium to Member
Assumptions

Original
Premium Amount

New MRL

3,378,624

3,250,000

Number of Loss Years
Years of Loss Data Used

10

Allocation Selection Percentages
% Losses
% 2016-2017 Payroll
Total

70.0%
30.0%
100.0%

Loss Cap
Pool Coverage Limit
MRL to Loss Limit

3,000,000
2,000,000

Trend Year Beginning 7/1
Loss Trend

2017
1.0%

Percentage Change from 2017-2018 Premium
Minimum/Maximum % Change

Milliman

20.0%

Confidential Draft - For Discussion Purposes Only. This draft is intended for discussion purposes only.
It should not be distributed to any third party, or published in whole or in part in any form, without prior written consent.

Page 149 of 266

Exhibit 2

DRAFT
Independent Cities Risk Management Association
Workers' Compensation
Allocation of Premium to Member
Selections are Based on a 2017-2018 Premium Amount of $3,378,624
10-Year Loss History1, 70/30 Loss/Exposure Weight, $2M Pool Limit
(1)

Member Name
City A
City B
City C
City D
City E
City F
City G
City H
City I
City J
TOTAL
1
2
3

(2)

2016-2017
Premium2
178,082
520,919
336,133
112,722
304,191
206,377
168,275
102,967
579,204
155,714

2017-2018
Premium2
215,656
613,098
395,709
128,427
453,106
277,636
220,007
101,102
721,449
252,434

2,664,584

3,378,624

(3)
= (2) / (1)

% Change
from
2016-2017
Premium2
21.1%
17.7%
17.7%
13.9%
49.0%
34.5%
30.7%
-1.8%
24.6%
62.1%

(4)

(5)
= (4) / (2)

(6)

(7)
= (6) / (2)

Uncapped
Premium2
to Member
551,130
1,472,727
350,939
97,433
337,750
141,546
84,774
37,724
244,267
60,335

Uncapped 20% Capped 20% Capped
2
Percentage Premium
Percentage
Change
to Member
Change
155.6%
258,787
20.0%
140.2%
735,718
20.0%
-11.3%
403,362
1.9%
-24.1%
118,089
-8.0%
-25.5%
416,632
-8.0%
-49.0%
255,287
-8.0%
-61.5%
202,297
-8.0%
-62.7%
92,964
-8.0%
-66.1%
663,374
-8.0%
-76.1%
232,114
-8.0%

3,378,624

3,378,624

(8)

Current
MRL
500,000
350,000
500,000
500,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000

(9)

Actuarially
Suggested
MRL
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000

(10)

Selected
MRL
750,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000

(11)

Selected
Selected
MRL
MRL
20% Capped 20% Capped
Premium2,3 Percentage
to Member
Change
258,787
20.0%
735,718
20.0%
461,563
16.6%
125,898
-2.0%
395,208
-12.8%
224,708
-19.1%
178,065
-19.1%
81,828
-19.1%
583,914
-19.1%
204,311
-19.1%
3,250,000

Ten-Year Losses include losses in 7/1/06-6/30/07 through 7/1/15-6/30/16 periods.
Premium excludes state DIR assessments.
Premium at Selected MRLs estimated based on losses eliminated.

Milliman
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(12)
= (11) / (2)
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Exhibit 3

DRAFT
Independent Cities Risk Management Association
Workers' Compensation
Evaluated as of 12/31/16
Calculation of Ten-Year1 Loss Ratios by City

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)=(3)/(2)

(5)

(6)

(7)

1

City
City of El Segundo
City of Baldwin Park
City of Monterey Park
City of San Fernando
City of Inglewood
City of Glendora
City of Alhambra
City of Hermosa Beach
City of Huntington Park
City of Lynwood
TOTAL

(8)=(7)/(2)
1

Total
Ten-Year1
Premium2
2,888,394
1,311,789
2,028,068
668,657
1,264,085
1,014,913
3,336,160
1,006,734
1,027,876
820,245

Ten-Year
Incurred Losses
in Layer
Between
MRL and $2M
1,656,835
601,836
222,477
44,830
40,151
28,164
91,896
0
0
0

Ten-Year1
Average
Loss Ratio
57.4%
45.9%
11.0%
6.7%
3.2%
2.8%
2.8%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

15,366,921

2,686,188

17.5%

5
2
2
1
2
1
1
0
0
0

Selected MRL
Number
of Claims in
ICRMA Layer
5
2
2
1
2
1
1
0
0
0

14

14

Number
of Claims in
ICRMA Layer

Ten-Year
Incurred Losses Selected MRL
Ten-Year1
in Layer Between
Selected MRL
Average
and $2M
Loss Ratio
906,835
31.4%
101,836
7.8%
222,477
11.0%
44,830
6.7%
40,151
3.2%
28,164
2.8%
91,896
2.8%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
1,436,188

1

The Ten-Year Premium and Losses include premium and losses in the 7/1/06-6/30/07 through 7/1/15-6/30/16 periods.
The Ten-Year Premium only includes reinsurance and loss costs. It does not include other costs such as administrative costs.

2

Milliman

Confidential Draft - For Discussion Purposes Only. This draft is intended for discussion purposes only.
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9.3%

December 14, 2017

Governing Board
Subject:

Professional Actuarial Services

Action for consideration:
Award professional actuarial services contracts to: 1) Milliman, for member cost allocations and loss
funding for new members in the amount of $6,500; 2) Bay Actuarial Consultants, for all other
required actuarial services in the amount of $76,090; 3) Authorize the Executive Director to execute
contracts with both vendors, and 4) Place the actuarial services procurement in abeyance for one
year.
Background:
The current professional actuarial services agreement with Bay Actuarial Consultants expired with
the actuarial work concluded in the spring of 2017. To perform the actuarial work necessary to
determine both reserve adequacy for prior loss years as well as the future funding requirements for
ICRMA’s self-insured retentions and premium allocations among members for 2018-19, the Board
needs to authorize the engagement of a qualified actuary (or actuaries) at its meeting.
At the direction of the Board, staff developed and distributed an RFP for “An Actuarial Evaluation
of Self-Insured Programs” in September. The services required in the RFP, included:
• Evaluations of the funding requirements for ICRMA’s liability, workers’ compensation and
property/auto physical damage programs.
• Development of member experience modification factors;
• Development of individual member reports (to address the funding adequacy of each
member’s retained limits in each of the programs);
• Development of an annual debit-credit analysis and report;
• Development of a member-by-member loss ratio analysis and report (to determine how each
ICRMA is performing); and
• Development of an appropriate actuarial funding analysis for prospective new members of
ICRMA.
Six firms were invited to bid. ICRMA received no response from two firms. One firm formally
declined to respond on the basis it could not comply with the insurance requirements of the RFP.
Three firms responded with submissions, generally consistent with the specifications of the RFP.
On December 4, 2017 the Actuarial Services Ad Hoc Committee met to discuss the following
proposals:
Firm
Cost in 2018 Cost in 2019 Cost in 2020 TOTAL COST
Bickmore
$68,000
$68,000
$68,000
$204,000
Bay Actuarial Consultants
*$87,644
*$89,197
*$90,781
*$267,622
Milliman
$90,000
$90,000
$90,000
$270,000
*Note: BAC’s proposal did not include services for the debit-credit analysis nor the loss ratio
analysis.
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The Committee discussed the RFP process and the advantages/disadvantages offered by each
proposer. Staff also expressed concerns about the timing of the procurement. The RFP was
distributed on or about September 6, 2017. Just a few business days later (the week of September
11th), Redondo Beach filed suit against ICRMA, repeatedly referencing by association, (but not
naming) Bay Actuarial Consultants, (along with ICRMA’s Finance Director, James Marta &
Company) as part of its pleadings. Then, on October 6, 2017 James Marta & Company gave ICRMA
90-days-notice to terminate its services to ICRMA (effective, January 4, 2018).
The Committee shared staff’s concern that these dynamics as well as the unintended message it
could send that ICRMA is simultaneously changing its Actuary and Finance Director. While under
the best of circumstances, such service changes would be unusual, in the current environment, such
actions could be misconstrued by some to signal instability.
ICRMA General Counsel, Luther Lewis, advised the Committee that the specifications of the RFP
preserved a critical “out-clause” in connection with this procurement: “At its sole discretion ICRMA
reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any informalities or irregularities and to
make the selection among the proposals as is deemed in the best interest of ICRMA.”
After much discussion, the Committee concluded that, provided ICRMA can stay within its $85,500
actuarial services budget for 2017-18, it would be in ICRMA’s strategic interest to:
1. Allow Milliman to perform the premium allocation work and new member loss funding
analytics, due to the competitive pricing offered in its proposal and the work already
performed regarding the cost allocation formula; and
2. Maintain the Bay Actuarial Consulting contract for all other actuarial services, by extending
its agreement for one year and allowing for a 1% increase in base fees for these services.
Collectively, these actions, in the Committee’s opinion, would signal the desired stability ICRMA
wishes to communicate to its membership and prospective members. This arrangement also allows
ICRMA to gain experience with a second actuarial firm.
So as not to lose the substantial staff work and time/resource investment of the proposers in
responding to the RFP, General Counsel also suggested it would be possible to put this procurement
in abeyance (i.e., “put in hibernation”) for twelve months. This would be advantageous since we do
not wish to lose the work that’s been done on this procurement to date and expect that each of the
current bidders would still like to be considered for a long-term engagement as ICRMA’s actuary, a
year from now.
Following the Committee Meeting, staff reached out to Milliman (which confirmed it could do the
contemplated assigned work for $6,500) and to Bay Actuarial Consultants (which confirmed that it
could complete the balance of the required services for $76,090). The total fees committed to
actuarial services for the current fiscal year would, therefore, fall within budget.
Attachments:

None

Prepared by:

John Nielsen, RPA, Senior Pool Administrator
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Governing Board
Carl Warren Staffing and Contract Update

Subject:

Action for consideration:
Review and provide feedback
Background:
At its February meeting, the Board eliminated the structured return to work (SRTW) program
effective June 30, 2017. This eliminated a large portion of the workers’ compensation program
manager’s responsibilities, and associated contract revenue. The anticipated time allocation for the
workers’ compensation manager, included:
•
•

SRTW: 80% of time was to be dedicated to the STRW program responsibilities
Claim Management and Administration: 20% of time was to be spent on claim reporting
to excess, reviewing primary TPA loss runs & adjuster files, and performing
administrative responsibilities

The overall contract with Carl Warren & Company for liability and workers’ compensation program
management services totals $340,000 annually. At its April strategic planning session, rather than
requesting a fee reduction, the Board agreed to a reallocation of Carl Warren employee time,
eliminating SRTW and instead allocating it to the liability program. It was anticipated the funding
would pay for another full-time person to assist with claims. The Board believed this was important
because claim patterns are changing and ICRMA increasingly requires proactive claims
management.
In May, RPA staff communicated with Carl Warren, both verbally and through email, requesting a
new staffing plan and revised contract to reflect the Board’s direction. Staff followed up several
times during the summer, and in mid-August again asked that a redline contract and staffing plan be
provided for the Board’s October agenda packet. When the information was not received, RPA staff
continued to follow-up with Carl Warren and asked that this information be provided for the
December agenda packet. As of this writing, Carl Warren’s response is still pending. RPA staff will
continue to follow-up.
On December 1 Todd Johnson, who was serving as ICRMA’s workers’ compensation program
manager, left Carl Warren and Company. Robert Tran, who was serving as a claims examiner for
ICRMA claims, is providing assistance with the program management.
Attachments:

None

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Governing Board

Subject:

Consider revisions to the Property/Auto Physical Damage Bylaws

Action for consideration:
Approve the addition of section 3.1.3 Settlement Authority to the Property/Auto Physical Damage
Bylaws and authorize the Executive Director to amend the contract with AdminSure, the program’s
TPA.
Background:
During routine claims handling since program inception, we realized authority to settle
property/vehicle claims is not explicitly stated in the Bylaws. RPA consulted with interim general
counsel Luther Lewis who drafted section 3.1.3. for addition to the Property/Auto Physical Damage
Bylaws.
3.1.3

Settlement Authority

3.1.3.1 Each participant in the PP shall have settlement authority for all claims within the PP,
including attorney fees and other costs, which do not exceed 100% of the participant’s deductible.
The Claims Committee may review these claims from time to time and may offer its recommendation
to the program’s Third Party Administrator (TPA) and the participant regarding settlement.
3.1.3.2 The TPA for the PP shall have the authority to settle any claim within the PP up to and
including fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) in excess of the deductible involved, and shall promptly
provide check requests to the finance team with a copy to the Executive Director.
3.1.3.3 The Claims Committee shall have the authority to settle any claim within the PP up to and
including two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) in excess of the deductible involved.
3.1.3.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Governing Board, unless otherwise delegated, retains
unto itself the authority to approve settlement of any and all claims within the PP that are within the
retained limit of ICRMA.

In addition to the process outlined above, the Executive Director and Finance Director both review
every request for payment before checks are issued as part of a secondary approval process.
The intent of the last provision regarding the Board’s authority was to make clear that the Board may
approve any settlement within the ICRMA layer, whether or not the TPA or CC has even seen it or
has approved it. For example, if the TPA seeks $150k in authority, and there’s some time urgency in
getting it done, the Board should be able to approve it and not have to wait for a Claims Committee
meeting in January, even though it’s within the Claims Committee’s layer of authority.
Attachments:

None

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Governing Board

Subject:

December 14, 2017

RPA Staffing Updates and Vendor Contact Information

Action for consideration:
Review and file
Background:
ICRMA’s daily operational responsibilities are provided through contract by key vendors: RPA
(program administration and risk control), Artex (financial services – beginning January 5), and Carl
Warren (liability and workers’ compensation program management).
Ashley O'Brian resigned as ICRMA Assistant Executive Director effective October 13, 2017. Since
Ashley joined RPA’s staff about 18 months ago, she assisted with a variety of duties and projects at
ICRMA. We thank her for her contributions to the organization and its mission.
At the same time, I'm pleased to announce that John Nielsen has been added to the ICRMA
team. John is a Senior Pool Administrator for Risk Pool Administrators and brings more than 25
years of experience managing three pools, a JPA and a captive insurance company in CA, OH, VT
and NY. From 1998-2001, John served as ICRMA's contract General Manager as an employee of
Ken Spiker & Associates. His knowledge of the pooling industry and ICRMA's member cities will
allow him to hit the ground running, assisting with the management of ICRMA and provide support
to the Board. John is a founding board member and past president of the Association of
Governmental Risk Pools (AGRiP) and is well known both nationally and in CA where he has been
a frequent speaker at CAJPA conferences and in facilitating strategic planning activities for various
JPA's. Please join me in welcoming John back to ICRMA!
Contact information for all of the service teams is attached.
Attachments:

ICRMA Organizational Chart

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Independent Cities Risk Management Authority
CLAIMS LITIGATION MANAGERS

POOL ADMINISTRATORS
For administrative services and
questions relating to pool operations
RPA Local Team

18201 Von Karman #200
Irvine, CA 92612
Beth Lyons
Executive Director
Phone: 949.349.9879
beth_lyons@riskpooladministrators.com

RPA National Team

2850 Golf Road
Rolling Meadows, IL 60008
Tyler LaMantia
Director of Pool Administration
Phone: 630.285.4344
tyler_lamantia@riskpooladministrators.com
Cindy LaMantia
Senior Director
Phone: 630.285.4375
cindy_lamantia@riskpooladministrators.com
John Nielsen
Assistant Executive Director
Phone: 216.654.9386
john_nielsen@riskpooladministrators.com

For assistance regarding claims

SERVICE TEAM

As of January 4, 2018
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT TEAM
For questions regarding billing,
payments and reimbursements
Artex
1635 N Greenfield Rd, Ste 127
Mesa, AZ 85205
icrma@jpmcpa.com
Diana Dunkin-Vasquez
Finance Director
Phone: 480.758.3291
diana_dunkinvasquez@artexrisk.com
Matt Anderson
Finance Manager
Phone: 480.718.2125
matt_anderson@artexrisk.com

Carl Warren

P.O. Box 25180
Santa Ana, CA 92799
ICRMAclaims@carlwarren.com

LIABILITY

John M. Beringer
Liability Program Manager
Phone: 714.458.7045
jberinger@carlwarren.com

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

Robert Tran
Workers’ Compensation Program Manager
Phone: 860.610.8370
RTran@CarlWarren.com

AdminSure

3380 Shelby Street
Ontario, CA 91764-5566

PROPERTY/AUTO PHYISCAL DAMAGE

Mike Reed
Property/Auto Physical Damage Program Manager
Phone: 909.612.5644
mreed@adminsure.com

INTERIM GENERAL COUNSEL &
COVERAGE COUNSEL

The Board’s advisor on coverage, legal
documents and pool actions
Johnson Schachter & Lewis
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 560
Sacramento, CA 95815
Luther Lewis
Phone: 916.921.5800
Luther@jsl-law.com

LOSS CONTROL SERVICES

For loss control advice, trainings,
programs and ICRMA university
Bob May
Director of Loss Control
(760) 221-8205

Biem47@outlook.com
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Governing Board

December 14, 2017

Subject:

Risk Control Service Updates

Action for consideration:

Review and file

Background:
The Board adopted the 2017-18 Risk Control plan in June. The plan outlines risk control and service
benchmarks. Staff has been working with members in the areas of training, loss analysis, TPA data
review, and identification of key loss exposures. Since the last report of August 17, 2017, staff has
been involved in member services in the following areas:
Risk Control Days
Staff responds to requests for risk management services and has also been actively suggesting
services which may be beneficial to the members. All members have service days remaining.
Member Visits
Visits have been conducted to discuss risk management/risk control, ICRMA resources, and provide
a brief ICRMA orientation to staff members that are not familiar with ICRMA. We met with the city
staff member(s) tasked with risk management efforts at the city, ICRMA Board members, and any
other department directors/managers the risk manager believes would benefit from the discussion.
We have provided preliminary loss analyses to members which provide a snap shot in time showing
where losses are occurring. The meetings have been beneficial as they also provide an opportunity to
discuss services provided by ICRMA. Discussions have revealed that members need assistance in a
variety of areas, and consistently need help ensuring compliance with OSHA standards. In addition,
multiple driver awareness trainings have been scheduled.
Several members have requested individual agency training in the areas of Hostile Workplace,
Active Violence, and Harassment for Elected Officials. Members requested information on Hepatitis
A and the impact to employees including Homeless Camps. ICRMA also received approval to
provide MCLE credit to attorneys who attended the Contractual Risk Transfer training.
Training
Contractual Risk Transfer – Huntington Park (60+ attended)
October University - Fleet Safety (45+ attended)
November University - Discrimination, Hostile Work Environment, Sexual Harassment (60+
attended)
Loss Control
The ICRMA Contractual Risk Transfer Manual has been updated and training sessions provided.
Several members are regularly utilizing ICRMA risk control services for contract reviews. Members
are also accessing the employment practices advice offered through Enquiron, and attached is a
utilization report. ICRMA is promoting the utilization of Safety National for safety training, policies,
and additional risk management information. Police operations (excessive force training, less than
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deadly force methods to diffuse the situation, and driver safety for police) have also been frequently
discussed. Several members have requested review of Human Resources and Safety policy and
procedures.
Future Activity
Baldwin Park – Risk Control visit
Huntington Park – Encroachment Permits
Hawthorne – Driver Safety Training
Bell – Jail Operations
Monterey Park – Risk Control visit
Attachments:

January University Flyer
February University Flyer
2017-18 University Sessions
Risk Control Hepatitis A Fact Sheet
Addressing Homelessness
Enquiron Utilization

Prepared by:

Bob May, Director of Loss Control
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Mandating Reporting, Employee v. Independent Contractor, Utilization of Volunteers
Thursday, January 25, 2018
9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
CLICK HERE TO REGISTER ONLINE
This University session will cover three important aspects of risk management. First, how to manage the utilization of
independent contractors without unintentionally transforming them into employees. If a worker is classified as an
independent contractor, the employer is not required to withhold or pay Social Security and Medicare (FICA), State and
Federal income taxes, unemployment insurance taxes (FUTA), workers' compensation, overtime, or a host of other
benefits. If a worker is properly classified as an independent contractor, the employer is also free from a myriad of
onerous legal obligations pertaining to California's wage and hour laws, anti-discrimination laws, state and federal OSHA
(safety) regulations, and so on.
Second, what every employee should know about mandated reporting and the implications. For the mandated reporter,
making a report of a suspected child abuse can be difficult. Often present are concerns about how the person suspected
of abusing a child will react, the ultimate outcome, and whether the report will put the child at greater risk.
Third, how to utilize volunteers within the agency work force and what to expect from your volunteers. The most
successful programs implement mechanisms and procedures to administer the volunteer effort and manage its novel
human resources effectively.
Training Objectives:
• Understanding what determines an employee versus an independent contractor
• The various “Tests" used to determine if a worker is an employee or independent contractor
• Learn the primary intent of the reporting law (protect the child)
• Understand child abuse and who must report
• Definition of a volunteer, where and how they can they be used
Who Should Attend?
Employees who handle independent contractors and volunteers and work with children. All ICRMA member city
personnel are welcome to attend, and we encourage you to share this information with anyone who would be interested
in attending.
Speakers:

Linda A. Artiano, Attorney at Law
Artiano & Associates
Bob May, ICRMA Director of Loss Control

Location:

Rio Hondo Event Center
10627 Old River School Road
Downey, CA 90241

Schedule:

8:15 a.m.: Registration and continental breakfast
9:00a.m.: Training
12:00 p.m.: Lunch

Pre-registration is required. Last day to register is January 19, 2018. Questions? Contact Bob May at (760) 221-8205
or biem47@outlook.com
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Workplace Violence and Active Shooter
Thursday, February 22, 2018
9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
CLICK HERE TO REGISTER ONLINE
Workplace violence, whether through a violent criminal act or verbal threat, affects employees
throughout the workforce. This university session will be interactive and delve into workplace violence
including behaviors, an overview of policy best practices, and practical application in a highly agitated
situation with emphasis on how to defend against an active aggressor/violence. The training addresses
critical incident management steps, including a thorough discussion of the national DHS protocol for
active shooters and attackers: Run-Hide-Fight.
Training Objectives:
Provide attendees with an understanding of:
• The basics of workplace violence
• Behaviors (factors contributing to the escalation of violence) that can lead to workplace violence
• Workplace risks that employees may encounter
• The employee’s role in preventing violence in the workplace
• Measures that can reduce the effectiveness of workplace violence and an active aggressor
Who Should Attend?
Employees who interface with the public as an essential part of their job. All ICRMA member city
personnel are welcome to attend, and we encourage you to share this information with anyone who
would be interested in attending. Note: there is a maximum of 60 attendees per training.
Speakers:

Dr. Steve Albrecht, SHRM-CP, ASIS CPP
Bob May, ICRMA Director of Loss Control

Location:

Rio Hondo Event Center
10627 Old River School Road
Downey, CA 90241

Schedule:

8:15 a.m.: Registration
9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.: Training
12:00 p.m.: Lunch

Pre-registration is required. Last day to register is February 12, 2018. Questions? Contact Bob May at
(760) 221-8205 or biem47@outlook.com
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Upcoming Training Opportunities
Please contact Bob May at 760-221-8205 or E-mail at biem47@outlook.com with questions.
Driver Safety Training

December 12, 2017
8:30 a.m.-12:00 p.m. & 1:00 p.m.- 4:30 p.m.
Where: Police Department-Community Room-12501 Hawthorne Blvd. Hawthorne, CA 90250
Who: Employees who drive city or private vehicles for city business.
Mandated Reporting, Employees v. Independent Contractors, Utilization of Volunteers
January 25, 2018
8:30 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.
Where: Rio Hondo Event Center
Who: Human Resources, Parks & Recreation, Supervisors, Finance, Public Works, and line-level staff
Workplace Violence/Active Shooter Training
February 22, 2018
8:30 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.
Where: Rio Hondo Event Center
Who: All staff
Successful Claims Handing (effective utilization of TPA adjusters and defense attorneys)
March 22, 2018
8:30 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.
Where: Rio Hondo Event Center
Who: Human Resources, Finance Managers, Risk Management
Contractual Risk Transfer
April 26, 2018
8:30 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.
Where: Rio Hondo Event Center
Who: All individuals working with contracts, Human Resources, Finance, Risk Management, Parks & Recreation, Public
Works
Design Immunity
May 24, 2018
8:30 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.
Where: Rio Hondo Event Center
Who: Public Works, City Attorneys, Risk Management

1
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Hepatitis “A” Information
For Public Agencies
WHAT IS IT?
Hepatitis A is a liver infection caused by the Hepatitis A virus. Highly contagious, the Hepatitis
A virus is usually transmitted by the fecal-oral route, either through person-to-person contact or
consumption of contaminated food or water. Contamination can occur when infected persons do
not wash their hands properly after going to the bathroom and then touch other objects or food
items. Surfaces that are frequently touched should be cleaned and sanitized often. It is identified
primarily in the homeless and illicit drug use populations, but others have also been infected.
HOW DOES IT SPREAD?
Hepatitis A can be spread through ingestion of fecal matter (even in microscopic amounts), by
touching objects or eating food that someone with Hepatitis A handled; close person-to-person
contact with an infected person; use of recreational drugs, whether injected or not; and sexual
contact with someone who has the Hepatitis A infection.
WHAT CAN I DO?
Vaccination is the best way to prevent infection. The vaccine is safe for immunocompromised
individuals. Find a clinic near you to request the vaccine or contact your doctor. Pregnant women
should consult with their physician before getting vaccinated. Practice diligent hand washing for
at least 20 seconds after using the bathroom and before eating. Don’t share food, drinks,
cigarettes, needles, etc. with others. Food handlers should also be vaccinated.
The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention recommends the following:
•

Wet your hands with clean, running water (warm or cold), turn off the tap and
apply soap.

•

Lather your hands by rubbing them together with the soap. Be sure to lather the
backs of your hands, between your fingers and under your nails.

•

Scrub your hands for at least 20 seconds. Need a timer? Hum the “Happy
Birthday” song from beginning to end twice.

•

Rinse your hands well under clean, running water.

•

Dry your hands using a clean towel or air dry them.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES THAT SHOULD BE VACCINATED
Agency first responders (police, fire, EMS) who may come in contact with the homeless
community should be vaccinated. Vaccinations for Library, Code Enforcement, Maintenance,
Water, Housing, and Parks and Recreation should be considered based on their exposure and
contact with high risk populations. Hand washing is the key in prevention. Installing or having
available hand sanitizing liquid is recommended for agency staff who have exposure.

ICRMA
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According to the CDC, protective levels of antibody to the Hepatitis A virus could be present for
at least 25 years in adults and at least 14–20 years in children. If you are unsure of when or if you
were vaccinated and are at high risk, you can get the vaccine again.
The Hepatitis A vaccine is given as two shots, six months apart. You will be protected
approximately two to four weeks after the first injection, and the first shot is about 90 percent
effective. If you do not remember whether you were vaccinated, ask your medical provider.
Repeating the vaccination series is not harmful.
The only vaccination that is required by law (Occupational Safety and Health Act [OSHA]) is
hepatitis B, and only for those employees that are at risk of exposure to bloodborne pathogens as
a part of their regular job duties or assigned tasks.
RESOURCES
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) https://www.cdc.gov/hepatitis/hav/index.htm
Cal OSHA
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/Hepatitis-A-worker-protection.html
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS:
1. Should I use an Industrial Clinic for vaccinations?
Answer: Vaccinations for individuals identified with potential exposure is best
coordinated through the city’s industrial clinic.
2. Should I send employees to their own health care providers and reimburse them for the
shots?
Answer: It is best to coordinate vaccinations through the city’s industrial clinic. Only
those individuals who have the potential exposure should be vaccinated. Certainly, an
individual can seek and pay for his/her own vaccination.
3. What is the City’s obligation to provide personal protective equipment?
Answer: Cal OSHA defines the employer’s responsibility to provide
PPE. https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3380.html
4. To which employees should vaccinations be provided (police, sewer, fire, those working
with homeless encampments, etc.)?
Answer: Review the CDC guidelines to identify individuals with potential exposure.

ICRMA
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Addressing Homelessness
Maintaining Safety for your Staff and Property
Homelessness is an extremely complex social problem that impacts the quality of life in our
community. There are no easy solutions.
Elected officials in counties and cities recognize the fine line between homelessness as a social
issue and as a criminal issue. Many homeless are on the street because of substance abuse,
mental illness or both. Local agencies struggle on how to deal with the problem.
Often the disorder issues associated with homelessness are criminal in nature but difficult to
enforce. To assist at-risk population, the following steps can be taken to reduce exposure to
agency staff members who encounter at-risk population. Agencies are encouraged to coordinate
with other partners such as the local Mental Health Professionals, Law Enforcement, and Health
and Human Services.
While being homeless is not a crime, many kinds of public conduct are illegal and should be
reported to local law enforcement. These include being intoxicated, loitering, prowling, fighting,
trespassing, aggressive panhandling, soliciting, urinating/defecating, consuming alcoholic
beverages in certain public places, camping or sleeping in parks, littering, obstructing sidewalks,
living in a vehicle parked on a public street, disturbing the peace by loud and unreasonable
noises, using offensive words, behaving in a threatening manner and more. Agency staff should
be mindful of their situation when dealing with the at-risk population. Situational awareness is a
sound best practice to ensure safety for staff members. When approaching an individual
remember your escape routes; stay a safe distance away until you are comfortable with the
situation.
The following tips will help you avoid problems.
•

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Talk to your local Community Relations Officer (CRO) or Outreach Officer about any
problems with homeless people. Local law enforcement should investigate and take
appropriate action. Provide them with specific information such as property location,
address, name of location i.e., Jones Park – Bathrooms.
Avoid confrontations and maintain a safe distance. Use caution.
Do not offer food or money. It may encourage more panhandling. If you are inclined to
help the homeless, it is better to contribute to local charities, missions, food banks or
social service organizations that provide assistance.
Do not permit anyone to camp or loiter on agency property. Post the property with proper
signage such as “No Trespassing or Loitering.”
Do not allow anyone to store shopping carts, bedding or other personal belongings on
your property.
Restrict access to sidewalk overhangs, alcoves, or other areas protected from inclement
weather.
Lock or remove handles from water spigots.
Keep trash dumpsters locked when not being filled or emptied.
Secure outside storage sheds or containers.
Lock or turn off exterior power outlets.
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Addressing Homelessness
Maintaining Safety for your Staff and Property
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

•

•

•

•

Lock gates after hours.
Install motion-activated exterior lighting for after hours.
Trim landscaping to eliminate hiding places.
Canopies of mature trees should be maintained at least 8 feet above the ground.
Bushes should be trimmed to less than 3 feet except where privacy or environmental
noise mitigation is a primary concern, or where higher plants would not block any views/
lighting/camera coverage or provide hiding places.
Keep property free of trash, litter, junk, etc.
Use graffiti-resistant paint or anti-graffiti coatings on the sides of the building, and any
other design features that could be vandalized.
o Recommend “Vandlguard TEN Non-Sacrificial Anti-Graffiti Coating” with a
three-coat system by RainGuard International or the equivalent on park
furnishings and buildings.
o Additional protection can be obtained by planting vines and bushes along the
sides of the buildings. They help keep vandals away from the walls and cover
areas that might otherwise be vandalized.
Report graffiti and other vandalism, and clean up promptly after the officers have taken
pictures.
Design public amenities to discourage misuse. For example, shape benches and other
seating to be comfortable for sitting but not for sleeping.
Have plants at sidewalk level. If raised planter boxes are used, the sides should be at least
4 feet high or their tops should be uncomfortable for seating. By making them very
narrow and allowing plants to grow over them, it will make them less desirable for
sleeping.
Establish, post, and enforce rules of conduct for public use of private property. Include
signs of nighttime curfews and prohibitions of loitering, illegal lodging, drinking
alcoholic beverages, and drug activities. The signs should state that persons engaged in
prohibited conduct will be asked to leave the property and that failure to cease the
behavior or leave the property will result in a call to law enforcement.
Install surveillance cameras to cover public areas. Have security personnel monitor these
cameras and ask persons engaged in prohibited conduct to leave the property. Security
personnel should also patrol the property at random times.
If security personnel are not available or if it is not practical to monitor the cameras all
the time, install video analytics or intelligent video software in your camera system. It
will alert you when something suspicious occurs. Lights could be turned on at night when
motion is detected, and audio announcements could warn trespassers that the police
would be called if they do not leave the property immediately.
If signs stating that security or surveillance cameras are installed are posted, and the
cameras are not monitored all the time, the warning should also include that caveat. This
is important in keeping people from having a false sense of security and expecting help in
the event they are attacked.
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Addressing Homelessness
Maintaining Safety for your Staff and Property
The city should have a Work Place Violence Prevention program in place (this is a Cal-OSHA
requirement) and city staff should be trained. Many sources are available to help agencies
develop a plan for homeless management. The League of California Cities has published a
document: “Local Government Strategies for Addressing Homelessness: Avoid Litigation and
Do Some Good”; https://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/MemberEngagement/Professional-Departments/City-Attorneys/Library/2016/Spring-2016/5-2016Spring-Local-Government-Strategies-for-Addr.aspx
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Confidential
10/1/2016 – 9/30/2017
Active Clients are representative of only clients enrolled on the day this report was generated. Their utilization is counted
from within the date period selected.

This section includes activity from both currently and formerly enrolled clients in the date period selected.
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Governing Board

Subject:

December 14, 2017

Workers’ Compensation Program Update

Action for consideration:
Discuss the concept of a single workers’ compensation program TPA and provide direction
Background:
Following the discussion with the ICRMA Board last month, it is apparent that the members are
desirous of more primary level services from their excess pool. The loss of risk management
professionals at the individual cities has created a vacuum of technical knowledge. From the
workers’ compensation (WC) perspective, this issue supports the consolidation of primary level third
party claims administration (TPA) services with one administrator that better understands the unique
needs of the members. The ‘single TPA’ approach is an opportunity to better manage the data and
help mitigate overall workers’ compensation costs.
For the administrative claim costs, California remains significantly more challenging than other
states. At 12 months post loss, 24% of the claims remain unreported, and five years post date of
loss, 17% of the claims remain active. The cost to administer these claims should be considered a
long-term partnership. Both RPA and Carl Warren & Company feel ICRMA members would be
best served with a flat monthly fee, through a single TPA, to manage all aspects of the workers’
compensation claim program.
It is well documented that the ancillary and managed care fees are significant cost drivers for the
overall WC cost of risk management. Frankly, these services can be a huge revenue stream for a
TPA, especially if there is revenue sharing in the delivery of services. As reported in an earlier
agenda item, Todd Johnson left Carl Warren & Company on December 1. Prior to his departure, he
created the attached spreadsheet to help identify the driving costs in a workers’ compensation
program along with a reasonable benchmark. ICRMA members deserve complete transparency with
respect to all aspects of the claim administrative, managed care and ALAE pricing.
In California the average allocated loss adjustment expense (ALAE) cost per indemnity claim is now
five times greater than the average cost in 1991. California has the highest ALAE expense ratio in
the country and it is nearly double the countrywide median. RPA and Carl Warren & Company
cannot change the CA WC system, but understanding the primary cost drivers and developing a
consistent partnership with a TPA will create a long-term winning solution for the membership.
Carl Warren & Company continues to provide oversight of the Workers’ Compensation program for
the ICRMA member cities that utilize the WC coverage. The primary responsibilities for the Carl
Warren team are to ensure that the underlying TPAs are managing the primary exposure and
protecting the interests of ICRMA. This is accomplished by obtaining Interim Status Reports every
90 days on all claims reported to ICRMA and maintaining a collaborative working relationship with
both current and former Member cities and their TPAs. These claims are then documented in the
ICRMA Origami Risk system. Key statistics of the workers’ compensation claims reported to
ICRMA were presented to the Board at its meeting in October.
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Governing Board

December 14, 2017

Single TPA
RPA and Carl Warren & Company seek the Board’s direction regarding utilizing a single third party
administrator (TPA) to manage WC claims for participating cities. It is our collective industry
experience that a single TPA offers a risk sharing pool more effective and efficient claims
management services.
Following are the key advantages:
• Economies of scale (TPA pricing, group purchase programs: legal, managed care services)
• More consistent and efficient claims handling
• Better data and benchmarking
• More reliable data and higher carrier confidence
• Less expensive program administration (claim audits, data feeds, oversight, etc.)
• More bargaining power because we have a much larger contract
• More efficient management of MOC, LMPP, TPA Standards and contracts
• Less administrative burden for cities (no need to individually perform RFPs/contract
negotiation)
And key disadvantages:
• Not as much independence to “select” a TPA
• possible loss of existing relationships
• If don’t like them, don’t have options (May not be a disadvantage: If service is the issue, change
adjusters. If overall claims handling is the issue, the pool has more negotiating power.)
What available data is telling us:
• Most members are buying services on a monthly fee basis.
• Rough numbers show a monthly fee variance between $33 and $106/open claim as of 6/30/17.
• Monthly claim management fees are important. However, the managed care fees and legal fees
are also impactful. For example, data for one member shows the total of medical benefits paid
at $6.4 million, and the managed care fees to limit these medical expenses equal $1.1 million.
In addition, $750K was paid in legal fees, while ‘administration fees’ total < $10,000 / month.
• It appears cost savings can be generated for participants when all factors are considered
Options:
The Board is asked to consider the following options and provide direction to RPA and Carl Warren:
• Take no action
• Select the TPA which has a contract with the majority of the WC members, and begin
negotiating a contract with the single selected TPA
• Send an RFQ to the three TPAs of active members
• Conduct a full-blown RFP process to select a single TPA
Attachments:

None

Prepared by:

Todd Johnson, Workers’ Compensation Program Manager
Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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Iowa Public School Insurance Program (IPSIP)
TPA Comparison - Life of Partnership Claim Comparison

TPA
New Claims
Record/Incident Only
WC Medical Only
WC Indemnity

Benchmark

Notes
rates are per claim. Watch for 'Life of Claim'

$75
$175
$1,500

Takeover Claim Fees
WC Medical Only
WC Indemnity

versus 'Life of Contract' pricing

$125
$750

complex MO open > 1 year
ongoing Indemnity exposures > 1 year

Monthly Claim Service Fee
Recommended option for clients with a stable
loss history. Both City and TPA can budget.
Rx set upper and lower new claim limits.
TPA to be paid a monthly fee to manage all
WC claims for each City. Allows TPA to staff
program at < 150 active Indemnity claims per
Claim Examiner.
ANCILLARY SERVICES
D
Account Management (annual)

??
This should be nominal and based on # of
users. Allows City to engage in a 'self service'
environment to push claim reporting and pull
claim data metrics.

RMIS (annual)
Systems & data processing
Internet Claim Reporting

$0

800# Reporting per Claim

$0

Fax Reporting
Subrogation
OSHA Log Tool

$0
15% - 25%
$0
1
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Iowa Public School Insurance Program (IPSIP)
TPA Comparison - Life of Partnership Claim Comparison

Managed Care Services
MD Advisor Review
UR Review
Clinical Review

Pharmacy - PBM network

$200 / review
$100 / review
$90 / hour
Brand = AWP14% + $5
dispense
Generic = AWP
- 50% + $5
dispense

PPO Savings

Fee Schedule MBR

18%

$8 - $10 / bill

EDI billings

TPA will attempt to charge a fee to use a
clearing house in order to accept EDI billings.
Reality is that direct EDI avoids significant mail
room operating costs for TPA.

$0

Telephonic Case Management
UR Review

$90 / hour

Medical Bill Review

$7.50 /bill

Banking

!8%. Average cost to TPAs is 15% of savings
BELOW fee schedule. Likely proposed rates
will be 20% to 30% of savings. This can be a
significant cost to a City and very impactful to
the ALAE costs of a claim.

$0

Est. Admin Total

2

Page 173 of 266

Governing Board
Subject:

December 14, 2017

Revised Outline of a Performance Review Process

Action for consideration
Review and provide direction
Background:
At the ICRMA Board’s October 2017 meeting, it briefly discussed the question of how to proceed
with evaluating vendors and vendor contract performance. At that meeting, the board agreed that in
the current three-year cycle for key management contracts, the first year should be one of selfreporting to the board, learning and contract revision. Then a more formal process might follow in
the second or third year of the cycle.
Rather than taking time in a board meeting to create this structure, staff suggested that they create an
outline of possible process elements for the board to discuss at a future meeting. What follows here
is that outline.
Facilitator Sara Peterson will lead the Board in a discussion regarding the outline so that a full
process and implementation schedule may be developed.
Attachments:

Outline for Discussion

Prepared by:

Sara Peterson, Facilitator
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Vendor Performance Review – Outline for Discussion
Purpose – The process is not intended to mimic a comprehensive review process in the vein of annual staff performance supervision. Instead it is to:
• Provide contract oversight ensuring vendors are meeting contract expectations within industry standards
• Provide proper oversight of contract performance for ongoing improvement and inform the renewal process
Applicability – The process being contemplated is intended to supplement existing financial and function audits. It provides oversight of contracted functions: pool
administration, financial management, program and litigation management, risk control, general/coverage counsel and broker services
Process – We recommend that the process take advantage of and be informed by the following existing processes including three elements:
Member Feedback Survey reflecting on prior year
July – Sep
This element ensures that both board and members have regular input into the process and that their satisfaction is
Complete both items in the first quarter
appropriately valued. In the past, Bickmore asked members to complete an annual survey so that it could gather feedback
of the year, reflecting on the prior year.
and track changes in member satisfaction. Currently, ICRMA’s broker periodically scans members as well. We recommend a
Assessment of the internal review would
comprehensive annual survey that focuses on satisfaction with and improvement of performance across functions. The
rely on the expertise of other members
resulting information would be used on an ongoing basis by vendors, would inform the larger process, and would serve as
of the ICRMA “team” – those who
an early alert system so that items can be addressed before they become problems.
interact with the vendor most on a daily
basis
Internal Review based on contracts and standard performance checklist
Oct – Dec
Vendors make promises to ICRMA in the form of the contract they sign and as they implement that contract (e.g., various
Management reviews with contractors
work plans, agenda follow up, etc.). This element contemplates a review of those promises:
for feedback. Then present results to
• A checklist review of major duties defined under the contract as amended
board for response.
• A sample review of specific work plans and assignments across a given year
• Assessment of performance re a common list of service expectations such as:
Jan – Mar
o Responsiveness and timely performance
Adjust contract terms accordingly and or
o Quality of communication and understandability and usability of advice given
prepare for RFP processes.
o Proactive ethics and conflict of interest management
o Sufficient data security and confidentiality
o Legal accountability (e.g., licensing and filings) and maintenance of required liability coverage
External Audits against Industry Standards
This element will draw upon the findings of the external
audit processes described above. We recognize that not all
functions being considered for review are covered by that
list. When that is the case, the process will need to rely
more heavily on the latter two elements.

Annual – Financial audit, which naturally looks at adequacy of financial management and accounting
function
Bi-Annual – Liability and Workers Compensation claims audits taking place in alternating years, which
naturally look at adequacy of program and litigation management functions
Tri-Annual – CAJAPA accreditation process, which naturally looks at how these functions compare with
industry standards
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Governing Board
Subject:

December 14, 2017

Governing Document Project Update

Action for consideration:
Discuss the update and provide direction as appropriate
Background:
As previously reported, staff and consultants have worked to modernize, reorganize and collapse
ICRMA various bylaw documents and in doing so:
•
•
•
•

Update language and eliminate redundancies
Bring provisions in line with both current and preferred practice
Improving the overall efficacy of the document
Ensure the resulting document contains customary sections

We did so with the advice of an ad hoc committee of the board. In December 2016, the ICRMA
Board of Directors approved staff’s recommendation that ICRMA continue its governing document
revisions with another phase of consulting work. The purpose of this phase would be to bring
ICRMA’s governing documents in line with proposed bylaw changes. The ICRMA board received a
revised copy of the bylaws in August and discussed them in detail at its October meeting.
Since that time, staff have requested that the board consider the following additional changes to the
draft:
•
•
•

Expanding the window for completing the ICRMA financial audit from six months
following close of relevant year to the one-year limit allowed by law.
Shifting the window for giving notice to withdraw from the pool from the current
December 1 date allowing for the member to rescind notice by January 15, to require
notice by July 1 allowing the member to rescind by December 1.
Clarifying existing language regarding ICRMA’s authority to set case reserves. The
current bylaws already set forth this authority, but we will strengthen the language for
clarity given recent dialogue on the topic.

We ask that the board discuss these items and provide direction so that a revised restatement of the
bylaws can be disseminated and then approved via consent agenda at the board’s next meeting.
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Governing Document Project Update
Page 2 of 2

December 14, 2017

This item fits within the larger governing documents project as follows. The table below has been
adjusted since the Board last saw it in light of the above request and the shift in ICRMA’s financial
contract. Regarding the latter of these, we waiting to present revised financial policies to the board
until the new contractor is fully up and running and able to review them.
Policies & Procedures for Financial Management
Litigation Management Policies & Procedures
ICRMA Consolidated Bylaws
Program Underwriting & Administration Manual
Board of Directors Manual
Joint Powers Agreement

December February
Meeting
Meeting
Discuss &
Advise
Discuss &
Approve
Advise
Discuss &
Advise

Effective Date
Unless individual
items specified
otherwise
3/1/2018
After Member
approvals
7/1/2018

*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.

Attachments:

Governing Document Project – Bylaws Revision, Notice Copy

Prepared by:

Sara A. Peterson, Consultant

Page 177 of 266

Governing Document
Revision Project
BYLAWS REVISION NOTICE COPY
Revised through September 8, 2017

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.
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Table of Contents
Overview of Change Process _______________________________________________ 3
ICRMA BYLAWS – Proposed Consolidation & Restatement _______________________ 4

THE ITEMS THAT FOLLOW ARE PROVIDED AS REFERENCE ONLY

Original Documents & Policies _____________________________________________ 29
A. Joint Powers Agreement ......................................................................................................................................29
B.

Bylaws
1.
2.
3.
4.

JPA Bylaws .............................................................................................................................................34
Liability Program Bylaws ........................................................................................................................43
Property Program Bylaws ......................................................................................................................50
Workers Compensation Bylaws .............................................................................................................54

These proposed bylaws are being provided to the ICRMA
Board of Directors on September 8, 2017 with the intent that
they be discussed for adoption at the Board’s October 11-12,
2017 meeting and thus meeting the ICRMA 30-day notice
requirement for changes to its bylaws.
A revised version of other documents included in the
governing document project will be provided as preparation
for the October and December meetings of the ICRMA Board
of Directors.

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.

Page 2 of 61

Page 179 of 266

Overview of Change Process
Process for Approving New Documents
October
Retreat
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Policies & Procedures for Financial Management
Litigation Management Policies & Procedures
ICRMA Consolidated Bylaws
Program Underwriting & Administration Manual
Board of Directors Manual
Joint Powers Agreement

December
Meeting

Effective Date
Unless individual items
specified otherwise

Discussion & Vote

1/1/2018
Discussion & Vote

After Member approvals
7/1/2018

*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.

Summary Disposition of Current Documents & Policies
•

Joint Powers Agreement

To be revised and replaced once Members approve

•

Bylaws
o
o
o
o

To be revised, consolidated and restated
To be replaced in consolidation of bylaws and original rescinded
To be replaced in consolidation of bylaws and original rescinded
To be replaced in consolidation of bylaws and original rescinded

•

JPA Bylaws
Liability Program Bylaws
Property Program Bylaws
Workers Compensation Bylaws

Investment Policy

To be inserted into the financial policy document without edit

•

Liability and WC Program Net Asset Policy Statement

To be revised, inserted into financial policies and original rescinded

•

Underwriting Manual

To be revised / consolidated with various program bylaw provisions

•

Litigation Management Policies & Procedures

To be revised (limited) and otherwise remain intact

•

Various Standalone Policies
o Administrative Committee Roles & Responsibilities
o Dispute Resolution Policy
o Governing Board Roles & Responsibilities
o Mission & Vision Statements
o Policy Regarding Recusal of Member City
o Service Provider Agreement Renewal Policy
o WC Program Code – Conflict of Interest Policy

To be rescinded as no longer necessary
To be revised, inserted into new bylaws and original rescinded
To be revised, inserted into board manual and original rescinded
To be revised, inserted into board manual and original rescinded
To be revised, inserted into board manual and original rescinded
To be revised, inserted into financial policies and original rescinded
To be revised, inserted into program manual and original rescinded

Governing Documents NOT Affected by this Process
•

Liability Program Memorandum of Coverage

•

Property Program Memorandum of Coverage

•

Workers Compensation Memorandum of Coverage

•

TPA Performance Standards

•

Third Party Claims Administration Data Request Standards

•

Any other policy or governing document not listed here

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.
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ICRMA BYLAWS – Proposed Consolidation & Restatement
Contents

ARTICLE 1.
ARTICLE I – PURPOSE
ARTICLE II – DEFINITIONS &
INTERPRETATION
ARTICLE III – NOTICE
ARTICLE IV – MEMBERS
A. Membership
B. Application & Approval
C. Withdrawal & Renewal
D. Obligations of Membership
E. Default & Remedies
ARTICLE V – BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A. Authority of the Board of Directors
B. Eligibility & Appointment
C. Resignation, Removal & Vacancy
D. Meetings
E. Authority of Individual Directors
F. Conflicts of Interest
ARTICLE VI – OFFICERS
A. Number
B. Duties
C. Eligibility & Terms of Office
D. Elections

ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES
A. Formation
B. Standing Claims Committee
C. Other Committees
ARTICLE VIII – ADMINISTRATION
A. Executive Director
B. Responsibilities
ARTICLE IX – FINANCIAL MATTERS
A. Fiscal year
B. Budget
C. Audit
D. General Administration of Funds
E. Program Accounting
F. Annual Member Contribution
G. Dividends, Assessments & Reserve
Fund
H. Deposit & Investment of Funds

ARTICLE XI – DISPUTE RESOLUTION
A. Scope
B. Procedure
ARTICLE XII – MISCELLANEOUS
A. Conflicting Representation
B. Member Indemnification
C. Counsel Authorized
D. Board Authorization
E. Reimbursed Expenses
F. Representative & Officers Insurance
G. Claims Against ICRMA
ARTICLE XIII – TERMINATION &
DISTRIBUTION
ARTICLE XIV – EFFECTIVE DATE
ARTICLE XV – AMENDMENTS

ARTICLE X – COVERAGE PROGRAMS
A. Purpose
B. Authorization
C. Participation & Coverage
D. Program Management

Overview of Changes

ARTICLE 2.
The following is a broad overview of changes in the document that follows. It is not an exhaustive list.
•

Collapsing the Bylaws from 4 + to 1
o Simplify the Document’s Number Convention
o Eliminate definitions to the degree already defined in JPA or MOC and refer back to them
o Collapse all financial matters into a single article
o Collapse core formation, definition, management provisions into an article related to programs
o Specifically articulate in the bylaws that the article related to programs meets the JPA requirement for program bylaws as
operationalized and changed from time to time via other governing documents (e.g., MOC, etc.)

•

Simplifying & Updating Language
o Member – will be used only to refer to the municipal entity (not an individual) and only in reference to the JPA (not an ICRMA
program)
o Participant – will be used only to refer to the municipal entity and only in reference to a specific ICRMA program
o Governing Board – will be replaced with Board of Directors. There is no other board for “governing” to contrast with, and Board
of Directors is widely accepted in the field
o The Authority – will be replaced with ICRMA. It eliminates confusion with use of authority as a verb and personalizes the text.
o General Manager – will be replaced with Executive Director. This aligns with the field and current usage by ICRMA. It also better
describes the role, relationship with the board, and expectations for performance.
o Delegate & Representative – will be largely eliminated throughout the documents. To the degree representative is used it will
refer to the individual speaking for the member at any given time and dissociated from anything to do with governance of ICRMA.
There will be no reason to continue use of Delegate as a noun.
o Director – will be used only to refer to the individual appointed by the Member to serve on the Board of Directors. It is this

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.
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o
o
o
o
o

person who has been granted voting authority.
Alternate or sub-alternate – will only be used in lower case to refer to individuals appointed by the Member to serve in the
Director’s absence. They are not members of the Board of Directors per se but are authorized to act in the Director’s absence
Members acting through their governing body – will be clarified to ensure there is no confusion with the ICRMA Board
Deposit Premium or Premium – replace with annual contribution
Insurance – replace with self-insured or pooled risk as appropriate to the context
Risk Management Program – replace with more generic ICRMA program with global definition that includes the various possible
components

•

Substantive Changes
o Unified amendment, voting and notice provisions
o Elimination of Administrative Committee and changes to settlement authority levels
o Director appointments and attendance

Ensure consistent, informed and thoughtful participation on the Board consistent with each individuals legal obligations

Ensure Member engagement in governance in a way that maximizes their commitment to and understanding of the pool

Create incentives for “good” behavior and enforceable consequences that allows the Board to self-monitor

ICRMA already has attendance expectations in its bylaws. As such, the change here is more about beefing up the
expectation and its enforcement

Changes that allow for board approval of Member appointments, Members to appoint ex officio
o Clarification of alternate role
o Clarification of Member obligations post withdrawal
o Addition of Mission statement, member recusal and dispute resolution language (with narrowed definition of dispute)
o Changes to dates for MLR change
o Clarification of dividend and assessment language

•

CAVEAT – We cannot make a completely clean break with some of these terms until other governing documents are changed as well.
As a result, there will be parentheticals included that link the terms – e.g., Executive Director (referred to in some governing
documents as General Manager, these terms are intended to be synonyms)

Formatting Key

ARTICLE 3.
In order to facilitate reading and ease of use, we have employed the following formatting conventions.
•
•
•
•
•

Bold Blue Text – Highlights references to specific laws or provisions in other ICRMA governing documents
Underlined Text – Highlights dates, deadlines, notice periods, terms, and the like
In the annotations, grey text is language quoted from another text, and red text is for notes and/or comments
Also in the annotations, larger text identify items for in-depth board discussion in December
Bold green text identifies edits made since the August meeting

Restated Bylaws

Draft Provisions JPA Language & Annotations

ARTICLE I – PURPOSE

Therefore its mission is to be the premier member-focused association of California
public entities, joined together to protect member resources by managing the cost of
risk, by providing its members with comprehensive risk management services and
broad coverage, resulting in cost stabilization and effective risk solutions.

JPA: “Pursuant to Article I (commencing with
Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the
Government Code of the State of California, the
Members hereby create a public entity, separate and
apart from the Members, to be known as the
Independent Cities Risk Management Authority,
hereinafter referred to as “ICRMA” or the "Authority".
Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508.1, the
debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Authority shall
not constitute debts, liabilities, or obligations of any
Member.

Further objectives and authority may be provided for in the ICRMA Joint Powers
Agreement (the Agreement) as amended from time to time.

The purpose of creating this Authority is to exercise the
powers of the Members to jointly accomplish the
following:

The Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (ICRMA) is established for the
purpose of operating and maintaining a cooperative program of self-insurance, jointly
purchased insurance coverage, and risk management; and to provide a forum for the
discussion, study, development, and implementation of procedures of mutual benefit
in risk sharing and risk management programs.

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.
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Draft Provisions JPA Language & Annotations
2.1.1
Develop effective Risk Management
Programs to reduce the amount and frequency of their
losses.
2.1.2
Develop Risk Management Programs of
insurance to protect Members from the effects of
catastrophic or unexpected losses. Such programs shall
include, but not be limited to, coverages for losses
arising out of Tort Liability, Workers' Compensation,
Health Benefits, and the ownership or use of real or
personal property.
2.1.3
Design Risk Management Programs of the
Authority on a pooled or self-funded basis whereby the
Members share some portion, or all, of the costs of the
program losses.
2.1.4
Jointly purchase insurance, excess insurance,
or reinsurance and/or develop alternative financial
arrangements for the purpose of transferring risk of loss
to commercial insurers.
2.1.5
Assist Members to the maximum extent
authorized by law to secure long term solutions
enabling the Authority to provide adequate protection
to Members against catastrophic, or greater than
expected, claims and to attract major reinsurers for the
purpose of transferring risk.
2.1.6
Jointly secure administrative and other
services including, but not limited to, general
administration, underwriting, risk management, loss
prevention, claims adjusting, data processing,
brokerage, accounting, and legal services when related
to any of the other purposes.
The Authority shall have the powers common to its
Members and is authorized, in its own name, to do all
acts necessary and to exercise such common powers to
fulfill the purposes of this Agreement referred to in
Article 2 including, but not limited to, each of the
following:
8.1.1
Finance through the issuance of Bonds or
other financial instruments of indebtedness, selfinsurance reserve funds necessary or convenient for the
implementation of this Agreement.
8.1.2
Incur debts, liabilities, and obligations.
8.1.3
Acquire, hold, or dispose of real and
personal property.
8.1.4
Receive contributions and donations of
property, funds, services, and other forms of assistance
from any source.
8.1.5
Sue and be sued in its own name.
8.1.6
Employ agents and employees.
8.1.7
Acquire, construct, manage, maintain, or
operate buildings, works, or improvements.
8.1.8
Lease real or personal property, including
that of a Member.
8.1.9
Receive, collect, and disburse monies.
8.1.10
Invest money in the treasury of the Authority
in the same manner and on the same conditions as local
agencies pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.
8.1.11
Exercise all other powers necessary and
proper to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.
a. 8.1.12
Develop and
implement Risk Management
Programs.
8.1.13
Jointly purchase for the benefit of Members,
insurance, excess insurance, reinsurance, and enter into
agreements for the benefit of Members, for the purpose
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of transferring risk of loss to commercial insurers or
reinsurers or other insurance pools. “

ARTICLE II – DEFINITIONS & INTERPRETATION
Unless expressly provided otherwise, terms used in these Bylaws are as defined in the
Agreement and/or Memorandums of Coverage.
If any provision of these Bylaws conflicts with the Agreement, the Agreement governs.

JPA: “The following definitions shall apply to the
provisions of this Agreement and the By-Laws of the
Authority and Risk Management Programs:
3.1.1
"Agreement" …
3.1.2
"Board" or "Governing Board" …
3.1.3
"By-Laws" …
3.1.4
"Claim(s)" ….
3.1.5
"Fiscal Year" …
3.1.6
“Governing Documents” ….
3.1.7
"Insurance" ...
3.1.8
"Member”...
3.1.9
"Memorandum of Coverage" …
3.1.10
"Program Year" …
3.1.11
"Participation" or "Participating" …
3.1.12
"Risk Management" …
3.1.13
"Risk Management Program" …”

ARTICLE III – NOTICE
Unless otherwise specified, any notice to be given or to be served in connection with
these Bylaws must be in writing (i.e., mail, email, or other means of written
communication) and will be deemed to have been given and received when delivered
personally, by mail, email, or other approved method of delivery using the contact
information (physical or electronic) as shown on ICRMA’s records.
Any Member may change its address with five- (5) day written notice to ICRMA.

JPA: “Notices to each Member under this Agreement
shall be sufficient if mailed to its respective address on
file with the Authority. Any Member may designate any
other address in substitution of the foregoing address
to which such notice will be given at any time by giving
five days written notice to the Authority and all other
Members.”

Whenever applicable, notice shall be given in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act
(Government Code §54950 et seq.), hereafter the “Brown Act.”

ARTICLE IV – MEMBERS
A.

Membership
The Agreement defines Member eligibility under California law, and each party
to the Agreement is a Member.

B.

Application & Approval
In order to become a Member, a governmental agency must agree to be bound
1
by ICRMA’s Governing Documents, to participate in ICRMA’s liability program
(minimum participation required), and to comply with all requirements set forth
in the ICRMA underwriting policies then in effect and as subsequently modified
including an initial participation commitment of three (3) years.

JPA: “Any governmental agency, organized and

operating under the laws of the State of California
which is authorized to participate in a joint powers
authority under the Government Code may become a
member of the Authority by complying with the
requirements of the Authority By-Laws”

The Board of Directors shall either approve or disapprove the application
consistent with the ICRMA underwriting policies and relevant Board policy then
in effect and as subsequently modified.
JPA: “Any Member which enters a Risk Management
Program may withdraw from that Risk Management
Program and may at a later time seek to renew
participation in said Program subject to the terms and
conditions as set forth in the By-Laws of that particular
Risk Management Program.

C.

Withdrawal & Reapplication
1. Ability to Withdraw
a. Withdrawal by a Member from any or all programs must be in accord
with the provisions of ICRMA’s Governing Documents.

1

As defined in the Agreement, ICRMA’s Governing documents include the Agreement, ICRMA’s Bylaws, the Memoranda of Coverage and any other
document stipulated as a Governing Document in the Bylaws or by action of the Board of Directors.
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2.

3.

D.

b.

A Member may NOT withdraw prior to the end of its initial three (3)
year commitment period and shall be obligated for payment of its
ENTIRE annual contribution for those three (3) years.

c.

If a Member withdraws from all programs or fallen below the minimum
requirement of participation in the liability program, it will be deemed
to have withdrawn from ICRMA. Likewise, if a Member withdraws from
ICRMA it will be deemed to have withdrawn from all programs.

d.

No withdrawal may become effective EXCEPT at the close of a program
year in accordance with the notice provisions of Article IV, Section C.2
of these Bylaws. As such, annual contributions will NOT be pro rated.

Current Bylaw language: “13.5.3 Any member seeking
to withdraw without proper and effective notice shall
be responsible for the full cost of the subsequent year’s
premium, and the notice will be deemed effective for
the following year.”

Notice of Intent to Withdraw
a. Notice of intent to withdraw from ICRMA or to terminate participation
in a specific program must be from the City Manager or other duly
authorized official of the Member AND include the Council resolution or
meeting minutes of the Member authorizing such action.
b.

Notice of intent to withdraw from ICRMA’s liability program will be
treated the equivalent of withdrawal from ICRMA as a whole.

c.

For notice to be timely for a given program year beginning July 1, it
must be received by ICRMA no later than December 1 of the preceding
year. The Member may revoke such notice by providing subsequent
notice to ICRMA by January 15.

d.

Notice received after December 1 shall be considered UNTIMELY.

Ability to Reapply
Any Member, which has voluntarily withdrawn from ICRMA or a specific
program, may renew its participation by reapplying for membership and
complying with all ICRMA Governing Documents.

Obligations of Membership
The obligations of a Member include but are not limited to the following:
1.

A Member is no longer a party to the Authority or this
Agreement upon its withdrawal from all of the
Authority’s Risk Management Programs.”

General
a. ALL current AND past members shall be responsible for their respective
share of the expenses, as determined by the Executive Director, until all
claims, or other unpaid liabilities, covering the period of the Member’s
participation in the program have been finally resolved and the Board
has determined the final amount of payments due by, or credited to,
the Member for the period of its participation.
b.

ALL current AND past members shall be responsible for providing
accurate and factual data required by ICRMA on a timely basis to
determine appropriate cost of coverage.
The Member shall disclose activities not usual and customary in their
operation.

JPA: “Each Member represents and warrants that it
intends to, and does hereby, contract with all other
Members listed in Appendix "A", and any new members
admitted to the Authority pursuant to Article 16. Each
Member also represents and warrants that the
withdrawal or expulsion of any Member, pursuant to
Article 14 or 15, shall not relieve any Member of its
rights, obligations, liabilities or duties under this
Agreement or the individual Risk Management
Programs in which the Member participates.
Each Member agrees to be bound by and to comply
with all of the terms and conditions of the Governing
Documents and any Resolution or other action adopted
by the Governing Board as they now exist or may
hereinafter be adopted or amended. Each Member
assumes the obligations and responsibilities set forth in
the Governing Documents. “

The Member shall at all times cooperate with ICRMA, including its
Executive Director, program managers, Claims Committee, claims
adjusting company, and loss control personnel, in regards to ICRMA’s
underwriting activities, which shall include the collection of loss data in
accordance with the ICRMA Third Party Claims Administration Data
Request Standards.
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Failure to comply may subject the Member to sanctions, up to and
including termination from the affected program.
c.

NEITHER WITHDRAWAL NOR EXPULSION FROM ICRMA OR ANY OF ITS
PROGRAMS RELIEVES MEMBERS OF ANY BENEFITS OR OBLIGATIONS
OF THOSE PROGRAM YEARS IN WHICH THE ENTITY PARTICIPATED.
These obligations include payment of assessments, retrospective
adjustments, or any other amounts due and payable. In addition, the
obligation to provide timely claims data for evaluation of claims
exposure does not cease with termination from the program.

2.

d.

The withdrawal of any Member from any program shall not require the
repayment or return to that Member of all or any part of any
contributions, payments, advances, or distributions except in
conformance with the provisions set forth herein and in ICRMA’s
Governing Documents.

e.

All past members shall receive any distribution of dividends based on
the same methodology as applied to the current members.

f.

All Members shall be held accountable for understanding and abiding
by ICRMA’s Governing Documents, as well as any changes thereto.

Annual Contribution
The Board shall approve the annual contribution amount for each Member
entity as part of the approved annual budget. The Executive Director shall
recommend rates for each program in conjunction with ICRMA’s actuary or
other financial advisors, if deemed necessary. The contribution amount shall
be calculated according to an approved allocation formula or other
guidelines approved by the Board. Billing will occur annually with due dates
specified and failure to pay consequences as provided in the Bylaws or other
ICRMA Governing Documents.
2

Any Member seeking to withdraw without timely notice shall be
responsible for the full cost of the subsequent year’s contribution, and the
notice will be deemed effective for the following year. After that year, the
administrative fee shall apply as provided here.
3.

Administrative Fees
a. Applicability
Any withdrawing or expelled Member shall be subject to an
administrative fee equal to its pro rata share of ongoing expenses for
the three (3) program years following withdrawal. Ongoing expenses
include but are not limited to staff payroll and benefits, vendor
contracts, actuarial services, investment services, financial audits, and
claims audits and administration.
b.

Calculation
The administrative fee shall be calculated based on the member’s actual
payroll and self-insured retention level in the last year in which the
Member participated. It shall be charged to the Member as follows:
•

2

In year one (1), 100% of the administrative fee will be charged to
the member;

Current Bylaw language: “13.5.2 The withdrawal or
expulsion of any member of any risk management
program after the effective date of such pooling
program shall not terminate its responsibility to
contribute its share of premiums or funds to any fund or
insurance program created by the Authority. All current
and past members shall be responsible for their
respective share of the expenses, as determined by the
General Manager, until all claims, or other unpaid
liabilities, covering the period of the member’s
participation in the risk management program have
been finally resolved and a determination of the final
amount of payments due by, or credit to, the member
for the period of its participation has been made by the
Governing Board. All past members shall receive any
distribution of dividends based on the same
methodology of the current members. The withdrawal
or expulsion of any member from any program shall not

See Section C.2 of this Article for definition of timely notice.
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•
•

E.

In year two (2), 50% of the administrative fee will be charged to
the member; and
In year three (3), 25% of the administrative fee will be charged to
the member.

require the repayment or return to that member of all
or any part of any contributions, payments, advances,
or distributions except in conformance with the
provisions set forth herein and in the risk management
program’s Bylaws.”

Default & Remedies
The Agreement allows for expulsion of Members following material breach of the
Agreement per provisions to be included in these Bylaws. As such, this section
defines both expulsion and other remedies for Member default.
1.

Definition of Default
The following shall be "defaults" under the Agreement and these Bylaws:
a.

Failure by a Member to observe and/or perform any covenant,
condition, or agreement under ICRMA’s Governing Documents;

b.

Consistent failure by a Member to attend meetings, respect Board of
Directors decision-making authority, or otherwise circumvent ICRMA’s
integrity as a point powers agency;

c.

Consistent failure to cooperate fully in the fulfillment of the ICRMA
objectives, including but not limited to:
i.
Submission of requested documents and information;
ii. Cooperation with any insurer, claims adjuster, legal counsel or
other service provider engaged or retained by ICRMA in all matters
relating to ICRMA

Additional PROGRAM bylaw language:
The Board may initiate termination of future
participation for the following reasons:
•
•
•

d.

Failure to pay ANY amounts, including penalties and interest, due to
ICRMA for more than 30 days;

•

e.

Excessive losses as determined by the Board of Directors;

•

f.

The filing of a petition applicable to the Member in any proceedings
instituted under the provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy Code or
under any similar act which may hereafter be enacted; or

g.

2.

Current Bylaw language:
14.1.1.1 Failure by a member;
14.1.1.2 Consistent failure to: attend meetings,
submit requested documents and cooperate in the
fulfillment of the program objectives;
14.1.1.3 Failure to pay;
14.1.1.4 Excessive losses.
14.1.1.5 The filing of a petition; or
14.1.1.6 Any condition.

Any condition of the Member that the Board of Directors believes is
unduly detrimental to ICRMA.

Remedies Upon Default
a. Scope of Remedy
No remedy contained in these Bylaws is intended to be exclusive.
Whenever a default as defined in this Article occurs, ICRMA may
exercise any and all remedies available pursuant to law or granted
pursuant to the Agreement and these Bylaws, including, but not limited
to increasing a Member’s retention, imposing a penalty or assessment,
canceling Member’s coverage, expulsion from any risk management
program, and/or expulsion of the Member from ICRMA.
b.

Notice
No such remedy shall be sought until the Member has been given 30
days’ notice of default from the Board, except defaults under Sections
E.1.e through g of this Article.

•
•
•

Termination as a Member of ICRMA;
Declination to cover the participant by the entity
providing excess coverage;
Nonpayment of premiums, assessments, or other
charges;
Frequent late payment of premiums, assessments,
and/or other charges: subject to interest and
penalty charges;
Failure to timely provide requested underwriting
information;
Consistent poor loss history relative to the pool;
Substantial change in exposures which are not
acceptable in the program; and/or
Financial impairment that is likely to jeopardize
the program’s ability to collect amounts due in the
future

The Board shall have ICRMA, as provided in Section
5.1.3.14 of ICRMA Bylaws to send termination notice to
a participant. Such notice shall be sent at least 60 days
prior to termination.
Current Bylaw language: “Whenever any event of
default referred to in Section 14.1 of this article shall
have occurred, it shall be lawful for the Authority to
exercise any and all remedies available pursuant to law
or granted pursuant to the Agreement and these
Bylaws, including, but not limited to increasing a
member’s retention, penalty or assessments, canceling
member’s coverage, or expulsion of the member.
However, no remedy shall be sought for defaults, until
the member has been given 30 days written notice of
default from the Governing Board, except defaults
under Sections 14.1.1.4, 14.1.1.5, and 14.1.1.6 in
Section 14.1.1.”
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c.

d.

e.

Late Fees, Penalties & Interest
i.
Unless other arrangements for payment have been approved by
the Board of Directors, Members with delinquent amounts due to
ICRMA shall be assessed a penalty of:
•
One percent (1%) of the unpaid amount due to ICRMA 30 days
after the initial invoice due date.
•
A penalty of another one percent (1%) shall accrue after an
additional 45 days.
ii.

Interest shall accrue on all delinquent amounts due and payable to
ICRMA at the applicable rate of 10% per annum from the due date
of the billing until the date finally posted by the designated
financial institution.

iii.

For the purpose of assessing penalties and interest, the fee
calculation shall be based on each calendar day the delinquent
amount is late, notwithstanding the foregoing. No late fee or other
charge shall exceed the maximum authorized by law.

iv.

Each Member shall indemnify ICRMA from any expense resulting
from its failure to pay the sum due on or before the due date.

v.

Any late fee assessed in accordance with the provisions of this
Section may be appealed. Such appeal shall be in accordance with
ICRMA’s Dispute Resolution Policy as contained in Article XI of
these bylaws.

Cancellation of Coverage under a Program
Upon any default, the Board of Directors may:
i.

Temporarily cancel any or all rights of the defaulting Member in
any program in which such Member is in default until such time as
the condition causing default is corrected and/or other conditions
are met (e.g., the Board of Directors may elect to temporarily
suspend coverage if a Member fails to pay its contribution); OR

ii.

Permanently cancel any or all rights of the defaulting Member in
any program in which such Member is in default.

Involuntary Termination or Expulsion
The Board may expel any Member that is in default as defined in
Section E of this Article.
i.

ii.

iii.
3.

Such expulsion shall be effective on the date prescribed by the
Board, but not earlier than 30 days after notice of expulsion has
been personally served on or sent via certified mail to the
Member.
As stated in Article IV.D of these Bylaws, neither withdrawal nor
expulsion from ICRMA or any of its programs relieves members of
any benefits or obligations of those program years in which the
entity participated.
The Board in its discretion may impose conditions for curing any
grounds for expulsion, and for reinstating the member to its rights.

JPA: “The Governing Board may expel any Member
from the Authority and/or from a Risk Management
Program at any time for material breaches of the
Governing Documents. Such expulsion shall be as
provided in the By-Laws of the Authority or each
Individual Risk Management Program.”
Program Bylaws: “The Governing Board shall have the
authority, as provided in Section 5.1.3.14 of the
Authority Bylaws to send termination notice to a
participant. Such notice shall be sent at least 60 days
prior to termination.”

Agreement to Pay Attorney's Fees and Expenses
In the event either ICRMA or a Member is in default and the other party
employs attorneys or incurs other expenses for the collection of moneys or
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the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation under the
Agreement on the part of the defaulting party, the losing party shall pay to
the other party the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other
expenses so incurred by the other party.
4.

No Additional Waiver Implied
No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any
default shall impair any such right or shall be construed to be a waiver
thereof.
In the event any condition contained in ICRMA’s Governing Documents is
breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other party, such
waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived, and shall not be
deemed to waive any other breach hereunder.

ARTICLE V – BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A.

Authority of the Board of Directors
1. General
a. ICRMA is governed by its Board of Directors (the Board).

1.

2.

b.

The Board shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and
perform all relevant functions, and make all decisions affecting ICRMA’s
programs, consistent with the powers of ICRMA and not in conflict with
the Agreement, these Bylaws, or other Governing Documents.

c.

The Board shall provide policy direction for the Executive Director and
ICRMA committees.

JPA: “The Authority shall be governed by a Governing
Board the composition of which shall be set forth in the
Authority’s By-Laws. Immediately upon admission of a
new Member pursuant to Article 16, the Member shall
be entitled to appoint a Representative to the
Governing Board and an alternate Representative and,
if desired, a substitute alternate Representative, each of
whom shall meet the parameters set forth in the
Authority’s By-Laws. Decisions of the Member
representative, or the Governing Board in his/her
absence, shall be binding on the Member.
The Representatives to the Governing Board and to
each of the Risk Management Programs and any
officer, employee, contractor, or agent of the Authority
shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the
exercise of their power and in the performance of their
duties under this Agreement.”

Delegation
The Board may delegate ANY of its responsibilities EXCEPT:

a.

Those requiring a vote by the Board as specified in the Agreement,
ICRMA’s Governing Documents, OR

b.

Those listed here:
i. Accept a new Member into ICRMA or alter a Member’s retained
limit
ii. Adopt a budget
iii. Amend any of its Governing Documents, including these Bylaws
iv. Approve contracts for ICRMA administrative services and legal
counsel
v. Approve dividends and/or assessments to Members
vi. Establish, amend, or terminate a program
vii. Settle matters in excess of the Claims Committee authority
viii. Approve indebtedness
ix. Expel, terminate or suspend the rights of a Member
x. Approve dissolution of ICRMA

Voting Authority
All matters within the purview of the Board may be decided by a simple
majority (over 50%) vote of the Board, EXCEPT for the following matters
specified as requiring a two-thirds majority vote of the Board:
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a.
b.
c.
F.

Approve indebtedness
Expel, terminate or suspend the rights of a Member
Approve dissolution of ICRMA

Eligibility & Appointment
1. Voting Director
The ICRMA Board shall be comprised of one (1) Voting Director appointed
from each Member agency.
2.

Alternates
Each Member may appoint up to two (2) alternates to the Voting Director,
who may vote only in the absence of the Voting Director. Other than this use
of alternates, no proxies are allowed for Board business.

JPA: “The Authority shall be governed by a Governing

Board the composition of which shall be set forth in the
Authority’s By-Laws. Immediately upon admission of a
new Member pursuant to Article 16, the Member shall
be entitled to appoint a Representative to the
Governing Board and an alternate Representative and,
if desired, a substitute alternate Representative, each of
whom shall meet the parameters set forth in the
Authority’s By-Laws. Decisions of the Member
representative, or the Governing Board in his/her
absence, shall be binding on the Member.”

The purpose of appointing alternates is to ensure near-perfect Member
attendance at Board meetings. The purpose is NOT to facilitate the absences
of the Voting Director.
Unless specified otherwise, all provisions of the Bylaws that apply to the
Voting Director (“Director”) shall apply equally to any appointed alternates.
3.

Eligibility
a. All Directors must EITHER be an elected official OR hold a position with
the equivalent authority of a Department Director within the Member
hierarchy.
b.

4.

G.

Appointments must be of a specifically named individual or specific
position (e.g., City Manager) named ex officio in order to be approved
by the ICRMA Board. If the latter appointment is used, the Member
must provide specific contact information with the initial resolution and
notify ICRMA of any changes to that information within 48 hours of the
change.

Form of Appointment
a. All Director appointments shall be made via Member Council resolution
or other appointment process recognized as official by the Member.
b.

ICRMA shall be promptly notified in writing of any new or changed
appointments.

c.

The ICRMA Board has the right to approve or reject any appointments.
As such it may, at its discretion, reject a specific appointment and
request that the Member select another to appointment.

Resignation, Removal & Vacancy
1. Resignation
a. Any Director may resign at any time by giving notice of resignation to
the ICRMA Executive Director.

2.

b.

Such resignation shall be effective immediately unless another time is
specified.

c.

Acceptance of such resignation is not necessary to make it effective.

Removal
a. The Board may request removal of any Director for cause at which point
the Member shall make a new appointment. Cause for removal of the

JPA: “… shall be removed from the Governing Board
upon the occurrence of any one of the following events:
(1) the expulsion or withdrawal of the Member from the
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Voting Director includes, but is not limited to, absence from two (2) or
3
more consecutive meetings , failure to adhere to approved code of
conduct, repeated failure to fulfill the duties set forth these bylaws or
other board-approved policy statements, repeated failure to address
conflicts of interest, or other actions that jeopardize IRCMA or the
Board’s governance function.

3.

H.

b.

The appointing Member may remove its Director with or without cause.

c.

Termination of office or employment with the appointing Member shall
automatically terminate a Director’s appointment to the Board.

Authority; (2) the death or resignation of the Member
Representative; (3) the Authority receives the written
notice from the Member that the Member
Representative is no longer a member of the governing
body of the Member or as otherwise provided in the
Authority’s By-Laws.”

Vacancy
The respective Member shall promptly fill any Board vacancy regardless of
the cause of the vacancy.

Meetings
1. Chair
The President chairs the Board.
2.

Regular Meetings
a. The Board shall hold regular meetings each year at the time and place
of its choosing.
b.

3.

Discussion of developments and performance of any program may
occur as part of any scheduled meeting.

Special Meetings
a. EITHER the President OR 20% of voting Directors may call a special
meeting by notifying the Executive Director of the purpose of the
meeting.
b.

JPA: “The Governing Board and all standing

committees shall hold meetings at the location and
time set forth in the By-Laws of the Authority and each
individual Risk Management Program.”

FOR BOARD DISCUSSION: Do we want to
consider moving to monthly meetings with
WebX (or similar) options and virtual voting?

The Executive Director shall provide 24-hour notice to each Voting
Director of a special meeting in compliance with the Brown Act.

4.

Quorum
Quorum for the transaction of business shall be as defined in the
Agreement.

5.

Participation by Conference Telephone
Directors or any committee members may participate in a meeting by
teleconference in compliance with the Brown Act.

6.

Brown Act Requirements
All meetings of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with the Brown
Act.

JPA: “A majority of the members of the Governing
Board is a quorum for the transaction of business.
However, less than a quorum may adjourn from time to
time. A vote of the majority of a quorum at a meeting is
sufficient to take action”

JPA: “All meetings of the Governing Board, and
appointed committees, including without limitation,
regular, adjourned regular, and special meetings, shall
be called, noticed, held, and conducted in accordance
with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Section 54950 et. seq. of
the Government Code).“

I.

Authority of Individual Directors
1. General
Each Director is individually expected to:
•
Meet all legal obligations of Board service,
•
Perform all duties set forth in ICRMA’s Governing Documents, and

3

See Section C.2 of this Article for authority to remove a Director based on meeting attendance.
See also Article III, Section E.1 in which consistent failure by a Member to attend meetings is default under the Agreement.
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•

2.

3.

J.

Serve with keen attention to ICRMA’s purpose and high professional
standards

Voting Authority
a. ICRMA allows no proxies. Thus, Voting Directors and alternates shall
exercise independent judgment in all ICRMA matters including but not
limited to voting, making motions, or otherwise acting in a governance
capacity at a Board meeting.
b.

ONLY the Voting Director in attendance may vote, make motions, or
otherwise act in a governance capacity at a Board meeting.

c.

An alternate may vote, make motions, or otherwise act in a governance
capacity ONLY in the Voting Director’s absence.

d.

In no instance may a Member have more than one vote on any item
before the Board or have more than one appointee vote, make
motions, or otherwise act in a governance capacity during a single
meeting.

e.

A Member shall notify ICRMA of an anticipated Voting Director absence
as soon as practicable, at which point the Member will declare which
alternate will exercise its voting authority for a given meeting. Only
upon such declaration may an alternate vote.

Binding on Members
Actions properly approved or taken by the Board shall be binding on all
Members regardless of the individual vote of any Director.

Conflicts of Interest
ICRMA’s Conflict of Interest Policy incorporates by reference California Code of
Regulations, §18730, and any amendments thereto.
Whenever a member city is involved in litigation with the Independent Cities Risk
Management Authority ("ICRMA"), the representative of that member city shall
not participate in, nor be present during, any discussion between ICRMA counsel
and the ICRMA Governing Board or any of its committees, nor shall any legally
privileged communication between ICRMA's counsel and the Governing Board or
the Committee be distributed to the representative of the member city.

ARTICLE VI – OFFICERS
A.

Number
ICRMA has four (4) Officers – President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary –
each of which is elected by the Board as set forth in these Bylaws.

B.

Duties
All Officers are expected to maintain regular meeting attendance and to ensure
that ICRMA affairs are carried out consistent with its mission, Bylaws, and
Governing Documents. In addition, individual offices have specific duties as
follow:
1.

JPA: “The Governing Board shall elect a president, vicepresident, Treasurer and Secretary from among its
members. The manner of election and term of office of
elected officers and their authority and responsibilities
shall be as set forth in the Authority By-Laws. If any of
the officers cease to be a Member’s representative, the
resulting vacancy shall be filled as provided in the
Authority By-Laws. The Governing Board may appoint
such other officers as it considers necessary”

President
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The President shall:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
2.

Vice President
The Vice President serves as may be required in the President’s absence with
all the attendant powers and duties. The Vice President shall also serve ex
officio on all committees. The Vice President shall have such other powers
and perform such other duties as may be designated from time to time by
the Board.

3.

Secretary
The Secretary is responsible for all ICRMA minutes, notices and records as
well as such other duties as may be assigned by the Board.

JPA: “Minutes of regular, adjourned regular, and special
meetings of the Authority shall be kept under direction
of the Secretary. As soon as possible after each
meeting, the Secretary shall forward copies of the
minutes to each Governing Board member.”

4.

Treasurer
The Treasurer:

JPA: “Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.6, the
Governing Board shall designate an officer or employee,
or officers and employees, to receive, deposit, invest,
and disburse the property of the Authority pursuant to
Government Code Sections 6505 and 6505.5. The
Governing Board shall fix the amount of the fidelity
bond to be filed by such public officer(s) and/or
employee(s).”

a.
b.

c.
d.
e.
C.

D.

Chair all Board meetings of ICRMA;
Appoint the members of all ICRMA ad hoc committees;
Execute documents on behalf of ICRMA as authorized by the Board, or
delegate to the Executive Director;
Serve as the primary liaison between ICRMA and any other
organization;
Serve ex officio on all committees; and
Have such other powers and duties as the Board may designate from
time to time.

Ensures the custody and management of ICRMA funds, accounts, and
property, in accordance with the California Government Code;
Supervises the maintenance of such records to assure that financial
accounts, records, funds, and property are maintained in accordance
with accepted accounting practices and procedures prescribed by the
Government Accounting Standards Board;
Provides for inspection of all financial records;
Oversees, monitors and reports on investment action; and
Oversees and monitors the financial audit.

Eligibility & Terms of Office
1. Any Director is eligible for election and continuation in office as President,
Vice President, Treasurer or Secretary, provided no Member is allowed more
than one representative appointee in office at any time.
2.

Officers serve two- (2)-year terms commencing with the start of the fiscal
year unless otherwise specified. Officers serve for their elected terms with
ICRMA, until termination of office or employment with their Member OR
until removal from office by a majority vote of the Board, whichever
is earliest.

3.

The President of the Board shall appoint the Treasurer every year as the
investment delegate in accordance with Government Code §53607 and
ICRMA Investment Policy.

Elections
1. Frequency
The Board holds annual elections in order to stagger terms appropriately.
The Board will from time to time approve a procedure for this.
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2.

Nominations
a. The Nominating Committee shall receive nominations and present
candidates for office to the Board prior to the last regular Board
meeting of the fiscal year.
b.

3.

4.

Nominations may also be made at the time of the meeting, provided
the candidate(s) meet the requirements set forth in these Bylaws or
other Governing Documents.

Voting
a. Elections generally occur at the last regular Board meeting of the fiscal
year.
b.

Those candidates receiving a majority of votes in each office will
succeed to those offices.

c.

If no nominee receives a majority vote, the nominee with the least
votes shall be deleted as a nominee and a new vote taken. This
elimination process will continue until one nominee receives a majority
vote. If two or more nominees are tied with the least votes, then
another vote shall be taken immediately. If that does not eliminate a
nominee, then the outgoing President will eliminate one of the
nominees with the least number of votes by way of a random process of
his/her choosing (e.g., a coin flip).

Vacancy
a. Vacancies in any office may be filled by Presidential appointment, with
the approval of the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting held
after the vacancy occurs.
b.

A vacancy in the position of President shall be filled by election at
the next regularly scheduled Board meeting held after the vacancy
occurs.

ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES
A.

Standing Claims Committee
1. Authority
The Claims Committee has the responsibility and authority to perform all
functions delegated to it by the Board and make all decisions affecting
ICRMA Programs, provided that such functions and decisions are consistent
with the powers of ICRMA and are not in conflict with ICRMA Governing
Documents.
Specifically, the Committee is responsible for reviewing all aspects of each
program, including, but not limited to:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
2.

Claims handling, review and settlement as provided herein
Memorandum of Coverage
Litigation Management Procedures
Proposals for Claims Adjusters, Claims Auditors, and Legal Defense
Services
Negotiating and approving contracts within its scope of
responsibilities, $50,000 or less, and within the approved budget
appropriations
Items referred by the Board

Limitations
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a.
b.

4

The Committee forwards recommendations to the Board for approval.
Any claim above the Committee’s authority must be brought to the
Board for approval.

3.

Disputes Regarding Management of a Claim
Any claims settlement or arbitration decision made by the Claims Committee
may be appealed. Such appeal shall be in accordance with the Memorandum
of Coverage.

4.

Eligibility & Appointment
a. The Claims Committee consists of no fewer than five (5) and no more
than nine (9) Directors serving three- (3) year terms. On average, ICRMA
will endeavor to maintain seven (7) on the Committee.
b.

No proxies are allowed for Claims Committee business.

c.

The Claims Committee recommends Directors to its available seats,
making efforts to include:
i.
A balanced mix of Participants from in each program
ii. At least one (1) individual working in each of the following
disciplines: Risk Management, Finance, Legal, Human Resources,
and Administration.

d.

The Board approves Committee appointments ensuring that no
Member holds more than one representative appointee to the
Committee at any given time.

e.

Any Claims Committee Director appointed by a Member that has
announced its intent to withdraw from ICRMA loses her/his eligibility to
serve on the committee following the January 15 deadline to rescind
said notice.

5.

Vacancies
The President may fill Committee vacancies by appointment, with the
approval of the Board, at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting held
after the vacancy occurs.

6.

Meetings
a. Chair
The Claims Committee elects a Chair and Vice Chair from among its
number. In the absence of or inability of the Chair to act, the Vice Chair
shall act as Chair. If either the Chair or Vice Chair ceases to be eligible to
serve on the Committee, the resulting vacancy will be filled at the next
meeting of the Claims Committee.
b.

Attendance
Attendance at Claims Committee meetings is essential to conducting
ICRMA business. A Claims Committee member missing a maximum of
two (2) in a fiscal year shall be subject to review by the Board
4
concerning forfeiture of his/her seat on the Committee.

c.

Frequency
The Claims Committee meets as required but not less than four (4)
times a year. Such meetings will be duly noticed, and an agenda will be
distributed to all Claims Committee members.

See Section D.2.1 of this Article for authority to remove a Director based on meeting attendance.
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d.

7.

B.

Quorum
A majority of the appointees to the Claims Committee shall be quorum
for the transaction of business

Brown Act Requirements
All meetings of the Claims Committee shall be conducted in accordance with
the Brown Act.

Other Committees
1. Nominating Committee
a. The President shall periodically appoint a nominating committee for the
purpose of officer elections.
b.
2.

The Nominating Committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3) and
a maximum of five (5) Directors.

Ad Hoc
The President may appoint an ad hoc committee at any time.

ARTICLE VIII – ADMINISTRATION
A.

Executive Director
1. The Board shall appoint ICRMA’s Executive Director (referred to as “General
Manager” in some ICRMA Governing Documents).

2.
B.

The Executive Director may, but need not be, an employee of ICRMA, a
consultant, or a corporation.

Responsibilities
The Executive Director shall be responsible for the daily administration,
management, and operation of ICRMA and its programs subject to the direction
and control of the Board of Directors and as clarified in ICRMA Governing
Documents, relevant job descriptions and/or contracts.

ARTICLE IX – FINANCIAL MATTERS
A.

Fiscal year
ICRMA’s fiscal year shall be the period from July 1 of each year through June 30 of
the subsequent year.

B.

Budget
The Board shall adopt an annual budget by July 1 of each year, with receipt of a
draft budget forty-five (45) days prior thereto. The Board has the authority to
extend the deadline if it is unable to adopt a budget by July 1.

JPA: “The Governing Board shall adopt an annual
budget not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of
each Fiscal Year”

C.

Audit
1. Required
The Board shall cause an annual audit of the financial accounts and records
of ICRMA to be made by a qualified, independent individual or firm. The
minimum requirements of the audit are those prescribed by California law.

JPA: “The Governing Board shall cause an annual
financial audit of the accounts and records to be made
and filed as provided in the Authority’s By-Laws and the
laws of the State.”

2.

Filing
The financial audit report shall be filed with:
a. The State Controller's Office within 6 months of the end of the fiscal
year under examination; and
b. As a public record with each Member.

3.

Costs
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ICRMA shall bear all costs of the audit, charged against its operating funds.
D.

E.

F.
b.

General Administration of Funds
1. ICRMA is responsible for the strict accountability of all funds and reports of
all receipts and disbursements.
2.

ICRMA shall comply with all relevant law, including California Government
Code §6505.

3.

ICRMA offers participation in a risk sharing pool, covering losses of
participants in accordance with the Agreement and the applicable
Memorandum of Coverage. The assets of the pooled program shall be
maintained at all times as the assets of the participants collectively. The
assets may be disbursed only pursuant to the provisions of these Bylaws,
and no participant shall have an individual right to exercise control over said
assets except as provided in the Agreement.

JPA: “Funds of the Authority may be used to defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless the Authority and any
member of the Governing Board, any member of a Risk
Management Program, and any employee of the
Authority for their actions taken within the scope of
their duties while acting on behalf of the Authority.
Nothing herein shall limit the right of the Authority to
purchase insurance to provide such coverage as is
hereinabove set forth.”

Program Accounting
1. The accounting method for each risk management program will be in
accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws governing that program and
Government Accounting Standards Board principles.

JPA: “Funds of the Authority may be commingled for
investment and administration purposes. However,
each Risk Management Program shall be accounted for
separately on a full accrual basis.

2.

Funds received for each program shall be accounted for separately on a fullaccrual basis.

The Governing Board shall establish the policy for
warrants drawn to pay demands against the Authority.

3.

Each program year shall be accounted for separately, unless the Board
approves a multi-year program funding option. Specifically, the income and
expenses of each program year shall be accounted for separately from any
other program year's income or expenses.

4.

A program year shall not be closed until such time that the Board authorizes
closure, being convinced that known claims for the year are all closed and
the probability of further claims being discovered is minimal. Any closed
years MAY be reopened at any time if deemed necessary and approved by
the Board.

5.

An independent actuary shall test the condition of each self-insured risk
management programs of ICRMA on an annual basis. The condition of each
open program year within each such program shall be tested to determine
its actuarial soundness. If it is determined by the actuary that any year is no
longer actuarially sound; an accountant, auditor and/or other financial
services provider advises that the assets of a program, as a whole, do not
meet the expected discounted losses; or other facts or circumstances appear
such that the Board concludes, in its discretion, that levying an assessment
would be fiscally prudent and appropriate actions may be taken. In
addition, , the Board reserves the right to assess the members of any
program an amount determined by the Board to be necessary for the
soundness of the program and to allocate such assessment to the members
in a fair and equitable manner.

The coverage for each Program Year of each Risk
Management Program shall be as specified in the
Memorandum of Coverage or policies of insurance for
that Program Year of the Risk Management Program.”

Annual Member Contribution
The Executive Director, in conjunction with an actuary, shall establish rates and
annual Member contributions for each program, subject to Board approval with
the adoption of the budget.
Each Member shall be evaluated annually for an experience modification
adjustment that shall be applied to its annual contribution. The calculation of the
adjustment shall include the actual loss experience of the individual Member.
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Any Member benefiting from the indirect expenses from a program, to which the
Member does not belong, will be charged its allocable share of the expenses.
G.

Dividends, Assessments & Reserve Fund
1. Dividends
a. The Board may declare dividends only when funds available exceed
those available to pay for losses exceed known claims, an actuarially
sound provision for case development, an actuarially sound provision
for IBNR, provision for unexpected management expenses, and a
provision for unrestricted surplus. Such dividend will be distributed in
an equitable manner. When declared by the Board, the dividend must
be explicitly named a dividend. As such no other transfer of funds,
allocation of credits, creation of incentives or other financial benefits
to members may be considered to be “dividends” unless expressly
declared as such. Dividends are never required, and any dividends
available to be declared and returned to the Members will be at the
discretion of the Board.

2.

b.

The first dividend calculation shall be performed five (5) years after the
end of the program year. Additional calculations shall be made each
year thereafter until such time as the program year is closed.

c.

Because funds received for each program are accounted for separately
on a full-accrual basis, and further because each program year shall be
accounted for separately, any transfer of surplus funds among
program years treated as a dividend and must be expressly approved
by the Board of Directors.

d.

Calculation
i. Dividends are available to be declared ONLY at such time as the
program has equity, with liabilities actuarially stated
undiscounted at a 90% confidence level.
ii.

The calculated amount shall represent the maximum dividend
available to be declared.

iii.

This amount shall be reduced if the two (2) succeeding years
(after the fifth program year reaches eligibility) have negative
equity, with liabilities actuarially stated at an expected
confidence level.

iv.

Each Member’s share of any dividends shall be allocated based
upon the method by which the deposit premiums were
collected, beginning with the oldest program year. However,
until the last claim of a program year has been paid and the
program year has been closed, the program year must maintain
sufficient funds to satisfy the 90% confidence level discounted
requirement.

Assessments
a. If the Board determines that a program lacks sufficient funds as
described under Article IX, Section E.5 of these Bylaws for a given
program year or for the program as a whole, the Board may at its
discretion assess the participating Members an amount sufficient to
correct the insufficiency. There is no requirement that the program
year be closed prior to making such an assessment.

NOTE: The details re calculation will be moved to the
comprehensive financial policy document once
approved.

NOTE: The details re calculation will be moved to the
comprehensive financial policy document once
approved.
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b.

The Board shall determine the timing of the payment at the time the
assessment is levied as well as any potential interest to be assessed on
late payments.

c.

Calculation
i. Each Member’s share of the assessment shall be allocated based
upon the method by which the annual contributions were
collected for the risk-sharing layer of each program year being
assessed.
ii.

d.

3.

H.

If such assessment is not sufficient to relieve the pool of its
actuarially determined deficit in the year of the assessment,
such assessment shall be levied each subsequent year until the
actuarial deficit is relieved.

Equity, from the risk-sharing layer, may be exchanged between eligible
program years IF sufficient funds are available as defined in ICRMA
Governing Documents then in effect and as subsequently modified. The
transfer of equity will be performed such that the each Member’s share
of equity is separately applied so as to maintain the integrity of the
Member’s balance.

Reserve Fund
a. Declared dividends, portions thereof, other surplus or discretionary
funds, may be directed and deposited into the Reserve Fund as
approved by the Board.
b.

The Reserve Fund shall be invested in accordance with the ICRMA
Investment Policy and shall earn interest at the prevailing rates. Such
interest earnings will be allocated quarterly with the preparation of the
financial statements. The total interest earned by ICRMA in any quarter
shall be allocated proportionately between the average cash balance in
the ICRMA program and the average Reserve Fund. An accounting will
be maintained of the individual Member’s portion of the Reserve Fund.

c.

The Reserve Fund shall be accounted for as a component of the
Program’s equity. The Reserve Fund will be used through Board action
for: 1) maintaining funds for disbursement of the dividend over an
extended distribution period (over one year); 2) rate stabilization for
future renewal increases; 3) enhancement or expansion of current
programs; 4) development of new programs, or 5) other Board
approved terms.

NOTE: Some of the detail here will be moved to the
comprehensive financial policy document once
approved.

Deposit and Investment of Funds
The Treasurer may deposit and invest ICRMA funds, subject to the same
requirements and restrictions that apply to the deposit and investment of the
general funds of a City incorporated in the State of California and in accordance
with ICRMA’s Investment Policy adopted by the Board annually.

ARTICLE X – COVERAGE PROGRAMS
A.

Purpose
The Agreement obligates ICRMA to establish programs of risk sharing, insurance,
and risk management services in such areas as the Board may determine
including, but not limited to, the areas of property, workers' compensation,
liability and benefits.

There are a number of items in the various
program bylaws providing specific participant
duties, application approval, fees for late
information, claims procedures and audits, etc.
That we have not so far included here but will be
placed in a single Master Underwriting and

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.

Page 22 of 61

Page 199 of 266

Draft Provisions JPA Language & Annotations

B.

The primary purpose in establishing each ICRMA Program is to create a method
for providing coverage for legal exposures incurred by the Member and ICRMA, as
provided in the related Memorandum of Coverage.

Program Administration Document.

Authorization
The Agreement further requires Board approval of Bylaws in order for such
programs to become operational with the full authority of the Agreement and the
powers specifically delegated to them by the Governing Board. The specific
requirement of program Bylaws is met for each new program with passage of its
authorizing ICRMA Resolution and approval of its Memorandum of Coverage or
other policy documents as relevant.

JPA: “The Governing Board shall establish Risk
Management Programs as provided in the Authority’s
By-Laws.

ICRMA’s Programs have been organized under authority granted by, and shall be
conducted in accordance with the laws of, the State of California and the
standards set forth by the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities
(CAJPA) in its accreditation standards.
Further, the provisions of these Bylaws are generally applicable to all ICRMA
programs and are operationalized through ICRMA’s Governing Documents.
C.

Participation & Coverage
1. Eligibility
a. Any Member may apply to participate in an ICRMA program by
complying with all requirements set forth in the ICRMA Governing
Documents then in effect and as subsequently modified.
b.

D.

No Risk Management Program shall become
operational, or possess any authority, until the
proposed Risk Management Program By-Laws have
been approved by the Governing Board. The voting on
the approval of By-Laws shall be restricted to Governing
Board Member representatives of the particular Risk
Management Program. Approval of the By-Laws and
any amendments thereto shall be as provided in the ByLaws of the individual Risk Management Programs. On
approval of the By-Laws, the various Risk Management
Programs shall become operational and will have all of
the powers specifically delegated to them by the
Governing Board.”

The Board of Directors shall either approve or disapprove the
application consistent with relevant Board policy then in effect and as
subsequently modified.

2.

Commitment Period
If accepted, the Member shall commit to three (3) full years of participation
in the program. Subsequently, the Member shall commit to at least one (1)
full year of participation per renewal.

3.

Coverage Terms
Each ICRMA coverage program provides coverage under the terms and
conditions set forth in its Memorandum of Coverage and/or related policy
documents. Although Programs are provided to the Members under those
terms and conditions which prevail when the Member joins, ICRMA’s Board
shall have the right to alter the terms and conditions of the program in
response to the needs and abilities of program participants, as well as in
response to availability of coverage from outside sources. The amount of
coverage to be pooled and/or purchased is at the discretion of the Board.

Program Management
A. Retained Limits
a. Each coverage program shall annually establish the limit of coverage
for the pool. The underlying coverage of the program shall provide
Members retained limits per occurrence, or other limits modified by
resolution.
b.

If as Member wants to change its retained limit for the beginning of
the following program year, it must request the change in writing no
later than January 15 of the prior program year.

c.

The Board may require a Member to have a retained limit different
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from the expiring program year, at the inception of a program year
and upon written notice sent no later than January 15 of the prior
program year.
d.
B.

C.

Excess Coverage
a. The Board shall ensure that each program year is provided with excess
coverage for the participants of each program.
b.

It is the intent and purpose of ICRMA to continue to provide such
coverage to the participants, provided that such coverage can be
obtained, and the coverage is not unreasonably priced. This coverage
may be obtained from an insurance company, by participating in
another pool established under the Government Code as a joint powers
authority, or offered through another program pooling procedure. If the
coverage is purchased from an insurance company, such insurance
company shall have an A.M. Best Rating Classification of A- or better
and an A.M. Best Financial Rating of VII or better or their equivalents.

c.

ICRMA shall pay the premiums for such coverage from the proceeds
received as annual contributions from its Participants.

d.

The Board may, from time to time, alter excess coverage based on
insurance market conditions, available alternatives, costs, and other
factors.

e.

The Board shall place excess coverage with the two competing
objectives of security and minimizing costs to each program as a whole.

NOTE: Some of the detail here may be moved to
another policy document in the next phase of this
project.

Claims Procedures
a. Claims policies and procedures including reporting procedures, forms,
and other vital information shall be adopted by the Board and provided
to all participants.
b.

D.

The Member shall pay the amount of each loss, including expenses,
which is less than the retained limit chosen by the applicable Member.

All Participants shall be held accountable for understanding and abiding
ICRMA Governing Documents then in effect and as subsequently
modified.

Settlement Authority
a. Each Member shall have settlement authority for any claim, as defined
in the Memorandum of Coverage, including attorney fees and other
costs, which does not exceed 100% of the amount remaining of the
Member’s Retained Limit. The Claims Committee will review these
claims from time to time and may offer its recommendation to the
participant’s Third Party Administrator (TPA) and the participant
regarding settlement.
b.

The Executive Director shall have authority to settle any claim, as
defined in the Memorandum of Coverage, up to $50,000 in excess of
the Retained Limit of the Member involved.

c.

The Claims Committee shall have authority to settle any claim, as
defined in the Memorandum of Coverage, up to $750,000 in excess of
the Retained Limit of the Member involved.

d.

The Board, unless otherwise delegated, retains unto itself the authority

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEM: the Bylaws
outline authority for claims, not
occurrences. Is this the Board’s intent?
Claim #1:
• City has an MRL of $100,000
• 1 occurrence has 5 claimants
• City spends $100K in legal, agrees to settle the 5 for $30K ea.
• Based on the current Bylaws, ED has settlement authority
for each of the 5 claims, even though the total incurred for
the occurrence would be $250K ($150K over the MRL).
Claim #2:
• 2 members involved, 1 with $300K MRL, 1 with $250K MRL
• 1 occurrence has 17 claimants, Cities splitting costs 50/50
• 1 claim settled for over $15M, Board provided authority
• Months later 7 claims settled at amounts from $2.5K - $50K
• Based on the current Bylaws, ED has settlement authority
for each of the claims, even though the total incurred for the
occurrence well exceeds stated authority
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to approve settlement of any other claim.

E.

Total incurred: We also need to clarify “settlement” v. “total
incurred value”. Based on the amount the members are
spending in legal defense, a member with a $300K SIR could
spend $700K in legal, settle the claim for $25K, and it would
technically not appear on any committee’s radar for authority.

Claims Audit
a. The adequacy of claims adjusting for both ICRMA and Members shall be
examined at least once every two years.
b.
c.
d.

The examination shall be by an independent auditor who specializes in
claims auditing.
c.
The costs of such claims audit shall be paid by ICRMA.
d.
The claims audit report shall address the issues of both adequacy of
claims procedures and accuracy of claims data. The report shall be filed
with ICRMA and sent to each Member.

ARTICLE XI – DISPUTE RESOLUTION
A.

Scope
The purpose of this Article is to provide Members with a process to address
conflicts or disagreements pertaining to membership issues, other than claim
handling issues and coverage issues, in a neutral and expeditious manner by
establishing standard procedures for their resolution.
All claims and coverage related disputes shall be addressed per the relevant
Memorandum of Coverage.

NOTE: This narrows the definition of “dispute” from
”any complaint or disagreement relating to
membership issues, including, but not limited to, the
terms and conditions of membership, obligations of
Members and ICRMA, interpretation or application of
policies and procedures, and the performance of staff
and ICRMA consultants” to the language in green

A “dispute” means complaint or disagreement relating to implementation of
ICRMA Governing Documents, policies and procedures that cannot be resolved in
the usual course of business despite the best efforts of both parties. This may
include but is not limited to, the terms and conditions of membership, obligations
of Members and ICRMA, interpretation or application of policies and procedures,
and the performance of staff and ICRMA consultants.
B.

Procedure
1. Formal Request for Resolution
a. Members shall submit disputes to the ICRMA Executive Director in
writing, clearly describing the dispute and related facts as well as efforts
made to resolve the issue before going to the Board.
b.

The Executive Director shall acknowledge receipt and refer the matter
to the Board for consideration within ten (10) days of receipt of the
written dispute.

c.

The Executive Director shall place the matter on the agenda for
discussion at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. If said
meeting is more than sixty (60) days from the date the dispute was
raised, a special meeting of the Board will be scheduled to discuss the
dispute.

d.

Within ten (10) days of the meeting, the Board shall render a written
decision to the Member.

e.

A dispute may be resolved at any state of the proceedings, and that
resolution shall be final and binding. Likewise, the Member may
withdraw a dispute at any stage in the procedure.

NOTE: Edited to be a single layer process now going
directly to Board since there is no longer an AC.
However, the complaints themselves go to the
Executive Director to start the process rather than the
President.

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEM: Can the
Board decide NOT to hear the issue?
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f.

Relevant penalties and interest will not accrue during a dispute.

2.

Presidential Request for Resolution
At the President’s discretion, if the President perceives or has information
that indicates a dispute pertaining to a membership issue exists, the
President may initiate a dispute resolution procedure without written notice
as required in a Formal Request for Resolution.

3.

Time Limits
Time limits shall be strictly enforced. However, any time limits established in
this policy, may be waived or extended by mutual agreement of both the
Member and ICRMA, and confirmed in writing.

ARTICLE XII – MISCELLANEOUS
A.

Conflicting Representation
After being notified in writing that one Member of ICRMA has filed a formal claim,
which could be reasonably construed to seek damages covered by a
Memorandum of Coverage, against another Member, in accordance with
provisions of the California Government Code, ICRMA will no longer act, on
behalf of either Member with respect to such claim, without written consent
from ALL members involved, insofar as the case giving rise to the claim is
concerned. Any action that ICRMA may choose to take is without waiver of any
provision or exclusion of any Memorandum of Coverage.

B.

Member Indemnification
California Government Code §895.2 imposes certain tort liability jointly upon
entities solely by reason of such entities being parties to an agreement as defined
in §895 of said Code. Therefore, the members hereto, as between themselves,
pursuant to the authorization contained in California Government Code §895.4
and 895.6, each assumes the full liability imposed upon it for any of its officers,
agents, or employees by law for injuries caused by a negligent or wrongful act or
omission occurring in the performance of this agreement, to the same extent that
such liability would be imposed in the absence of §895.2 of said Code. To achieve
this purpose, each Member indemnifies and holds all other members harmless for
any loss, cost, or expense that may be imposed upon such other Member solely
by virtue of California Government Code §895.2.

C.

Counsel Authorized
1. Legal counsel, to advise on matters relating to the operation of ICRMA, may
be recommended by the Executive Director and approved by the Board.
2.

JPA: “Each Member agrees to indemnify, save and
defend the Authority and all other Members harmless
from and against all claims, losses, and damages,
including legal fees and expenses, arising out of any
breach or default on the part of such Member in
performance of any of its obligations under this
Agreement, or any act or negligence of such Member or
any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees or
licensees with respect to this Agreement. No
indemnification is made under this Section for claims,
losses or damages, including legal fees and expenses,
arising out of the willful misconduct, negligence or
breach of duty under this Agreement by the Authority
or a Member or their officers, employees, agents or
contractors”

ICRMA shall have the right to pay such legal counsel reasonable
compensation for said services.

D.

Board Authorization
The Board may authorize the Executive Director, any officer, and/or agent, to
enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name and on behalf of
ICRMA. Such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances.
Unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any
power or authority to bind ICRMA by any contract or to pledge its credit or to
render it liable for any purpose or to any amount.

E.

Reimbursed Expenses
Directors shall receive no compensation for their services. However, ICRMA shall
reimburse any Director or Officer, who does not otherwise receive compensation,
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for actual expenses incurred, and reasonable out of pocket expenses of the
Director or Officer in the performance of his/her duty on behalf of ICRMA.
F.

Director & Officers Insurance
ICRMA may purchase insurance indemnifying the Directors, Officers, and
Administrative staff for personal liabilities arising out of wrongful acts in the
discharge of their duties to ICRMA or may elect to self-insure such risk.

G.

Claims Against ICRMA
Claims against ICRMA shall be presented to the mailing address of ICRMA.

ARTICLE XIII – TERMINATION & DISTRIBUTION
A.

Termination of a Program
1. A program may be terminated and dissolved any time during its first three
(3) years by the written consent of all participants, and thereafter by
the written consent of two-thirds of the participants. However, such a
program shall continue to exist for the purpose of disposing of all claims,
distributing assets and liabilities, and all other functions necessary to
conclude its affairs.

2.

B.

Upon termination of a program, all program assets and liabilities shall be
distributed only among the participants, including any which previously
withdrew pursuant to these Bylaws, in accordance with and proportionate
to their deposit premiums and assessments paid during the term of
participation. The Board shall determine such distribution within six (6)
months after the last pending claim or loss, covered by the program has
been finally resolved and there is a reasonable expectation that no new
claims will be filed.

Termination of the Authority
1. Upon termination of ICRMA, the assets of ICRMA shall be distributed and
apportioned among the Members that have been members in its programs,
including those Members that previously withdrew or were expelled
pursuant to these Bylaws, their predecessors or any other ICRMA Governing
Documents. Any additional funds received after the above distributions are
made shall be returned in proportion to the contributions made.

JPA: “This Agreement shall continue until terminated by
vote or written consent of two-thirds of the Members
provided, however, that this Agreement and the
Authority shall continue to exist for the purposes of
disposing of all claims, the distribution of assets, and
any other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of
the Authority.
Upon termination of this Agreement, all assets of the
Authority shall be distributed only among the Members
that have been participants in its Risk Management
Programs, including any of those Members which
previously withdrew or were expelled pursuant to
Articles 13 and 14 of this Agreement, in accordance
with and proportionate to their net premium payments
made during the term of this Agreement. The Governing
Board shall determine such distribution within six
months after the last claim covered by this Agreement
has been finalized.
The Governing Board is vested with all powers of the
Authority for the purpose of concluding and dissolving
the business affairs of the Authority. These include the
power to require those Members which were Risk
Management Program participants at the time of any
particular occurrence which was covered or alleged to
be covered under the Memorandum(s) of Coverage or
policies of insurance to pay their share of any additional
amount of premium deemed necessary by the
Governing Board for the final disposition of all claims
and expenses associated with such loss.”
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2.

The Agreement, these Bylaws, and ICRMA continue to exist after
termination for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of assets,
and all other functions necessary to conclude the obligations and affairs of
ICRMA.

ARTICLE XIV – EFFECTIVE DATE
Unless specified otherwise by Board resolution at the time approved for the purpose
of avoiding conflicts among documents, these Bylaws shall be effective immediately
upon the date of approval and upon adoption shall supersede and cancel any prior
Bylaws and/or amendments thereto. However, the adoption of these Bylaws shall not
affect the Agreement or any amendments to it.

NOTE: Effective date will depend on how the Board
decides to move forward with other documents and
strategic decisions. We may want to “grandfather”
some items in to ensure a smooth transition.

Any clauses in these Bylaws that are inconsistent with the Agreement shall be
superseded by those clauses in the Agreement but only to the extent and duration of
the inconsistency.

ARTICLE XV – AMENDMENTS
The Board of Directors may amend or repeal these Bylaws as provided in Article IV
Section A of these Bylaws.
Notice of intended amendment or repeal shall be given to each voting Director at
least 30 days prior to the taking of such action.

JPA: “This Agreement may be amended at any time by
vote of two-thirds of the Members acting through their
governing body. Amendments to the individual Risk
Management Program By-Laws require the two-third
vote of the Governing Board members representing
Members of that Risk Management Program.”
NOTE: By collapsing the program bylaws into this
document we intend to have all changes approved by a
majority of the full board. This will require a revision of
the JPA.
NOTE: The document can be edited further but only in
conjunction with a rewrite of the JPA, net asset policy,
and underwriting policy (at minimum).

NOTICE COPY – As of 9/8/2017 edits
*** ICRMA General Counsel must review and approve all documents prior to any vote by the Board of Directors.

Page 28 of 61

Page 205 of 266

Original Documents & Policies – for reference only
A.

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

The current version was adopted October 13, 2004. Prior changes were not listed in document.

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT
FOR INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT PURPOSES
This Fifth Amendment To Joint Exercise Of Powers Agreement For Insurance and Risk Management Purposes (“Agreement”) is executed by
and among the public entities, hereafter referred to as Member or Members, each of which is organized and existing under the laws of the
State of California and is a signatory to this Agreement and listed in Appendix "A", which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. This
Agreement, dated October 13, 2004, for identification purposes, amends the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement For Insurance and Risk
Management Purposes dated August 12, 1998.
RECITALS
This Agreement is predicated upon the following facts:
The following State laws, among others, authorize the Members to enter into this Agreement:
1. Labor Code Section 3700, permitting a Member to fund its own Workers' Compensation claims;
2. Government Code Section 990, permitting a Member to insure itself against tort or inverse condemnation liability;
3. Government Code Section 990.4, permitting a Member to provide insurance and self-insurance in any desired combination;
4. Government Code Section 990.6, permitting the proper costs for self-insurance to be charged against each Member and
authorizing the Governing Board to make premium payments for such coverage in an amount such Governing Board determines
to be necessary to provide such coverage;
5. Government Code Section 990.8, permitting two or more Members to enter into an agreement to jointly fund such expenditures
under the authority of Government Code Sections 6500 et seq.;
6. Government Code Section 6500 et seq., permitting two or more Members to jointly exercise, under an agreement, any power
which is common to each of them.
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual benefits, covenants, and agreements set forth in this Agreement, the Members
agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1.
CREATION OF THE INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY..
Pursuant to Article I (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California,
the Members hereby create a public entity, separate and apart from the Members, to be known as the Independent Cities Risk
Management Authority, hereinafter referred to as “ICRMA” or the "Authority". Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts,
liabilities, and obligations of the Authority shall not constitute debts, liabilities, or obligations of any Member.
ARTICLE 2.
PURPOSE.
The purpose of creating this Authority is to exercise the powers of the Members to jointly accomplish the following:
2.1.1
Develop effective Risk Management Programs to reduce the amount and frequency of their losses.
2.1.2
Develop Risk Management Programs of insurance to protect Members from the effects of catastrophic or unexpected
losses. Such programs shall include, but not be limited to, coverages for losses arising out of Tort Liability, Workers'
Compensation, Health Benefits, and the ownership or use of real or personal property.
2.1.3
Design Risk Management Programs of the Authority on a pooled or self-funded basis whereby the Members share some
portion, or all, of the costs of the program losses.
2.1.4
Jointly purchase insurance, excess insurance, or reinsurance and/or develop alternative financial arrangements for the
purpose of transferring risk of loss to commercial insurers.
2.1.5
Assist Members to the maximum extent authorized by law to secure long term solutions enabling the Authority to
provide adequate protection to Members against catastrophic, or greater than expected, claims and to attract major
reinsurers for the purpose of transferring risk.
2.1.6
Jointly secure administrative and other services including, but not limited to, general administration, underwriting, risk
management, loss prevention, claims adjusting, data processing, brokerage, accounting, and legal services when related
to any of the other purposes.
ARTICLE 3.
DEFINITIONS
The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this Agreement and the By-Laws of the Authority and Risk Management Programs:
3.1.1
"Agreement" shall mean this Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time, creating the Independent Cities Risk
Management Authority.
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3.1.2
3.1.3
3.1.4
3.1.5
3.1.6
3.1.7
3.1.8
3.1.9
3.1.10
3.1.11
3.1.12

3.1.13

"Board" or "Governing Board" shall mean the governing body of the Authority.
"By-Laws" shall mean the rules governing the management of the Authority and each individual Risk Management
Program.
"Claim(s)" shall mean demand(s) complying with the requirements of California Government Code Section 910 and
made against the Member arising out of occurrences which are covered or alleged to be covered by the Authority's
Memorandums of Coverage, or policies of insurance.
"Fiscal Year" shall mean the period of time commencing on July 1 of each year, and thereafter ending on June 30 each
following year.
“Governing Documents” shall mean this Agreement, the By-Laws of the Authority and each Risk Management Program,
the Memorandum of Coverage and any other document stipulated as a Governing Document in the By-Laws or by
action of the Governing Board.
"Insurance" shall mean insurance or reinsurance purchased by the Authority to cover losses for its Members.
"Member" shall mean any Municipal Corporation or public entity authorized to be a member of a Joint Powers
Authority, which is a party to this Agreement and is participating in one or more Risk Management Programs.
"Memorandum of Coverage" shall mean the document or documents issued by the Authority specifying the types of
coverages and limits provided to the Members.
"Program Year" shall mean a period of time in which each program shall be segregated for ease in determining
coverage premiums.
"Participation" or "Participating" shall mean a Member has elected to jointly participate in the management of a
specific risk and is a member of that Risk Management Program.
"Risk Management" shall mean the process of identifying, evaluating, reducing, transferring, and eliminating risks. Risk
Management includes, but is not limited to, various methods of funding claims payments, purchasing insurance, legal
defense of claims, controlling losses, and determining self-insured retention levels and the amount of reserves for
potential claims.
"Risk Management Program" shall mean those coverage programs of risk sharing, insurance, and risk management
services created by the Authority to manage specific Risk Management Programs, i.e. "Liability Risk Management
Program".

ARTICLE 4.
PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS.
4.1
Each Member represents and warrants that it intends to, and does hereby, contract with all other Members listed in
Appendix "A", and any new members admitted to the Authority pursuant to Article 16. Each Member also represents and
warrants that the withdrawal or expulsion of any Member, pursuant to Article 14 or 15, shall not relieve any Member of its rights,
obligations, liabilities or duties under this Agreement or the individual Risk Management Programs in which the Member
participates.
4.2
Each Member agrees to be bound by and to comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Governing Documents and any
Resolution or other action adopted by the Governing Board as they now exist or may hereinafter be adopted or amended. Each
Member assumes the obligations and responsibilities set forth in the Governing Documents.
ARTICLE 5.
GOVERNING BOARD.
5.1
The Authority shall be governed by a Governing Board the composition of which shall be set forth in the Authority’s By-Laws.
Immediately upon admission of a new Member pursuant to Article 16, the Member shall be entitled to appoint a Representative
to the Governing Board and an alternate Representative and, if desired, a substitute alternate Representative, each of whom shall
meet the parameters set forth in the Authority’s By-Laws. Decisions of the Member representative, or the Governing Board in
his/her absence, shall be binding on the Member.
5.2
The Member Representative and/or alternate Representative or substitute alternate Representative shall be removed from the
Governing Board upon the occurrence of any one of the following events: (1) the expulsion or withdrawal of the Member from
the Authority; (2) the death or resignation of the Member Representative; (3) the Authority receives the written notice from the
Member that the Member Representative is no longer a member of the governing body of the Member or as otherwise provided
in the Authority’s By-Laws.
5.3
Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.6, the Governing Board shall designate an officer or employee, or officers and
employees, to receive, deposit, invest, and disburse the property of the Authority pursuant to Government Code Sections 6505
and 6505.5. The Governing Board shall fix the amount of the fidelity bond to be filed by such public officer(s) and/or employee(s).
ARTICLE 6.
BOARD MEETINGS AND RECORDS
6.1
Regular Meetings. The Governing Board and all standing committees shall hold meetings at the location and time set forth in the
By-Laws of the Authority and each individual Risk Management Program.
6.2
Ralph M. Brown Act. All meetings of the Governing Board, and appointed committees, including without limitation, regular,
adjourned regular, and special meetings, shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act
(Section 54950 et. seq. of the Government Code).
6.3
Minutes. Minutes of regular, adjourned regular, and special meetings of the Authority shall be kept under direction of the
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6.4

Secretary. As soon as possible after each meeting, the Secretary shall forward copies of the minutes to each Governing Board
member.
Quorum. A majority of the members of the Governing Board is a quorum for the transaction of business. However, less than a
quorum may adjourn from time to time. A vote of the majority of a quorum at a meeting is sufficient to take action.

ARTICLE 7.
OFFICERS.
7.1
The Governing Board shall elect a president, vice-president, Treasurer and Secretary from among its members. The manner of
election and term of office of elected officers and their authority and responsibilities shall be as set forth in the Authority ByLaws. If any of the officers cease to be a Member’s representative, the resulting vacancy shall be filled as provided in the
Authority By-Laws. The Governing Board may appoint such other officers as it considers necessary.
ARTICLE 8.
POWERS.
8.1
The Authority shall have the powers common to its Members and is authorized, in its own name, to do all acts necessary and to
exercise such common powers to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement referred to in Article 2 including, but not limited to, each
of the following:
8.1.1
Finance through the issuance of Bonds or other financial instruments of indebtedness, self-insurance reserve funds
necessary or convenient for the implementation of this Agreement.
8.1.2
Incur debts, liabilities, and obligations.
8.1.3
Acquire, hold, or dispose of real and personal property.
8.1.4
Receive contributions and donations of property, funds, services, and other forms of assistance from any source.
8.1.5
Sue and be sued in its own name.
8.1.6
Employ agents and employees.
8.1.7
Acquire, construct, manage, maintain, or operate buildings, works, or improvements.
8.1.8
Lease real or personal property, including that of a Member.
8.1.9
Receive, collect, and disburse monies.
8.1.10 Invest money in the treasury of the Authority in the same manner and on the same conditions as local agencies
pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.
8.1.11 Exercise all other powers necessary and proper to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.
8.1.12 Develop and implement Risk Management Programs.
8.1.13 Jointly purchase for the benefit of Members, insurance, excess insurance, reinsurance, and enter into agreements for
the benefit of Members, for the purpose of transferring risk of loss to commercial insurers or reinsurers or other
insurance pools.
ARTICLE 9.
RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS.
9.1
The Governing Board shall establish Risk Management Programs as provided in the Authority’s By-Laws.
9.2
No Risk Management Program shall become operational, or possess any authority, until the proposed Risk Management Program
By-Laws have been approved by the Governing Board. The voting on the approval of By-Laws shall be restricted to Governing
Board Member representatives of the particular Risk Management Program. Approval of the By-Laws and any amendments
thereto shall be as provided in the By-Laws of the individual Risk Management Programs. On approval of the By-Laws, the various
Risk Management Programs shall become operational and will have all of the powers specifically delegated to them by the
Governing Board.
ARTICLE 10.
BUDGET
10.1
The Governing Board shall adopt an annual budget not later than 30 days prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year.
ARTICLE 11.
ANNUAL AUDIT AND REVIEW.
11.1
The Governing Board shall cause an annual financial audit of the accounts and records to be made and filed as provided in the
Authority’s By-Laws and the laws of the State.
ARTICLE 12.
ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF FUNDS.
12.1
Funds of the Authority may be commingled for investment and administration purposes. However, each Risk Management
Program shall be accounted for separately on a full accrual basis.
12.2
The Governing Board shall establish the policy for warrants drawn to pay demands against the Authority.
12.3
The coverage for each Program Year of each Risk Management Program shall be as specified in the Memorandum of Coverage or
policies of insurance for that Program Year of the Risk Management Program.
ARTICLE 13.
WITHDRAWAL.
13.1
Any Member which enters a Risk Management Program may withdraw from that Risk Management Program and may at a later
time seek to renew participation in said Program subject to the terms and conditions as set forth in the By-Laws of that particular
Risk Management Program.
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13.2

A Member is no longer a party to the Authority or this Agreement upon its withdrawal from all of the Authority’s Risk
Management Programs.

ARTICLE 14.
EXPULSION.
14.1
The Governing Board may expel any Member from the Authority and/or from a Risk Management Program at any time for
material breaches of the Governing Documents. Such expulsion shall be as provided in the By-Laws of the Authority or each
Individual Risk Management Program.
ARTICLE 15.
TERMINATION.
15.1
This Agreement shall continue until terminated by vote or written consent of two-thirds of the Members provided, however, that
this Agreement and the Authority shall continue to exist for the purposes of disposing of all claims, the distribution of assets, and
any other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of the Authority.
15.2
Upon termination of this Agreement, all assets of the Authority shall be distributed only among the Members that have been
participants in its Risk Management Programs, including any of those Members which previously withdrew or were expelled
pursuant to Articles 13 and 14 of this Agreement, in accordance with and proportionate to their net premium payments made
during the term of this Agreement. The Governing Board shall determine such distribution within six months after the last claim
covered by this Agreement has been finalized.
15.3
The Governing Board is vested with all powers of the Authority for the purpose of concluding and dissolving the business affairs
of the Authority. These include the power to require those Members which were Risk Management Program participants at the
time of any particular occurrence which was covered or alleged to be covered under the Memorandum(s) of Coverage or policies
of insurance to pay their share of any additional amount of premium deemed necessary by the Governing Board for the final
disposition of all claims and expenses associated with such loss.
ARTICLE 16.
NEW MEMBERS.
16.1
Any governmental agency, organized and operating under the laws of the State of California which is authorized to participate in
a joint powers authority under the Government Code may become a member of the Authority by complying with the
requirements of the Authority By-Laws.
ARTICLE 17.
LIABILITY OF THE AUTHORITY.
17.1
Each Member agrees to indemnify, save and defend the Authority and all other Members harmless from and against all claims,
losses, and damages, including legal fees and expenses, arising out of any breach or default on the part of such Member in
performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement, or any act or negligence of such Member or any of its agents,
contractors, servants, employees or licensees with respect to this Agreement. No indemnification is made under this Section for
claims, losses or damages, including legal fees and expenses, arising out of the willful misconduct, negligence or breach of duty
under this Agreement by the Authority or a Member or their officers, employees, agents or contractors.
17.2
The Representatives to the Governing Board and to each of the Risk Management Programs and any officer, employee,
contractor, or agent of the Authority shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of their power and in the
performance of their duties under this Agreement.
17.3
Funds of the Authority may be used to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Authority and any member of the Governing
Board, any member of a Risk Management Program, and any employee of the Authority for their actions taken within the scope
of their duties while acting on behalf of the Authority. Nothing herein shall limit the right of the Authority to purchase insurance
to provide such coverage as is hereinabove set forth.
ARTICLE 18.
NOTICES.
18.1
Notices to each Member under this Agreement shall be sufficient if mailed to its respective address on file with the Authority.
Any Member may designate any other address in substitution of the foregoing address to which such notice will be given at any
time by giving five days written notice to the Authority and all other Members.
ARTICLE 19.
AMENDMENTS TO THIS AGREEMENT AND PROGRAM BY-LAWS.
19.1
This Agreement may be amended at any time by vote of two-thirds of the Members acting through their governing body.
Amendments to the individual Risk Management Program By-Laws require the two-third vote of the Governing Board members
representing Members of that Risk Management Program.
ARTICLE 20.
SEVERABILITY.
20.1
Should any portion, term, condition, or provision of this Agreement be decided by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal
or in conflict with any law of the State of California, or be otherwise rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the
remaining portions, terms, conditions, and provisions shall not be affected thereby.
ARTICLE 21.
AGREEMENT COMPLETE.
21.1
The foregoing constitutes the full and complete Agreement of the parties. There are no oral understandings or agreements not
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set forth in writing herein.
ARTICLE 22.
TERM OF AGREEMENT.
22.1
This fifth amended Agreement shall become effective upon the Authority receiving notice of the approval by the governing body
of two-thirds of the Members.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date indicated below.
City of __________________________ By _____________________________ Title ___________________________
Executed before me this ______ day of __________________, 200____
(City Seal)
______________________________________
City Clerk City of ________________________________
APPENDIX “A”
INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY MEMBER CITIES
1.
Alhambra
2.
Arcadia
3.
Azusa
4.
Baldwin Park
5.
Bell
6.
Buena Park
7.
Chino
8.
Colton
9.
Culver City
10.
Downey
11.
El Monte
12.
El Segundo
13.
Fullerton
14.
Glendora
15.
Hawthorne

16. Hermosa Beach
17. Huntington Park
18. Inglewood
19. La Habra
20. Lynwood
21. Manhattan Beach
22. Monrovia
23. Monterey Park
24. Redondo Beach
25. San Fernando
26. South Gate
27. Upland
28. Vernon
29. Whittier
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B.1. JPA BYLAWS

The current version was approved by the Board 06-15-11. Prior changes were not listed in document.

ARTICLE 1 - PREAMBLE
The Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (Authority) is established for the purpose of operating and maintaining a cooperative
program of self-insurance, jointly purchased insurance and risk management and to provide a forum for the discussion, study,
development, and implementation of procedures of mutual benefit in risk sharing and risk management programs.
ARTICLE 2 - PURPOSES
Section 2.1 – Purposes
The Authority is created to jointly achieve the following objectives for the benefit of the Authority's members in all types of risks handled
by the Authority:
2.1.1

2.1.3
2.1.4
2.1.5
2.1.6
2.1.7
2.1.8

2.1.9

Reduce costs of commercial or reinsurance insurance coverage through effective loss control practices and combined purchasing
power;
Provide stability of commercial insurance markets through size of combined membership, longer duration of commercial
insurance agreements and effective loss control practices;
Reduce severity and frequency of member losses; and
Reduce the cost of all administrative services through central management, volume, and combined purchasing power.
Provide for payment of claims and benefits as authorized by the Authority's members;
Administer a cooperative self-insurance program wherein members self-insure by pooling funds as reserves against losses;
Purchase administrative services and other services including risk management, consulting, brokerage, claims administration,
claims adjusting, safety and loss prevention, data processing, legal, and related services;
Acquire, hold, and dispose of property, real and personal, necessary or desirable, for the purpose of providing the members of
the Authority with a complete self-insurance and risk management program, including, but not limited to, the acquisition of
necessary facilities and equipment, the employment of personnel, and the operation and maintenance of a system of risk
management; and
Sell, issue, hold, and dispose of bonds or other financial instruments, necessary or desirable, for the purpose of providing funding
for risk management programs of the Authority.

ARTICLE 3 - GOVERNING DOCUMENTS
22.2
Section 3.1 - Governing Documents
The governing documents of the Authority shall be the Joint Powers Agreement of the Authority (Agreement), these Bylaws, the Bylaws for
each program, and the Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) for each program.
ARTICLE 4 - MEMBER ENTITIES
22.3
Section 4.1 - Membership
Each party to the Agreement is a member. Any governmental agency, organized and operating under the laws of the state of California
which is authorized to participate in a joint powers agreement under the Government Code may become a member of the Authority by
agreeing to be bound by the governing documents and by complying with all of the following requirements:
4.1.1

Submit a completed application for membership 60 days before the start of the policy year. The application must be accompanied
by the Governing Board approved fee, which shall be returned if membership is approved and the applicant becomes a member;
4.1.2
Submit applicant’s signed resolution acknowledging intent to become a member under the terms and conditions then prevailing;
4.1.3
Execute the Agreement then in effect and agree to be bound by any subsequent amendments to the Agreement;
4.1.4
Agree to be a member for at least three consecutive fiscal years after commencement of membership;
4.1.5
Be accepted for membership as provided in Section 4.2;
4.1.6
Appoint, by resolution, a representative and one alternate to the Governing Board as provided in Article 5. A member may also
appoint a substitute alternate; and
4.1.7
Ensure all representatives (delegate, alternate, and substitute alternate [if applicable]) file with the General Manager the
required Fair Political Practices Commission ("FPPC") forms upon assuming office, during office, and upon termination of office.
22.4
Section 4.2 - Approval of Membership
The General Manager shall review each applicant’s submittal and may schedule and coordinate a safety inspection of the applicant’s
facilities. The General Manager shall report the results of the review of the submittal and the inspection which shall be the basis for the
recommendation to the Governing Board. The Governing Board shall either approve, as provided in Section 5.1.3.1, or disapprove the
application based upon the General Manager’s recommendation, the application, and any inspections, reports, or other material which
would be pertinent to the decision.
ARTICLE 5 - GOVERNING BOARD
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22.5

Section 5.1 - Governing Board
5.1.1
The Governing Board of the Authority shall be comprised of one representative from each member. In
addition to the delegate representative, who may be a legislative member, an alternate and substitute
alternate may be appointed either of whom may vote in the absence of the delegate representative. If the
member chooses to designate an alternate or substitute alternate, other than a legislative member, the
person(s) designated shall have one of the following positions, or their equivalent, City Attorney, Assistant
City Attorney, Financial Officer, City Administrator/Manager, Assistant/Deputy City Administrator/Manager,
Assistant to City Manager, Risk Manager, Human Resources Director/Manager, or Administrative Services
Director.
5.1.1.1
5.1.1.2
5.1.1.3

Each representative, when voting on Authority business, shall have the authority to bind his or her member to the
action taken by the Governing Board.
The member may change any of its representatives (delegate, alternate, or substitute alternate) to the Governing
Board by filing a resolution with the Authority.
At a Governing Board meeting only one representative, if more than one representative is present, may vote.

5.1.2

The Governing Board shall provide policy direction for the Administrative Committee, and the General Manager, and other
appointed committees. The Governing Board may delegate any of its responsibilities except those requiring a vote by the
Governing Board as specified in the Agreement or the Governing Documents.

5.1.3

The Governing Board reserves unto itself the authority to do the following (except where specifically otherwise noted, the
majority of the Governing Board members present at a meeting may take action):
5.1.3.1
5.1.3.2
5.1.3.3
5.1.3.4
5.1.3.5
5.1.3.6
5.1.3.7
5.1.3.8
5.1.3.9
5.1.3.10
5.1.3.11
5.1.3.12
5.1.3.13
5.1.3.14
5.1.3.15

Accept a new member into the Authority;
Approve indebtedness (two-thirds vote of the entire Governing Board);
Adopt a budget;
Amend these Bylaws;
Alter a member’s retained limit;
Approve contracts for Authority administrative services and legal counsel;
Approve Program Bylaws (Participants in Program only);
Approve Memoranda of Coverage;
Approve dividends and assessments to members of a program year;
Establish, amend, or terminate a program (Participants in Program only);
Elect the Members of the Administrative Committee;
Expel a member from the Authority (two-thirds vote of the entire Governing Board);
Settle claims in excess of the Claims Committee and Administrative Committee’s authority;
Terminate or suspend the rights of a member in default (two-thirds vote of the entire Governing Board); and
Approve dissolution of Authority (two-thirds vote of entire Governing Board.)

22.6
5.2.1

Section 5.2 - Meetings of the Governing Board
The Governing Board shall hold at least three regular meetings each year to review all operations of the Authority. The Governing
Board will establish a time and place to hold such regular meetings and notice shall be sent to each delegate representative,
alternate representative, and substitute alternate representative (if applicable). The Authority Secretary shall be responsible for
minutes of the meetings, and submission of copies of such minutes to the delegate representatives, alternate representatives,
and substitute alternate representatives (if applicable).

5.2.2

Every member is expected to have its delegate representative, alternate representative, or substitute alternate representative
attend Governing Board meetings.

5.2.3

All meetings of the Governing Board shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code
§54950 et seq.)

5.2.4

A special meeting may be called by the President, Vice President in the absence of the President or 20% of the Governing Board
members by notifying the General Manager of the purpose of the meeting. The General Manager shall provide 24 hours written
notice to each delegate representative, alternate representative, and substitute alternate representative (if applicable) stating
the purpose, date, time, and place of the meeting.

Section 5.3 - Voting
All matters within the purview of the Governing Board may be decided by a majority vote of the Governing Board, except for as those
matters which are specified as requiring a super majority vote of the Governing Board, which then must be decided by the vote specifically
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prescribed in Section 5.1.3.
ARTICLE 6 – OFFICERS OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
22.7
Section 6.1 - Officers
The Officers of the Authority shall consist of President, Vice President, Treasurer, and a Secretary to the Governing Board.
22.8
Section 6.2 - Eligibility for President, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary
Eligibility for election and continuation in office as President, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary shall be limited to one representative,
of a member entity, to the Governing Board.
22.9
22.10
Section 6.3 - Terms of Office
6.3.1
The terms of office for the President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary shall be for two years, commencing with the start
of the fiscal years in each of the odd calendar years or until their successors are elected.
6.3.2

In accordance with Government Code § 53607 and ICRMA Investment Policy, the Treasurer (an elected position) shall be
appointed every year as the investment delegate by the President of the Governing Board.

Section 6.4 - Elections
6.4.1
Election of officers shall be performed biennially.
6.4.2

As referenced in Section 7.3, after receiving nominations from members of the Governing Board the Nominating Committee shall
be responsible for developing a slate of nominees for regular elections.

6.4.3

Elections shall occur at the last regular Governing Board meeting of the fiscal year in which the applicable officer term concludes.
Those candidates receiving a majority of votes in each office will succeed to those offices. If no nominee receives a majority vote,
the nominee with the least votes shall be deleted as a nominee and a new vote taken. This elimination process will continue until
one nominee receives a majority vote. Each delegate representative to the Governing Board or in the absence of any member,
his/her alternate or substitute alternate shall be eligible to vote.

6.4.4

The officers will serve for their elected terms with the Authority or until termination of office or employment with their member,
or until removal from office by a majority vote of the Governing Board, whichever is earliest.

6.4.5

Vacancies in any office shall be appointed by the President, with the approval of the Governing Board, at the next regularly
scheduled Governing Board meeting held after the vacancy occurs. A vacancy in the position of President shall be filled by
election at the next regularly scheduled Governing Board meeting held after the vacancy occurs.

22.11
6.5.1

Section 6.5 - Duties
President - The President shall preside at all meetings of the Authority. Except for the Administrative Committee and Claims
Committee, the President shall appoint the members of all committees, which may be formed as necessary or appropriate for
carrying on the activities of the Authority. The President shall execute documents, or delegate to the General Manager on behalf
of the Authority as authorized by the Governing Board, and shall serve as the primary liaison between this and any other
organization. The President shall serve as ex-officio member of all committees.

6.5.2

Vice President - The Vice President shall also serve as ex-officio member of all committees, when the President is unable to
attend. In the absence of or temporary incapacity of the President, the Vice President shall exercise the functions covered in
Section 6.5.1 above.

6.5.3

Secretary - The Secretary will be responsible for the oversight of staff’s preparation of all minutes and agendas of the Governing
Board, the Administrative Committee, and any other committee meetings, preparing necessary correspondence, and maintaining
files and records.

6.5.4

Treasurer - The Treasurer shall be responsible for: 1) ensuring the custody of and disbursement of Authority funds, accounts, and
property, in accordance with the California Government Code; 2) supervising the maintenance of such records to assure that
financial accounts, records, funds, and property are maintained in accordance with accepted accounting practices and procedures
prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board; 3) providing for inspection of all financial records; 4) overseeing,
monitoring, and reporting on investment action; 5) overseeing and monitoring the financial audit; and, 6) overseeing and
directing the Assistant Treasurer.

ARTICLE 7 - COMMITTEES
22.12
Section 7.1 – Administrative Committee
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7.1.1

Members - To facilitate the expeditious handling of transactions relating to the Authority’s operations, an Administrative
Committee is established. The members shall be: 1) the offices of President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary and one
representative and one alternate; and 2) four other representatives and one additional alternate and two substitute alternates.
An alternate may participate in meetings but shall only be entitled to vote if an officer or representative is not present or is
disqualified from participating. If only one officer or representative is not present or is disqualified, then the alternate that shares
the same term period with the absent or disqualified member shall have the right to vote during the meeting. On July 1 of each
even numbered year, four of the representatives and one of the alternates shall be elected for a two-year term to commence on
July 1 of each even numbered year. On July 1 of each odd numbered year, one of the representatives and one of the alternates
shall be elected for a two-year term to commence July 1 of each odd numbered year to serve on the Administrative Committee
along with the President, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary. The Administrative Committee shall include, as feasible,
members representing the disciplines of risk management, finance, and claims/legal. A representative from the Claims
Committee shall serve as a member. Additionally, the Administrative Committee composition shall attempt to be a balanced mix
of members who participate in each program. Appointees to the Administrative Committee shall be limited to one representative
per member without delegation. A majority of the members of the Administrative Committee is a quorum for the transaction of
business.

7.1.2

Meetings - The Administrative Committee will meet as required by business, but not less than four times a year. Such meetings
will be duly noticed to all Governing Board delegate representatives, alternate representatives, and substitute alternate
representatives (if applicable). The Authority Secretary shall be responsible for minutes of the meetings and shall send copies of
such minutes to all Governing Board delegate representatives, alternate representatives, and substitute alternate
representatives.
All meetings of the Administrative Committee shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code
§ 54950, et seq.).

22.13

7.1.3
Duties - The Administrative Committee shall have the same authority as that of the Governing Board except for those
authorities specifically reserved unto the Governing Board in Article 5.1.3.

22.14

7.1.4
Attendance - Attendance of Administrative Committee members is essential to conducting the business of the
Authority. An Administrative Committee member missing a maximum of two meetings in a fiscal year, shall be subject to review
by the Governing Board or Administrative Committee concerning forfeiture of his/her membership on the Administrative
Committee.

22.15

7.1.5
Vacancies - The remaining term of the vacant representative position shall be filled by the alternate that has the same
term of office as the vacant position. Vacancies in the alternate positions shall be appointed by the President, with the approval
of the Governing Board, at the next regularly scheduled Governing Board meeting held after the vacancy occurs.

22.16

7.1.6
Appeal Process - Any action taken by the Administrative Committee may be appealed by a minimum of 20% of the
members of the Authority to the Governing Board by filing a written appeal with the General Manager within 14 days following
the date the minutes are mailed as provided in Section 7.1.2. Upon receipt of such appeal, the General Manager shall stay the
action, and place the appeal on the agenda of the next regularly scheduled Governing Board meeting. The decision of the
Governing Board shall be final.

Section 7.2 - Claims Committee
7.2.1
The Claims Committee (CC) shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and perform all functions delegated to it, as
specified in the Liability and Workers’ Compensation Program Bylaws. These functions shall be consistent with the powers of the
Authority and not in conflict with the Agreement, these bylaws or the (MOC).
Section 7.3 - Nominating Committee
7.3.1.
A nominating committee shall be appointed by the President with the consent of the Governing Board for the purpose of annual
elections of Administrative Committee members and the biennial elections of officers. The Nominating Committee shall consist of
a minimum of three and a maximum of five members.
7.3.2.

The nomination of candidates for the officers and Administrative Committee shall be made in writing to the Governing Board no
later than 60 days prior to the last regular Governing Board meeting of the fiscal year. The slate of nominees will be mailed to
each member at least seven days before the last regular Governing Board meeting of the fiscal year. Additional candidate(s) may
be nominated at the time of the meeting, provided the candidate(s) meet the requirements set forth in Sections 6.4 and 7.1.

Section 7.4 - Other Committees
7.4.1.
At any time the President may appoint an ad hoc committee.
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7.4.2

The Administrative Committee has the authority to add additional committee(s) as deemed necessary.

ARTICLE 8 – FINANCIAL AUDIT
22.17
Section 8.1 - Audit Required
The Governing Board shall cause to be made, by a qualified, independent individual or firm, an annual audit of the financial accounts and
records of the Authority. The minimum requirements of the audit shall be those prescribed by State law.
22.18
Section 8.2 - Filing an Audit
The financial audit report shall be filed with the State Controller's Office within 6 months of the end of the fiscal year under examination.
The Authority shall have a copy of the audit report filed as a public record with each member.
22.19
Section 8.3 - Costs of Audit
The Authority shall bear all costs of the audit. Such costs shall be charged against the operating funds of the Authority.
ARTICLE 9 - FISCAL YEAR
22.20
Section 9.1 - Fiscal Year
The fiscal year of the Authority shall be the period from July 1st of each year through June 30th of the subsequent year.
ARTICLE 10 - BUDGET
22.21
Section 10.1 - Budget
The Governing Board shall adopt an annual budget by July 1 of each year, with receipt of a draft budget forty-five days prior thereto.
ARTICLE 11 - ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF FUNDS
22.22
Section 11.1 - Administration of Funds
The Authority is responsible for the strict accountability of all funds and reports of all receipts and disbursements. It shall comply with every
provision of law relating to the subject, particularly Section 6505 of the California Government Code.
The funds received for each program shall be accounted for separately on a full-accrual basis. The portion of each program premium
allocated for payment of claims and losses, if any, shall be held by the Authority for the program participants in separate accounts for each
program, and accounted for as prescribed by program bylaws.
ARTICLE 12 - ADMINISTRATION
22.23
Section 12.1 - General Manager
The Governing Board shall appoint the Authority’s General Manager. The General Manager shall be responsible for the daily administration,
management, and operation of the Authority's programs and shall be subject to the direction and control of the Governing Board and the
Administrative Committee. The General Manager may, but need not be, an employee of the Authority, a consultant, or a corporation.
22.24
Section 12.2 - Responsibilities
The responsibilities of the General Manager or a designated representative are, among other matters, to:
12.2.1

Monitor the status of the Authority's programs and operations, member losses, programs’ administrative and operational
costs, and service companies’ performance;

12.2.2

Provide appropriate risk management consulting and information to members and the Governing Board, which may include
implementing, coordinating, and supervising the Authority’s programs of safety and risk control; and

12.2.3

Prepare periodic Risk Management Advisories to all members reporting new trends in the insurance field, matters of interest
regarding new legislation, and other information pertinent to risk management programs being handled by the Authority;

12.2.4

Prepare an annual budget;

12.2.5

Advise state legislators on Authority needs and advise members on legislative developments and need for any action;

12.2.6

Advise members of the risk impact of any proposed new programs or changes to existing programs;

12.2.7

Assist the Governing Board and/or any committees in selecting brokers, auditors, insurance companies, claims administration
services, and any other service providers;

12.2.8

Perform or contract for financial and claims audits and actuarial studies to determine cost allocations;

12.2.9

Design and implement new Authority programs of risk management and self-insurance as directed by the Governing Board.
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12.2.10

Prepare the Authority’s financial statements, receive budgeted revenues and pay budgeted expenses.

The General Manager's responsibility to perform any or all of the above services with respect to any member is limited to those programs
in which the member is participating.
22.25
Section 12.3 - Compensation and Employment
The Authority shall compensate the General Manager for services rendered to the Authority in such amount and manner as may be
approved by the Governing Board. Details respecting compensation, termination, and other employment related matters pertaining to the
General Manager shall be governed by such terms and conditions as the Governing Board shall establish.
ARTICLE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS
22.26
Section 13.1 - Formation of Risk Management Programs
13.1.1 The Authority will establish, as provided in Section 5.1.3.10, risk management programs in such areas as the Governing Board
may determine including, but not be limited to, the areas of property, workers' compensation, liability coverage, and benefits.
13.1.2

The Authority may authorize and use administrative funds to study the development/feasibility of new risk management
programs. In the event of such development, the estimated premium contributions shall be developed by the General Manager
and presented in writing to each member. Each member shall have 60 days from the date of such notice to state in writing its
intent to join or refrain from joining the new program. Unless written notice of acceptance into a program is provided to the
General Manager by the member, it shall be presumed that the member declines to participate in the program. Upon conclusion
of the notice period, premium contributions will be determined and billed to the members committed to join. Each member that
elects to participate will be bound to the new program for the period of time so required by the Bylaws of that program.

13.1.3

The Governing Board shall adopt and maintain Program Bylaws to establish the operating guidelines of the program.

22.27
13.2.1

Section 13.2 - Administration
Each risk management program will be self-contained and individually evaluated for administrative and equity allocation
purposes. Each program year within each program shall be separately accounted and maintained, unless a multi-year program
funding option is approved by the Governing Board. Any member benefiting from the indirect expenses from a program, to which
the member does not belong, will be charged its allocable share of the expenses.

13.2.2

Each member shall provide the Authority with requested information within the time stated for successful operation of each
program. As such, each member of the Authority shall submit payroll information to the Authority at the same time it is required
to submit such information to the State.

13.2.3

Each member shall cooperate fully with the General Manager or designated agent to provide underwriting and safety and loss
control information. Additionally, each member shall comply with the provisions of the annual Safety and Risk Plan as approved
by the Administrative Committee and Governing Board.

22.28

Section 13.3 – Late Fees

28.22.1 Unless other arrangements for payment have been approved by the Governing Board, Members with
ent amounts due shall be assessed a penalty which shall be one percent of the unpaid amount due and payable to the Authority 30 days after
al invoice due date. A penalty of another one percent shall accrue after an additional 45 days. Interest shall accrue on all delinquent amounts
payable to the Authority at the applicable rate of 10% per annum from the due date of the billing until the date finally posted by the
ed financial institution. Each member shall indemnify the Authority from any expense resulting from its failure to pay the sum due on or
he due date. The Governing Board may elect to temporarily suspend coverage if a member fails to pay its contribution. For the purpose of
g penalties and interest, the fee calculation shall be based on each calendar day the delinquent amount is late not withstanding the foregoing
ee or other charge shall exceed the maximum authorized by law.
28.22.2 Any late fee assessed in accordance with the provisions of this Section may be appealed. Such appeal shall be
dance with the Authority’s Dispute Resolution Policy.
22.29
Section 13.4 - Actuarial Soundness of Programs
All self-insured risk management programs of the Authority shall be based on actuarial soundness at all times. The condition of each such
program shall be tested by an independent actuary on an annual basis. The condition of each open program year within each such program
shall be tested to determine its actuarial soundness. If it is determined by the actuary that any year is no longer actuarially sound, the
appropriate actions as described in the Bylaws of each program shall be taken. In addition, upon approval of a majority of members in the
program, the Governing Board reserves the right to assess the members of any program an amount determined by the Governing Board to
be necessary for the soundness of the program and to allocate such assessment to the members in a fair and equitable manner.
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22.30
13.5.1

Section 13.5 – Program Withdrawal or Expulsion
Withdrawal or expulsion by a member from any risk management program shall be in accordance with the provisions of the
Bylaws governing that program.

13.5.2

The withdrawal or expulsion of any member of any risk management program after the effective date of such pooling program
shall not terminate its responsibility to contribute its share of premiums or funds to any fund or insurance program created by
the Authority. All current and past members shall be responsible for their respective share of the expenses, as determined by
the General Manager, until all claims, or other unpaid liabilities, covering the period of the member’s participation in the risk
management program have been finally resolved and a determination of the final amount of payments due by, or credit to, the
member for the period of its participation has been made by the Governing Board. All past members shall receive any
distribution of dividends based on the same methodology of the current members. The withdrawal or expulsion of any
member from any program shall not require the repayment or return to that member of all or any part of any contributions,
payments, advances, or distributions except in conformance with the provisions set forth herein and in the risk management
program’s Bylaws.

13.5.3

Any member seeking to withdraw without proper and effective notice shall be responsible for the full cost of the subsequent
year’s premium, and the notice will be deemed effective for the following year.

13.5.4

A member which voluntarily withdraws from any program shall not be permitted to renew participation in the program until
the expiration of three years from the effective date of the withdrawal.

13.5.5

No member can be expelled from a program except as provided by Article 14 of these Bylaws.

22.31
Section 13.6 - Deposit and Investment of Authority Funds
The Treasurer may deposit and invest Authority funds, subject to the same requirements and restrictions that apply to the deposit and
investment of the general funds of a city incorporated in the State of California and in accordance with the Investment Policy adopted by
the Governing Board annually.
22.32
Section 13.7 - Accounting Method for Pooled Programs
The accounting method for each risk management program will be in accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws governing that program
and the principles established by the Government Accounting Standards Board.
ARTICLE 14 - DEFAULTS AND EXPULSION FROM THE AUTHORITY
22.33
Section 14.1 - Events or Conditions of Default Defined
14.1.1 The following shall be "defaults" under the Agreement and these Bylaws:
14.1.1.1
Failure by a member to observe and/or perform any covenant, condition, or agreement under the Governing
Documents including, but not limited to, risk management or loss reporting procedures;
14.1.1.2
Consistent failure to: attend meetings, submit requested documents and cooperate in the fulfillment of the
program objectives;
14.1.1.3
Failure to pay any amounts, including penalties and interest, due to the Authority for more than 30 days;
14.1.1.4 Excessive losses as determined by the Governing Board;
14.1.1.5
The filing of a petition applicable to the member in any proceedings instituted under the provisions of the
Federal Bankruptcy Code or under any similar act which may hereafter be enacted; or
14.1.1.6
Any condition of the member which the Governing Board believes jeopardizes the financial viability of the
Authority.
22.34
Section 14.2 - Remedies on Default
14.2.1 Whenever any event of default referred to in Section 14.1 of this article shall have occurred, it shall be lawful for the Authority to
exercise any and all remedies available pursuant to law or granted pursuant to the Agreement and these Bylaws, including, but
not limited to increasing a member’s retention, penalty or assessments, canceling member’s coverage, or expulsion of the
member. However, no remedy shall be sought for defaults, until the member has been given 30 days written notice of default
from the Governing Board, except defaults under Sections 14.1.1.4, 14.1.1.5, and 14.1.1.6 in Section 14.1.1.
14.2.2

Expulsion of a Member Entity from the Authority:
14.2.2.1
The Governing Board, as provided in Section 5.1.3.1, may expel any member (from the Authority) that is in
default, as defined in Section 14.1.1 of this Article.
14.2.2.2
Such expulsion shall be effective on the date prescribed by the Governing Board, but not earlier than 30 days
after written notice of expulsion has been personally served on or sent certified mail to the member.
14.2.2.3
The expulsion of any member from any risk management program shall not terminate the member’s
responsibility to contribute its share of premiums or funds to any fund or insurance program created by the
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Authority, nor its responsibility to provide requested data. All current and past participants shall be
responsible for their respective share of the expenses, as determined by the General Manager, until all claims,
or other unpaid liabilities, covering the period of the participant's participation in the risk management
program have been finally resolved and a determination of the final amount of payments due by, or credit to,
the participant for the period of its participation has been made by the Board.
14.2.3

Cancellation of Coverage under a Program:
14.2.3.1
Upon the occurrence of any default, the Governing Board may temporarily cancel all rights of the defaulting
member in any program in which such member is in default until such time as the condition causing default is
corrected.
14.2.3.2
Upon the occurrence of any default, the Governing Board, as provided in Section 5.1.3.14, may cancel
permanently all rights of the defaulting member in any program in which such member is in default.

14.2.4

No remedy contained herein is intended to be exclusive. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any
default shall impair any such right or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof.
22.35
Section 14.3 - Agreement to Pay Attorney's Fees and Expenses
In the event either the Authority or a member entity is in breach of the Agreement and the other party employs attorneys or incurs other
expenses for the collection of moneys or the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation under the Agreement on the
part of the defaulting party, the defaulting party shall pay to the other party the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses
so incurred by the other party.
22.36
Section 14.4 - No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver
In the event any condition contained in the governing documents is breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other party,
such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder.
ARTICLE 15 - DISPUTES OR CLAIMS BETWEEN MEMBERS
22.37
Section 15.1 - Authority Representation
After being notified in writing that one member of the Authority has filed a formal claim, which is potentially covered by a program of the
Authority, against another member, in accordance with provisions of the California Government Code, the Authority will no longer act, on
behalf of either member with respect to such claim, without written consent from all members involved, insofar as the case giving rise to
the claim is concerned.
ARTICLE 16 - TORT LIABILITY
22.38
Section 16.1 - Member Entity's Indemnification
Section 895.2 of the California Government Code imposes certain tort liability jointly upon entities solely by reason of such entities being
parties to an agreement as defined in Section 895 of said Code. Therefore, the members hereto, as between themselves, pursuant to the
authorization contained in Sections 895.4 and 895.6 of the California Government Code, each assumes the full liability imposed upon it for
any of its officers, agents, or employees by law for injuries caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission occurring in the performance
of this agreement to the same extent that such liability would be imposed in the absence of Section 895.2 of said Code. To achieve this
purpose, each member indemnifies and holds all other members harmless for any loss, cost, or expense that may be imposed upon such
other member solely by virtue of Section 895.2 of the California Government Code.
ARTICLE 17 - LEGAL REPRESENTATION
22.39
Section 17.1 - Counsel Authorized
Legal counsel, to advise on matters relating to the operation of the Authority, may be recommended by the General Manager and
approved by the Governing Board.
The Authority shall have the right to pay such legal counsel reasonable compensation for said services.
ARTICLE 18 - EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS
22.40
Section 18.1 - Authorization by Governing Board
The Governing Board or Administrative Committee may authorize the General Manager, any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter
into any contract or execute any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Authority and such authorization may be general or confined
to specific instances. Unless so authorized by the Governing Board, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind
the Authority by any contract or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or to any amount.
ARTICLE 19 - COMPENSATION FOR REPRESENTATIVES AND OFFICERS
22.41
Section 19.1 - Reimbursed Expenses
The Authority shall reimburse any representative or Officer, who does not otherwise receive compensation, for actual expenses incurred,
and reasonable out of pocket expenses of the representative or Officer in the performance of his/her duty on behalf of the Authority.
22.42
Section 19.2 – Representative and Officers Insurance
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The Authority may purchase insurance indemnifying the Directors, Officers, and Administrative staff for personal liabilities arising out of
wrongful acts in the discharge of their duties to the Authority or may elect to self-insure such risk.
ARTICLE 20 – TERMINATION AND DISTRIBUTION
The Agreement, these Bylaws, and the Authority continue to exist after termination for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution
of assets, and all other functions necessary to conclude the obligations and affairs of the Authority.
Upon termination of the Authority, the assets of the Authority shall be distributed and apportioned among the member entities that have
been members in its programs, including those member entities which previously withdrew or were expelled pursuant to ARTICLES 13 and
14 of these Bylaws, as provided by the Program Bylaws. Any additional funds received after the above distributions are made shall be
returned in proportion to the contributions made.
ARTICLE 21 - NOTICES
22.43
Section 21.1 - Notices
Any notice to be given or to be served upon any party hereto in connection with these Bylaws must be in writing (which may include
facsimile) and will be deemed to have been given and received when delivered to the address specified by the party to receive the notice.
Any party may, at any time by giving five days prior written notice to the other parties, designate any other address in substitution of the
foregoing address to which such notice will be given.
22.44
Section 21.2 - Claims Against the Authority
Claims against the Authority shall be presented to the mailing address of the Authority.
ARTICLE 22 - EFFECTIVE DATE
22.45
Section 22.1 - Effective Date and Supremacy
These Bylaws shall be effective immediately upon the date of approval and upon adoption shall supersede and cancel any prior Bylaws
and/or amendments thereto.
However, the adoption of these Bylaws shall not affect the Agreement or any amendments to it. Any clauses in these Bylaws that are
inconsistent with the Agreement shall be superseded by those clauses in the Agreement but only to the extent of the inconsistency.
ARTICLE 23 - AMENDMENTS
22.46
Section 23.1 – Procure to Amend
These Bylaws may be amended or repealed from time to time as provided in Section 5.1.3.4 provided, however, that at least 30 days prior
to the taking of such action, written notice has been given to each delegate representative, alternate representative, substitute alternate
representative (if applicable).
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B.2. LIABILITY PROGRAM BYLAWS

The current version was approved by the Board 10/09/2014. Prior changes listed in document include:
o 10/09/2014 – Amended S5.3 to change withdrawal notice date and add revocation of withdrawal notice date
o 6/13/13 - Amended to include a $750,000 SIR
o Prior changes are available in minutes.

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL
Section 1.1
Authority
1.1.1
The Liability Program (LP) Bylaws of the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (Authority) shall be treated as one
of the Authority's governing documents and, as such, shall have the same effect as the Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement for Insurance and Risk Management Purposes (Agreement), Authority Bylaws and Memorandum of Coverage
(MOC).
1.1.2

These LP Bylaws are intended to be the primary source of information, contain the rules and regulations, and serve as the
operational guide for the conduct of the LP.

1.1.3

In accordance with Authority Resolution 80-1, the LP was established, effective January 14, 1981. It was one of the risk
management programs provided to member entities pursuant to the Agreement.

1.1.4

The LP has been organized under authority granted by, and shall be conducted in accordance with the laws of the State of
California and the standards set forth by the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA) in its accreditation
standards.

Section 1.2
Purpose
The primary purpose in establishing the LP is to create a method for providing coverage for legal exposures incurred by the member
entities and the Authority, as provided in the MOC. Each member entity is herein referred to as member entity or participant.
Section 1.3
Participation
Each member entity of the Authority may become a participant in the LP; however, the terms and conditions which may be imposed on a
member entity that desires to join the LP may be different, depending upon payroll, number of employees, its size, its loss record, and
other pertinent information.
Section 1.4
Governance
Each member entity’s appointed delegate representative, alternate representative, and substitute alternate representative to the
Governing Board of the Authority shall be the representatives for the LP. The member entity will be entitled to one vote on all issues or
decisions that involve the LP. It is expected, but not mandatory, that the delegate representative from each member entity will be the
primary appointee to the Governing Board.
Section 1.5
1.5.1

Goals and Objectives
The LP shall provide liability coverage for the participants utilizing an optimum mix of risk retention and risk transfer. The
LP shall provide various levels of retained limits for the participants, provide a risk sharing pool for losses above individual
retained limits to the Authority’s self-insured retention (SIR), and obtain excess coverage for the amount of the loss which
exceeds the Authority’s SIR. Additionally, the LP shall provide for the sharing of operating costs, administrative costs and
payment of the excess coverage by charging all participants their share of such costs.

1.5.2

Although the LP is provided to the participants under those terms and conditions which prevail when the participant joins
the LP, the Authority’s Governing Board shall have the right to alter, from time to time, the terms and conditions of the
excess coverage and the pooled underlying coverage in response to the needs and abilities of the LP participants, as well
as in response to availability of coverage from outside sources.

1.5.3

The Authority offers participation in a risk sharing pool, covering losses of participants in accordance with the Agreement.
The assets of the pooled program shall be maintained at all times as the assets of the participants collectively. The assets
may be disbursed only pursuant to the provisions of these Bylaws, and no participant shall have an individual right to
exercise control over said assets except as provided in the Agreement.

1.5.4

The LP will provide coverage under the terms and conditions set forth in the MOC. The amount of coverage to be pooled
and/or purchased is at the discretion of the Governing Board.

ARTICLE 2 - PROGRAM ELEMENTS
Section 2.1
Program Years
2.1.1
A program year is defined by the term of the coverage period, generally a period of twelve (12) months. The program
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years generally will begin at 12:01 a.m. on July 1 and end at 12:01 a.m. on the following July 1.
2.1.2

Each program year shall be accounted for separately. The income and expenses of each program year shall be accounted
for separately from any other program years' income or expenses.

2.1.3

A program year shall not be closed until the Governing Board authorizes closure, being convinced that known claims for
the year are all closed and the probability of further claims being discovered is minimal. Any closed years, however, may
be reopened if deemed necessary and approved by the Governing Board.

Section 2.2
2.2.1

Retained Limits
The LP shall annually establish the limit of coverage for the pool. The underlying coverage of the LP shall provide
participants retained limits of $100,000, $200,000, $250,000, $300,000, $400,000, $500,000, $750,000 $1,000,000,
$1,500,000 $2,000,000 and $5,000,000 per occurrence, or other limits as modified by resolution.

2.2.2

The participant may only alter the retained limit at the inception of a program year upon (60) days advance written notice.

2.2.3

The Governing Board, as provided in Section 5.1.3.5 of the Authority Bylaws, may also require, at the inception of a
program year, a member entity to have a retained limit different from the expiring program year, upon 60 days advance
written notice.

2.2.4

The amount of each loss, including expenses, which is less than the retained limit chosen by the applicable participant,
shall be paid by the participant.

Section 2.3
22.47

Deposit Premiums
2.3.1
The General Manager, in conjunction with an actuary, shall establish rates and deposit premiums, subject to
Governing Board approval with the adoption of the budget.

22.48

2.3.2
The annual deposit premium for each participant shall be calculated utilizing: 1) the Authority’s actuarially
determined discounted expected losses adjusted for a risk margin (confidence level), participant’s loss experience, and
retained limit, 2) the cost of any excess coverage, and 3) a charge for the administrative expenses of the LP as determined
by the General Manager. The due dates and failure to pay timely consequences are the same as those specified in the
Authority Bylaws.

2.3.3

The administrative expenses charged to each participant are calculated as follows:
2.3.3.1
A percentage amount annually approved in the budget and allocated by each participant’s relative percentage
of payroll.
2.3.3.2
Secondly, a percentage of the amount calculated is allocated equally to each participant.

Section 2.4
2.4.1
2.4.2
Section 2.5
2.5.1

Experience Modification
Each member entity shall be evaluated each year for an experience modification adjustment that shall be applied to the
deposit premium.
The calculation of the adjustment shall include the actual loss experience of the individual member entity.
Dividends and Assessments
Dividends
2.5.1.1
Five years after the end of the program year, the first dividend calculation shall be performed. Each year
thereafter there shall be an additional dividend calculation made until such time as the program year is
closed. Any dividends available to be declared and returned to the participants will be at the discretion of the
Governing Board.
2.5.1.2

Calculation
2.5.1.2.1

Dividends are available to be declared only at such time as the LP has equity, with liabilities
actuarially stated, discounted at a 90% confidence level. The calculated amount shall represent
the maximum dividend available to be declared.

2.5.1.2.2

This amount shall be reduced if the two succeeding years (after the fifth program year reaches
eligibility) have negative equity, with liabilities actuarially stated at an expected confidence
level.

2.5.1.2.3

Each participant’s share of any dividends shall be allocated based upon the method by which
the deposit premiums were collected, beginning with the oldest program year. However, until
the last claim of a program year has been paid and the program year has been closed, the
program year must maintain sufficient funds to satisfy the 90% confidence level discounted
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requirement.
2.5.2

Reserve Fund
As approved by the Governing Board, declared dividends, or portions thereof, or other discretionary funds, may be
directed and deposited into the Reserve Fund. The Reserve Fund shall be invested in accordance with the ICRMA
Investment Policy and shall earn interest at the prevailing rates. Such interest earnings will be allocated quarterly with
the preparation of the financial statements. The total interest earned by ICRMA in any quarter shall be allocated
proportionately between the average cash balance in the ICRMA program and the average Reserve Fund. An accounting
will be maintained of the individual member’s portion of the Reserve Fund.
The Reserve Fund shall be accounted for as a component of the Liability Program’s equity. The Reserve Fund will be
utilized through Governing Board action for: 1) maintaining funds for disbursement of the dividend over an extended
distribution period (over one year); 2) rate stabilization for future renewal increases; 3) enhancement or expansion of
current programs; 4) development of new programs, or 5) other Governing Board approved terms.5

Section 2.6
2.6.1

Assessments
As approved by the Governing Board, assessments may be levied on the participant for the risk sharing layer of any
program year(s) when an actuary finds that the assets of the LP, as a whole, do not meet the expected discounted losses
of the LP. Each participant’s share of the assessment shall be allocated based upon the method by which the deposit
premiums were collected for the risk sharing layer of each respective program year being assessed. If such assessment is
not sufficient to relieve the pool of its actuarial determined deficit in the year of the assessment, such assessment shall be
levied each subsequent year until the actuarial deficit is relieved. The timing of the payment shall be determined by the
Governing Board at the time of the assessment.

2.6.1

Equity, from the risk sharing layer, may be exchanged between eligible program years if sufficient funds are available. The
transfer of equity will be performed such that the individual participant’s share of equity is separately applied so as to
maintain the integrity of each participant’s balance.

Section 2.7
2.7.1

Excess Coverage
The Governing Board shall ensure that each program year is provided with excess liability coverage for the participants. It
is the intent and purpose of the Authority to continue to provide such coverage to the participants, provided that such
coverage can be obtained, and the coverage is not unreasonably priced. This coverage may be obtained from an insurance
company, by participating in another pool established under the Government Code as a joint powers authority, or offered
through another LP pooling procedure. If the coverage is purchased from an insurance company, such insurance company
shall have an A.M. Best Rating Classification of A or better and an A.M. Best Financial Rating of VII or better or their
equivalents.

2.7.2

Premiums for such coverages shall be paid by the LP from the proceeds received as deposit

2.7.3

The Governing Board may, from time to time, alter excess coverage based on insurance market conditions, available
alternatives, costs, and other factors. The Governing Board shall place excess coverage with the two competing objectives
of security and minimizing costs to the LP as a whole.

participants.

premiums from the

ARTICLE 3 - ADMINISTRATION
Section 3.1
Governing Board or Administrative Committee
3.1.1
Discussion of developments and performance of the LP may occur as part of any scheduled meeting.
3.1.2
The Governing Board or Administrative Committee shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and perform all
functions, and make all decisions affecting the LP, consistent with the powers of the Authority and not in conflict with the
Agreement, the Bylaws, or the MOC.
Section 3.2
3.2.1

Claims Committee (Liability & Workers’ Compensation)
The Claims Committee (CC) shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and perform all functions delegated to
it by the Governing Board and make all decisions affecting the Liability and Workers’ Compensation Programs, provided
that such functions and decisions are consistent with the powers of the Authority and are not in conflict with the
Agreement, the Authority Bylaws, or the MOC.

3.2.2

The CC shall be responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Liability and Workers’ Compensation programs, including, but
not limited to:
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3.2.2.1
3.2.2.2
3.2.2.3
3.2.2.4
3.2.2.5
3.2.2.6

Claims Review and Settlement
Claims Handling
Memorandum of Coverage
Litigation Management Procedures
Proposals for Claims Adjusters, Claims Auditors, and Legal Defense Services
Items Referred by the Governing Board or Administrative Committee.

Recommendations of the CC shall be forwarded to the Governing Board or Administrative Committee for approval, except
as provided in Section 4.3.2.
3.2.3

The CC shall have the authority to:
3.2.3.1
Approve all claims settlements as provided in Section 4.3.2. Any claim above the Authority of the CC must be
brought to the Governing Board or Administrative Committee for approval, and
3.2.3.2
Negotiate and approve contracts within the scope of responsibilities, $50,000 or less, and within the approved
budget appropriations.

3.2.4

The number of members of the CC shall be a minimum of five and a maximum of nine, and recommended by the CC from
member entities participating in the Liability or Workers’ Compensation Programs, and approved by the Administrative
Committee or Governing Board. Members shall serve on the CC for a three-year term. Efforts shall be made to include on
the CC at least one representative from each of the following disciplines: Risk Management, Finance, Legal, Human
Resources, and Administration.

3.2.5

Procedures
3.2.5.1
The CC will meet as required for business, but not less than four times a year. Such meetings will be duly
noticed, and an agenda will be distributed to all CC members.
All meetings of the CC shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code
§54950, et seq.).
3.2.5.2

Attendance of CC members is essential to conducting claims management of the Authority. A CC member
missing a maximum of two meetings in a fiscal year (July 1 to June 30), shall be subject to review by the
Governing Board or Administrative Committee concerning forfeiture of his/her membership on the CC. Claims
Committee members may not appoint a delegate to attend the meetings in his/her place.

3.2.5.3.

CC meetings shall be conducted by the Chairperson as elected by the CC. In the absence of or inability of the
Chairperson to act, the Vice Chairperson shall act as Chairperson. If either the Chairperson or Vice
Chairperson ceases to be a member, the resulting vacancy shall be filled at the next meeting of the CC.

3.2.5.4

A majority of the members of the CC is a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 3.3
General Manager
The General Manager, as outlined in the Agreement, shall be responsible for:
3.3.1
The overall operation of the LP;
3.3.2
Monitoring the status of the LP and its operations, the development of losses, the program’s administrative and
operational costs, service companies’ performance, and brokers’ performance;
3.3.3
Assisting in selecting brokers, actuaries, auditors, and other service companies;
3.3.4
Promoting the LP to prospective new participants;
3.3.5
Preparing, distributing, and maintaining all records of the LP, including its Bylaws and MOC as these may be amended
from time to time; and
3.3.6
Preparing Certificates of Coverage and Waivers of Subrogation as may be required by the participants in the LP.
ARTICLE 4 - CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION
Section 4.1
Claims Adjuster
The Governing Board or Administrative Committee shall appoint a claims adjusting company whose duties shall include:
4.1.1
4.1.2
4.1.3
4.1.4
4.1.5
4.1.6

Assign an Account Manager to coordinate all activity.
Provide all personnel necessary to perform the services as agreed upon under the contract.
Complete all facets of excess claims handling and adjustment of all assigned losses.
Maintain an organized, well documented claim file on each claim.
Establish reserves for “indemnity” and “expense.”
Monitor claim reserves on an ongoing basis, adjust as necessary, appoint monitoring counsel, adjust all claims,
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4.1.7
4.1.8
4.1.9
4.1.10
4.1.11
4.1.12
4.1.13
4.1.14
4.1.15
4.1.16
4.1.17
4.1.18
4.1.19
4.1.20
Section 4.2
4.2.1
4.2.2
4.2.3
Section 4.3
4.3.1

recommend settling claims that exceed the participant’s SIR, and request approval for coverage opinions.
Maintain a computerized diary on each claim.
Review all invoices for which a claim is being made for reasonableness, causal relationship and conformity to appropriate
fee schedules.
Pursue all possibilities of subrogation, co-defendants and/or indemnity, as appropriate.
Coordinate all activity on litigated claims with defense counsel.
Report to the Authority’s excess carrier or reinsurer all claims where the payments are expected to reach or exceed the
Authority’s layer of coverage or when the claim falls into a category identified by the excess carrier or reinsurer.
Coordinate claims handling with the excess carrier or reinsurer.
Ensure timely closure of all claims once settlement documents have been received.
Review, recommend for approval, and coordinate payment of the Authority’s claims and claim-related expenses.
Maintain closed claim files for five years after date of closure or until the applicable statute runs.
Provide Risk Management Information reports, the frequency and distribution of which will be agreed upon by the
Authority.
Create a Watch List of claims that have the potential to reach the Authority’s layer of coverage.
Report all Watch List claims to the CC.
Report to the Governing Board regarding potential settlement of claims that reach the Authority’s layer of coverage.
Implement and monitor the Litigation Management Policies and Procedures.
Participate in settlement conferences, mediations and arbitration hearings, as necessary.
Claims Audit
At least once every two years, the adequacy of claims adjusting for both the Authority and the participants shall be
examined by an independent auditor who specializes in claims auditing.
The costs of such claims audit shall be paid by the Authority.
The claims audit report shall address the issues of both adequacy of claims procedures and accuracy of claims data. The
report shall be filed with the Authority and sent to each participant.
Claim Settlement Authority
Participants - Each participant shall have settlement authority for all claims, including attorney fees and other costs, which
do not exceed 100% of the participant’s retained limit. The CC will review these claims from time to time and may offer its
recommendation to the participant’s Third Party Administrator (TPA) and the participant regarding settlement.

4.3.2

The CC shall have the authority to settle any claim, as defined in the MOC, up to two hundred fifty thousand dollars
($250,000) in excess of the retained limit of the member entity involved.

4.3.3

The Administrative Committee shall have the authority to settle any claim, as defined in the MOC, up to five hundred
thousand dollars ($500,000) in excess of the retained limit of the member entity involved.

4.3.4

The General Manager shall have the authority to settle any claim as defined in the MOC, up to fifty thousand dollars
($50,000) in excess of the retained limit of the member entity involved.

4.3.5

The Governing Board, unless otherwise delegated, retains unto itself the authority to approve settlement of all other
claims.

Section 4.4
Disputes Regarding Management of a Claim
ANY CLAIMS SETTLEMENT OR ARBITRATION DECISION MADE BY THE CC MAY BE APPEALED. SUCH APPEAL SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE MOC AND THE AUTHORITY’S DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY.
ARTICLE 5 - PARTICIPATION
Section 5.1
Eligibility and Application
5.1.1
Eligibility
5.1.1.1
Any member of the Authority may apply to participate in the LP by providing an adopted resolution of its city
council and such other information/materials as may be required. The entity resolution shall commit the
applicant entity to three full years of participation in the LP, if accepted, and consent to be governed for
liability matters in accordance with the Bylaws, the approved MOC, and other documents and policies
adopted by the Governing Board. The resolution may also state the retained limit desired by the applicant
entity.
5.1.1.2

It is recommended that an entity only enter the LP at the commencement of a new program year. If an entity
chooses to enter the LP at any other time, the deposit premium for the remainder of the program year will be
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pro-rated. The new member entity will begin coverage on the date that is mutually acceptable to the entity
and the Governing Board; however, the new participant will be required to share losses with the other
members of the LP for the entire program year. The application for participation shall be submitted at least 60
days prior to the date the entity wishes coverage to begin to ensure the Governing Board has adequate time
to review and evaluate the acceptability of the applicant.
5.1.2

Section 5.2
5.2.1

Approval/Rejection of Application
5.1.2.1
The Governing Board shall, after reviewing the resolution and other underwriting criteria, determine the
acceptability of the exposures presented by the applicant entity and shall advise the applicant entity in
writing, of its decision to accept or reject the request within ten days after the decision has been made.
Participants’ Duties
Each member entity shall be responsible for providing accurate and factual data required by the Authority on a timely
basis to determine appropriate cost of coverage. Failure to comply may subject the member entity with sanctions, up to
and including termination from the LP.

5.2.2

The participants shall provide payroll, using the Federal W-3 form and all other requested information in conformance
with the policies adopted by the Governing Board.

5.2.3

The participants shall disclose activities not usual and customary in their operation.

5.2.4

The participants shall at all times cooperate with the Authority's General Manager, CC, claims adjusting company, broker,
and loss control personnel, in regards to underwriting activities of the Authority, which shall include the collection of loss
data in accordance with the ICRMA Third Party Claims Administration Data Request Standards.
5.2.4.1

Each year of the LP, each member entity will complete and return a renewal application to staff by the fourth
Monday of March or before an otherwise specified date.

5.2.4.2

Applications received by staff more than ten calendar days after their due date will be subject to a 5%
surcharge on the member’s next year’s LP premium. Staff will send by overnight mail a reminder to the
member entity in question together with an additional application.

5.2.4.3

Applications received by staff more than 20 calendar days after their due date will be subject to a 10%
surcharge on the member’s next year’s LP premium. Staff will send a reminder by overnight mail to the
member in question.

5.2.4.4

Applications not received by staff 60 calendar days prior to the beginning of the new LP year will subject the
member entity to the previously referenced surcharge and, in addition, the member may receive a rate
different from the pooled rate obtained for the member entities as a group. Any rate obtained outside of the
group rate may subject the member entity to additional broker fees. The member entity may also be subject
to suspension of coverage until a completed application is received by staff, have no coverage placed, or be
terminated from the LP. A written notice of this will be provided to the member entity not in compliance.

5.2.4.5

All surcharges levied against members in violation of this policy will be invoiced directly to the individual
member by the Treasurer of ICRMA.

5.2.4.6

Any late fee assessed in accordance with the provisions of this Section may be appealed. Such appeal shall be
in accordance with the Authority’s Dispute Resolution Policy.

5.2.5

Each year the Authority shall bill participants for a liability deposit premium for the next program year. The billings shall be
due and payable in accordance with the Authority’s Bylaws.

5.2.6

Billings may be made to participants for a program year found to be actuarially unsound. All billings for payments to bring
a program year into an actuarially sound condition are due and payable upon receipt.

5.2.7

Participants that have formerly participated in the LP, but have withdrawn as a participant, shall be required to pay all
applicable billings for the program years in which they participated. Delinquent billings, together with penalties and
interest, shall be charged and collected from the participant in accordance with the policies adopted by the Governing
Board.
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5.2.8
Section 5.3
5.3.1

Penalties and interest shall be charged against any amounts delinquent in accordance with the Authority’s Bylaws.
Termination
Voluntary Termination
5.3.1.1
A participant which has maintained participation in the LP for three full program years may terminate its
participation if, by December 1, a written notice to terminate participation is forwarded to the Authority from
the participant. Any such timely notice to terminate participation may be revoked by the participant by
providing written notice to the Authority by January 15. A member’s written notice to terminate participation
must include the Council resolution or meeting minutes authorizing such action. Any notice of revocation of
that notice shall be made in writing by the City Manager or other duly authorized official of the participant,
and shall be followed as soon as reasonably practicable by the participant’s Council resolution or meeting
minutes authorizing revocation of the notice to terminate participation.
5.3.1.2

5.3.2

Involuntary Termination
5.3.2.1
The Governing Board may initiate termination of future participation for the following reasons:
5.3.2.1.1
Termination as a member of the Authority;
5.3.2.1.2
Declination to cover the participant by the entity providing excess coverage;
5.3.2.1.3
Nonpayment of premiums, assessments, or other charges;
5.3.2.1.3
Frequent late payment of premiums, assessments, and/or other charges, subject to interest
and penalty charges;
5.3.2.1.4
Failure to timely provide requested underwriting information;
5.3.2.1.5
Consistent poor loss history relative to the pool;
5.3.2.1.6
Substantial change in exposures which are not acceptable in this LP; and/or
5.3.2.1.6
Financial impairment that is likely to jeopardize this LP’s ability to collect amounts due in the
future.
5.3.2.2

5.3.3

A participant that has not maintained its participation in the LP for three full program years shall not be
permitted to withdraw from the LP prior to the end of its commitment period and shall be obligated for
payment of premiums for these three years.

The Governing Board shall have the authority, as provided in Section 5.1.3.14 of the Authority Bylaws to send
termination notice to a participant. Such notice shall be sent at least 60 days prior to termination.

Termination of participation, whether voluntary or involuntary, in future program years does not relieve the terminated
entity of any benefits or obligations of those program years in which the entity participated. These obligations include
payment of assessments, retrospective adjustments, or any other amounts due and payable. In addition, the obligation to
provide timely claims data for evaluation of claims exposure does not cease with termination from the program. Any
participant which voluntarily withdraws as a participant from the LP shall not be permitted to renew participation in the
program until the expiration of three years from the date of the participant’s withdrawal.

ARTICLE 6 - TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION
The LP may be terminated and dissolved by written consent of two-thirds of the participants. However, this LP shall continue to exist for
the purpose of disposing of all claims, distributing assets, and all other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of the LP.
Upon termination of the LP, all assets of the LP shall be distributed only among the participants, including any which previously withdrew
pursuant to Article 5, in accordance with and proportionate to their deposit premiums and assessments paid during the term of
participation. The Governing Board shall determine such distribution within six months after the last pending claim or loss covered by the
LP has been finally resolved and there is a reasonable expectation that no new claims will be filed.
ARTICLE 7 - EFFECTIVE DATE and Supremacy
These Bylaws shall be effective immediately upon the date of approval and upon adoption shall supersede and cancel any prior Bylaws
and/or amendments thereto.
ARTICLE 8 – AMENDMENTS
These Bylaws may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the participants’ representatives of the Governing Board
present and voting at the meeting provided prior written notice, as provided within the Agreement, has been given to the Governing Board.
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B.3. PROPERTY PROGRAM BYLAWS

Text here is as presented for approval at the July 2017 board meeting

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL
Section 1.1 Authority
1.1.1
The Property Program (PP) Bylaws of the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (ICRMA) shall be treated as
one of ICRMA's governing documents and, as such, shall have the same effect as the Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement for Insurance and Risk Management Purposes (Agreement), the ICRMA Bylaws and Memorandum of
Coverage (MOC).
1.1.2
The PP Bylaws are intended to be the primary source of information, contain the rules and regulations, and serve as
the operational guide for the conduct of the PP.
1.1.3
The PP has been organized under authority granted by, and shall be conducted in accordance with the laws of the
State of California and the standards set forth by the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA) in its
accreditation standards.
Section 1.2 Purpose
ICRMA provides a PP which has been designed to provide protection against physical damage to the member entities’ real and personal
property.
Section 1.3 Governance
Each member entity’s appointed delegate representative, alternate representative, and substitute alternate representative to the
Governing Board of ICRMA shall be the representatives for the PP. Each member entity of the Governing Board will be entitled to one
vote on the Governing Board on all issues or decisions that involve the PP. It is expected, but not mandatory, that the delegate
representative from each member entity will be the primary appointee to the Governing Board.
ARTICLE 2 - PROGRAM ELEMENTS
Section 2.1 Program Years

2.1.1
2.1.2

A program year is defined by the term of the coverage period, generally a period of twelve (12) months. The program
years generally will begin at 12:01 a.m. on July 1, and end at 12:01 a.m. on the following July 1.
The transactions relating to this PP shall be accounted for and the funds maintained separately from any other ICRMA
program. An annual contribution amount may be charged to each participating member entity at the inception of the
program year to fund the losses and expenses anticipated during that program year, to fund the purchase of excess
insurance coverage, and for administrative expenses.

Section 2.2 Coverage/Limits of Liability
ICRMA shall purchase a commercial, excess or reinsurance property insurance policy, with terms and limits acceptable to the
Governing Board of ICRMA, which policy is to be excess over the Retention of ICRMA and to member’s deductibles as described
herein.
Section 2.3 ICRMA’s Retention
ICRMA shall have a Retention in an amount to be established and approved by the Governing Board, and may be subject to a
combined aggregate limit to be established and approved by the Governing Board for auto physical damage and/or property
damage combined, per program year.
Section 2.4 Member’s Deductibles
For each program year, each member of the PP shall be responsible for a deductible amount, to be established and approved by
the Governing Board, per occurrence per member for auto physical damage, and per occurrence per member for property losses.
The amounts of the deductibles may be changed by vote of the participants’ representatives of the Governing Board present and
voting at a Governing Board meeting.
Section 2.5 Financing the Program
2.5.1
Members shall be billed annually for participation in the PP. The amounts billed shall be sufficient to: 1) fund ICRMA’s
Retention; 2) purchase the excess coverage, and 3) pay program administrative expenses for participating member
entities.
2.5.2
Rates shall be recommended by the Executive Director in conjunction with ICRMA’s actuary, if deemed necessary,
subject to Governing Board approval with the adoption of the budget for the program year.
2.5.3
The due dates and failure to pay consequences dates are the same as those as specified in the ICRMA Bylaws.
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2.5.4

The annual contribution amount for each participating member entity shall be approved by the Governing Board as
part of the approved annual budget. The contribution amount shall be calculated according to an approved allocation
formula or other guidelines approved by the Governing Board.

Section 2.6 Assessment
If the Governing Board determines the PP lacks sufficient funds to satisfy ICRMA’s Retention, or for other purposes, for a given
program year, the Governing Board may assess the participating member entities an amount sufficient to fund incurred
costs and completion of the program year, or may temporarily suspend the coverage under the PP until such time as the
Governing Board may vote to terminate or continue the PP pursuant to Article 4.3 of these Bylaws. Assessments to participating
member entities shall be fair and equitable as determined in the discretion of the Governing Board, and shall in general be
proportionate to each member’s contribution amount for any program year assessed.
ARTICLE 3 - ADMINISTRATION
Section 3.1 Responsibility and Authority
1..
Governing Board
3.1.1.1
Discussion of developments and performance of the PP may occur as part of any meeting of the Governing
Board.
3.1.1.2
The Governing Board, or an appropriate committee created pursuant to the general Bylaws to which
certain powers are properly delegated, shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and perform
all functions, and make all decisions affecting the PP, consistent with the powers of ICRMA and not in
conflict with the Agreement, the ICRMA Bylaws, these Bylaws or the MOC.
2..

Executive Director
3.1.1.3
The Executive Director shall use best efforts to administer the PP so as to achieve the purpose of the PP
and ICRMA.
3.1.1.4
The daily operation of the PP shall be administered by ICRMA’s Executive Director, or designee of the
Executive Director. The Executive Director shall report to ICRMA’s Governing Board.
3.1.1.5

The Executive Director, as outlined in the Agreement, shall be responsible for:
3.1.1.5.1
The overall operation of the PP;
3.1.1.5.2

Monitoring the status of the PP and its operations, the development of losses, the
program’s administrative and operational costs, service companies’ performance, and
brokers’ performance;

3.1.1.5.3
3.1.1.5.4

Assisting in selecting brokers, actuaries, auditors, and other service companies;
Promoting the PP to prospective new participants;

3.1.1.5.5

Preparing, distributing, and maintaining all records of the PP, including its Bylaws and MOC
as these may be amended from time to time; and
Ensuring that appropriate Certificates of Insurance or Certificates of Coverage and Waivers
of Subrogation are issued as may be required for self-insurance by the participants in the
PP.

3.1.1.5.6

ARTICLE 4 - PARTICIPATION
Section 4.1 Eligibility and Application
4.1.1
All ICRMA members are eligible to participate in the PP.
4.1.2
4.1.3
4.1.4

The applicant must apply for participation in the PP by providing all information requested by the Executive Director,
or designee of the Executive Director.
Upon receipt of the requested information, the Executive Director, in conjunction with the broker and ICRMA finance
team, shall provide a quote for coverage, to the applicant.
The applicant must commit to at least three full program years of participation in the PP.

Section 4.2 Participants’ Duties
4.2.1
Each member entity shall be responsible for providing accurate and factual data required by ICRMA on a timely basis to
determine appropriate cost of coverage. Failure to comply may subject the member entity to monetary surcharges and
other actions, up to and including termination from the PP.
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4.2.2

The participants shall at all times cooperate with ICRMA's Executive Director, claims adjusting company, broker, and
loss control personnel, in regards to underwriting activities of ICRMA, which shall include the collection of loss data in
accordance with ICRMA’s Universal Data Specifications.
4.2.2.1
4.2.2.2
4.2.2.3

4.2.2.4

4.2.2.5

4.2.2.6

4.2.3
4.2.4

4.2.5

Section 4.3
4.3.1

4.3.2

Each year of the PP, each member entity will complete and return a renewal application to Staff by a date
specified by the Executive Director, or designee of the Executive Director.
Should complete exposure data not be received from a member by the stated deadline, a surcharge will be
assessed in the amount of 5% of the member’s premium or $1,000, whichever is less.
Should complete exposure data not be received from a member within ten
(10) days of the stated deadline, ICRMA may increase the member’s prior year total insured values (TIV) by
5% or the average TIV increase of the other ICRMA members, whichever is greater. ICRMA may then use
that amount for budget calculations, generating member invoices, reporting to third parties, and other
purposes.
Applications not timely received by staff and/or designee prior to the beginning of the new program year
will subject the member entity to the previously referenced surcharge. In addition, the member may
receive a rate different from the group purchase rate obtained for the member entities as a group. The
member entity may also be subject to suspension of coverage until a completed application is received by
staff, have no coverage placed, or be terminated from the PP.
All surcharges levied against members in violation of this policy will be invoiced directly to the individual
member.
The member may appeal any surcharge assessed in accordance with these Bylaws to the Board at the next
Board meeting following notification of the assessed surcharge. The Board may waive or reduce the
penalty(ies), for good cause shown by the member, no more than once every five years.

Each year ICRMA shall bill participants for a contribution amount for the next program year. The billings shall be due
and payable in accordance with the ICRMA Bylaws and these PP Bylaws.
Participants that have formerly participated in the PP, but have withdrawn as a participant, shall be required to pay all
applicable billings for the program years in which they participated. Delinquent billings shall be charged and collected
from the participant in accordance with the ICRMA Bylaws.
In addition to any surcharge under these Bylaws, penalties and interest shall be charged against any amounts
delinquent in accordance with the ICRMA Bylaws.
Termination of Participation
A participant which has maintained its participation in the PP for three full program years, may terminate its
participation if, on December 1 before the beginning of the next program year, a written notice to terminate
participation is provided to ICRMA by the participant. Any such timely notice to terminate participation may be revoked
by the participant by providing written notice to the Authority by January 15. The notice must include a participant’s
Council resolution or meeting minutes authorizing such action. Any notice of revocation of that notice shall be made in
writing by the City Manager or other duly authorized official of the participant, and shall be followed as soon as
reasonably practicable by the participant’s Council resolution or meeting minutes authorizing revocation of the notice
to terminate participation.
The Governing Board may initiate termination of future participation for the following reasons:
4.3.2.1
Termination as a member of ICRMA;
4.3.2.2

Declination to cover participant by the entity providing excess coverage;

4.3.2.3

Non-payment of premiums, assessments, or other charges;

4.3.2.4
4.3.2.5

Frequent late payment of premiums, assessments, and/or other charges, subject to interest and penalty
charges;
Failure to timely provide requested underwriting information;

4.3.2.6

Consistent poor loss history relative to the pool;

4.3.2.7

Substantial change in exposures which are not acceptable in the PP; and/or

4.3.2.8

Financial impairment that is likely to jeopardize the PP’s ability to collect amounts due in the future.
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ARTICLE 5 - TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION
The PP may be terminated and dissolved by written consent of two-thirds of the Governing Board. However, this PP shall continue to
exist for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distributing assets, and all other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of the PP.
Upon termination of the PP, all assets of the PP shall be distributed only among the members then participating in the PP, in accordance
with and proportionate to their contribution amount and assessments paid during the term of participation. The Governing Board shall
determine such distribution within six months after the last pending claim or loss covered by the PP has been finally resolved and there
is a reasonable expectation that no new claims will be filed.
ARTICLE 6 - EFFECTIVE DATE AND SUPREMACY
These Bylaws shall be effective immediately upon the date of approval and upon adoption shall supersede and cancel any prior Bylaws
and/or amendments thereto
ARTICLE 7 - AMENDMENTS
These Bylaws may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the Governing Board present and voting at the meeting.
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B.4. WORKERS COMPENSATION BYLAWS

Change record
•
Changes made prior to October 2014 are available in ICRMA minutes
•
10/9/2014 - Amended Section 5.3 to change withdrawal notice date from January 15 to December 1, and to add revocation of
withdrawal notice date of January 15.
ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL
Section 1.1
Authority
1.1.1
The Workers’ Compensation Program (WCP) Bylaws of the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (Authority)
shall be treated as one of the Authority's governing documents and, as such, shall have the same effect as the Joint
Exercise of Powers for Insurance and Risk Management Purposes (Agreement), Authority Bylaws, and Memorandum of
Coverage (MOC).
1.1.2
22.49

These WCP Bylaws are intended to be the primary source of information, contain the rules and regulations, and serve
as the operational guide for the conduct of the WCP.

1.1.3
In accordance with Authority Resolution 80-1, the WCP was established, effective February 1, 2003. It was one of the
risk management programs provided to member entities pursuant to the Agreement.
1.1.4

The WCP has been organized under authority granted by, and shall be conducted in accordance with, the laws of the
State of California; regulations prescribed by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) and the State of California
Audit Unit; and the standards set forth by the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA) in its
accreditation standards.

Section 1.2
Purpose
The primary purpose in establishing the WCP is to create a method for providing coverage for legal exposures incurred by the
member cities and the Authority, as provided in the MOC. Each member entity is herein referred to as member entity or participant.
Section 1.3
Participation
Each member entity of the Authority may become a participant in the WCP; however, the terms and conditions which may be
imposed on a member entity that desires to join the WCP may be different, depending upon payroll, number of employees, the size
of the entity, its loss record, and other pertinent information.
Section 1.4
Governance
Each entity’s appointed delegate representative, alternate representative, and substitute alternate representative to the Governing
Board of the Authority shall be the representatives for the WCP. The member entity will be entitled to one vote on all issues or
decisions that involve the WCP. It is expected, but not mandatory, that the delegate representative from each member entity will be
the primary appointee to the Governing Board.
Section 1.5
1.5.1

Goals and Objectives
The WCP shall provide workers' compensation coverage for the participants utilizing an optimum mix of risk retention
and risk transfer. The WCP shall provide various levels of retentions for the participants, provide a risk sharing pool for
losses above individual retained limits to the Authority’s self-insured retention (SIR), and obtain excess coverage for the
amount of the loss which exceeds the Authority’s SIR. Additionally, the WCP shall provide for the sharing of operating
costs, administrative costs and payment of the excess coverage by charging all participants their share of such costs.

1.5.2

Although the WCP is provided to the participants under those terms and conditions which prevail when the participant
joins the WCP, the Authority’s Governing Board shall have the right to alter, from time to time, the terms and
conditions of the excess coverage and the pooled underlying coverage in response to the needs and abilities of the WCP
participants, as well as in response to availability of coverage from outside sources.

1.5.3

The Authority offers participation in a risk sharing pool, covering losses of participants in accordance with the
Agreement. The assets of the pooled program shall be maintained at all times as the assets of the participants
collectively. The assets may be disbursed only pursuant to the provisions of these Bylaws, and no participant shall have
an individual right to exercise control over said assets except as provided in the Agreement.

1.5.4

The WCP will provide coverage under the terms and conditions set forth in the MOC. The amount of coverage to be
pooled and/or purchased is at the discretion of the Governing Board.
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ARTICLE 2 - PROGRAM ELEMENTS
Section 2.1
Program Years
2.1.1
A program year is defined by the term of the coverage period, generally a period of twelve (12) months. Except for the
originating program year which will run for 17 months, the program years will generally begin at 12:01 a.m. on July 1
and end at 12:01 a.m. on the following July 1.
2.1.2

Each program year shall be accounted for separately. The income and expenses of each program year shall be
accounted for separately from any other program years' income or expenses.

2.1.3

A program year shall not be closed until such time that the Board authorizes closure, being convinced that known
claims for the year are all closed and the probability of further claims being discovered is minimal. Any closed years,
however, may be reopened if deemed necessary and approved by the Governing Board.

Section 2.2
2.2.1

Retained Limits
The WCP shall annually establish the limit of coverage for the pool. The underlying coverage of the WCP shall provide
participants retained limits of $350,000, $500,000, $750,000, and $1,000,000 per occurrence, or other limits modified
by resolution.

2.2.2

The participant may only alter the retained limit at the inception of a program year upon sixty (60) days advance written
notice.

2.2.3

The Governing Board, as provided in Section 5.1.3.5 of the Authority Bylaws, may also require, at the inception of a
program year, a member entity to have a retained limit different from the expiring program year, upon sixty (60) days
advance written notice.

2.2.4

The amount of each loss, including expenses, which is less than the retained limit chosen by the applicable participant,
shall be paid by the participant.

Section 2.3
2.3.1

Deposit Premiums
Annually, each participant shall pay a deposit premium to the Authority for each program year. Such deposit premiums
shall consist of the amount needed to cover excess insurance or reinsurance premiums (if any), administrative expenses
and actuarially-determined losses, plus a margin for added confidence as determined by the Board.

2.3.2

The deposit premium shall be initially calculated for each participant by taking the participant’s expected annual
payroll, as provided by each participant, multiplied by the Board adopted rate per $100 of payroll. After the end of the
program year, adjustments from expected to actual payroll shall be made using participant's Unemployment Insurance
wages as reported to the State on form DE6 - Quarterly Wage and Withholding Report. Debit adjustments shall be
billed to the participant, and credit adjustments will apply to next year’s billings. An annual audit of a participant’s
payroll may be conducted by the Authority.

2.3.3

The deposit premium shall also include:
2.3.3.1
All volunteers, declared by resolution prior to any occurrence, or otherwise required to be covered.
2.3.3.2
All other persons engaged in work that could make the Authority liable under Part One (workers’
compensation insurance) of the MOC. If the participant does not have payroll records for these persons,
the contract price remuneration for their services and materials may be used as the premium basis. This
paragraph will not apply if the participant gives the Authority proof that the employers of these persons
lawfully secured their workers’ compensation obligations.

22.50

Section 2.4
2.4.1
2.4.2
Section 2.5
2.5.1

2.3.3.3 The administrative expenses charged to each participant are calculated as follows:
2.3.3.3.1
A percentage amount annually approved in the budget and allocated by each participant’s
relative percentage of payroll.
2.3.3.3.2
Secondly, a percentage of the amount calculated is allocated equally to each participant.
Experience Modification
Each participant shall be evaluated each year for an experience modification adjustment that shall be applied to the
deposit premium.
The calculation of the adjustment shall include the actual loss experience of the individual member entity.
Dividend and Assessments
Dividends
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2.5.1.1

2.5.1.2

Five years after the end of the program year, the first dividend calculation shall be performed. Each year
thereafter there shall be an additional dividend calculation made until such time as the program year is
closed. Any dividends available to be declared and returned to the participants will be at the discretion of
the Governing Board.
Calculation
2.5.1.2.1

Dividends are available to be declared only at such time as the WCP has equity, with
liabilities actuarially stated undiscounted at a 90% confidence level. The calculated
amount shall represent the maximum dividend available to be declared.

2.5.1.2.2

This amount shall be reduced if the two succeeding years (after the fifth program year
reaches eligibility) have negative equity, with liabilities actuarially stated at an expected
confidence level.

2.5.1.2.3

Each participant’s share of any dividends shall be allocated based upon the method in
which the deposit premiums were collected, beginning with the oldest program year.
However, until the last claim of a program year has been paid and the program year has
been closed, the program year must maintain sufficient funds to satisfy the 90%
confidence level discounted requirement.

Section 2.6
2.6.1

Assessments
As approved by the Governing Board, assessments may be levied for the risk sharing layer of any program year(s) when
an actuary finds that the assets of the WCP, as a whole, do not meet the expected discounted losses of the WCP. Each
Participant’s share of the assessment shall be allocated based upon the method by which the deposit premiums
collected for the risk sharing layer of each respective program year being assessed. If such assessment is not sufficient
to relieve the pool of its actuarial determined deficit in the year of the assessment, such assessment shall be levied each
subsequent year until the actuarial deficit is relieved. The timing of payment shall be determined by the Governing
Board at time of assessment.

2.6.2

Equity, from the risk sharing layer, may be exchanged between eligible program years if sufficient funds are available.
The transfer of equity will be performed such that the individual participant’s share of equity is separately applied so as
to maintain the integrity of each participant’s balance.

Section 2.7
2.7.1

Excess Coverage
The Governing Board shall ensure that each program year is provided with excess workers’ compensation coverage for
the participants. It is the intent and purpose of the Authority to continue to provide such coverage to the participants,
provided that such coverage can be obtained, and the coverage is not unreasonably priced. This coverage may be
obtained from an insurance company, by participating in another pool established under the Government Code as a
joint powers authority, or offered through another WCP pooling procedure. If the coverage is purchased from an
insurance company, such insurance company shall have an A.M. Best Rating Classification of A- or better and an A.M.
Best Financial Rating of VII or better or their equivalents.

2.7.2

Premiums for such coverage shall be paid by the WCP from the proceeds received as deposit premiums from the
participants.

2.7.3

The Governing Board may, from time to time, alter excess coverage based on insurance market conditions, available
alternatives, costs, and other factors. The Governing Board shall place excess coverage with the two competing
objectives of security and minimizing costs to the WCP as a whole.

ARTICLE 3 - ADMINISTRATION
Section 3.1
Governing Board or Administrative Committee
3.1.1
Discussion of developments and performance of the WCP may occur as part of any scheduled meeting.
3.1.2
The Governing Board or Administrative Committee shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and perform
all other functions, and make all decisions affecting the WCP, consistent with the powers of the Authority and not in
conflict with the Agreement, the Bylaws, or the MOC.
Section 3.2
3.2.1

Claims Committee (Workers’ Compensation & Liability)
The Claims Committee (CC) shall have the responsibility and authority to carry out and perform all functions delegated
to it by the Governing Board and make all decisions affecting the Workers’ Compensation Program, provided that such
functions and decision are consistent with the powers of the Authority and are not in conflict with the Agreement, the
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Authority Bylaws, or the MOC.
3.2.2

The CC shall be responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Workers’ Compensation and Liability program, including, but
not limited to:
3.2.2.1
3.2.2.2
3.2.2.3
3.2.2.4
3.2.2.5
3.2.2.6

Claims Review and settlement
Claims Handling
Memorandum of Coverage
Litigation Management Procedures
Proposals for Claims Adjusters, Claims Auditors, and Legal Defense Services
Items Referred by the Governing Board or Administrative Committee.

Recommendations of the CC shall be forwarded to the Governing Board or Administrative Committee for approval,
except as provided in Section 4.3.3.
3.2.3

The CC shall have authority to:
3.2.3.1
Approve all claims settlements as provided in Section 4.3. Any claim above the Authority of the CC must
be brought to the Governing Board or Administrative Committee for approval, and
3.2.3.2
Negotiate and approve contracts within the scope of responsibilities, $50,000 or less, and within the approved
budget appropriations.

3.2.4

The number of members of the CC shall be a minimum of five and a maximum of nine, and recommended by the CC
from member entities participating in the Workers’ Compensation or Liability programs, and approved by the
Administrative Committee or Governing Board. Members shall serve on the CC for a three-year term. Efforts shall be
made to include on the CC at least one representative from each of the following disciplines: Risk Management,
Finance, Legal, Human Resources, and Administration.

3.2.5

Procedures
3.2.5.1
The CC will meet as required by business, but not less than four times a year. Such meetings will be duly
noticed, and an agenda will be distributed to all CC members. The Authority Secretary shall be responsible
for the minutes of the meetings and send copies of such minutes to all Governing Board representatives.
All meetings of the Claims Committee shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act
(Government Code §54950, et seq.).

Section 3.3
3.3.1
3.3.2
3.3.3
3.3.4
3.3.5
3.3.6
Section 3.4

3.2.5.2

Attendance of CC members is essential to conducting claims management of the Authority. A CC member
missing a maximum of two meetings in a fiscal year (July 1 to June 30 shall be subject to review by the
Governing Board or Administrative Committee concerning forfeiture of his/her membership on the CC.
Claims Committee members may not appoint a delegate to attend the meetings in his/her place.

3.2.5.3.

Claims Committee meetings shall be conducted by the Chairperson as elected by the Claims Committee. In
the absence of or inability of the Chairperson to act, the Vice Chairperson shall act as Chairperson. If
either the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson ceases to be a member, the resulting vacancy shall be filled at
the next meeting of the Claims Committee.

3.2.5.4

A majority of the members of the Claims Committee is a quorum for the transaction of business.

General Manager
The General Manager as outlined in the Agreement shall be responsible for:
The overall operation of the WCP;
Monitoring the status of the WCP and its operations, the development of losses, the program’s administrative and
operational costs, service companies’ performance, and brokers’ performance;
Assisting in selecting brokers, actuaries, auditors, and other service companies;
Promoting the WCP to prospective new participants;
Preparing, distributing, and maintaining all records of the WCP, including its Bylaws and MOC as these may be amended
from time to time; and
Preparing Certificates of Coverage and Waivers of Subrogation as may be required by the Participants in the WCP.
Workers’ Compensation Program Manager’s Duties:
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3.4.6

The Workers’ Compensation Program Manager (WCPM), unless otherwise modified by resolution, shall:
3.4.1
Generally, oversee all workers' compensation claims administration and management and report to the General
Manager;
3.4.2
Develop for Governing Board approval, performance standards for third party administrators;
3.4.3
Maintain files on all claims reported to the Authority;
3.4.4
Recommend to the Governing Board the setting of reserves for those cases that are likely to penetrate to pooled funds;
3.4.5
Upon the reporting of each claim that has an expectation of exceeding the minimum incurred loss threshold set by the
Governing Board, review said claim for the Authority and report said claims to the Governing Board at the next
scheduled meeting;
Review the progress of all reported claims for the Authority and, if directed by the Governing Board, propose reserve
changes, and/or take control and assume settlement authority for the claim;
3.4.7
Recommend claim settlements to the Governing Board for approval;
3.4.8
Annually, prepare a detailed report on the WCP, showing the activity by program year and the cumulative activity of all
years, including number of claims, losses which have been incurred by each participant, and the losses which have been
shared through pooling;
3.4.9
Assist the participants in training their personnel in the correct procedures for timely
and accurately reporting claims;
3.4.10 As required, provide advice and assistance to participants;
3.4.11 Periodically review third party claims administrator’s claims files. The review should include the new indemnity claims
reported, claims currently open and reported twelve months prior, and those claims for which a participant has
requested a specific review;
3.4.11.1
3.4.11.2
3.4.11.3
3.4.11.4
3.4.11.5
3.4.11.6
3.4.11.7

Provide guidance to the claims adjuster on the management of problem or complex claims;
Advise, where needed, on the selection of legal representation in anticipation of litigation;
Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the defense firms and the management of the litigation;
Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of medical treatment in respect to claims costs, especially
those involving complex medical issues;
Evaluate, where needed, recommendations for settlement of claims;
Mediate differences, if any, between the claims adjuster and a participant; and
Review the performance of the claims adjusters’ personnel assigned to the Authority’s account with
special emphasis in the handling of “open claims.”

ARTICLE 4 - CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION
Section 4.1
Claims Procedures Manual
4.1.1
A Workers' Compensation Claims Procedures Manual (Manual) including reporting procedures, forms, and other vital
information shall be adopted by the Governing Board and provided to all participants.
4.1.2
All participants shall be held accountable for understanding and abiding by the procedures stated in the manual, as well
as any changes thereto.
Section 4.2
4.2.1
4.2.2
4.2.3
Section 4.3
4.3.1

Claims Audit
At least once every two years, the adequacy of claims adjusting for both the Authority and the participants shall be
examined by an independent auditor who specializes in claims auditing.
The costs of such claims audit shall be paid by the Authority.
The claims audit report shall address the issues of both adequacy of claims procedures and accuracy of claims data. The
report shall be filed with the Authority and sent to each participant.
Claim Settlement Authority
Participants - Each participant shall have settlement authority for all claims, including attorney fees and other costs,
which do not exceed 100% of the Participant’s Retained Limit. The Claims Committee will review these claims from time
to time and may offer its recommendation to the Participants’ Third Party Administrator (TPA) and the participant
regarding settlement.

4.3.2

The General Manager shall have the authority to settle any claim, as defined in the MOC, up to fifty thousand dollars
($50,000) in excess of the retained limit of the member entity involved.

4.3.3

The CC shall have the authority to settle any claim, as defined in the MOC, up to two hundred fifty thousand dollars
($250,000) in excess of the retained limit of the member entity involved.

4.3.4

The Administrative Committee shall have the authority to settle any claim, as defined in the MOC, up to five hundred
thousand dollars ($500,000) in excess of the retained limit of the member entity involved.
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4.3.5

The Governing Board, unless otherwise delegated, retains unto itself the authority to approve settlement of all other
claims.
Section 4.4 Disputes Regarding Management of a Claim

4.4.1 Any claims settlement or arbitration decision made by the CC may be appealed. Such appeal shall be in accordance with the MOC and
the Authority’s Dispute Resolution Policy.
ARTICLE 5 - PARTICIPATION
Section 5.1
Eligibility and Application
5.1.1
Eligibility
5.1.1.1 Any member of the Authority may apply to participate in the WCP by providing an adopted resolution of its city
council or other governing body and such other information/materials as may be required. The entity
resolution shall commit the applicant entity to three full years of participation in the WCP, if accepted, and
consent to be governed for workers' compensation matters in accordance with the Bylaws, the approved
MOC and other documents and policies adopted by the Governing Board. The resolution may also state the
retained limit desired by the applicant entity.
5.1.1.2

It is recommended that an entity only enter the WCP at the commencement of a new program year. If an
entity chooses to enter the WCP at any other time, the deposit premium for the remainder of the program
year will be pro rated. The new member entity will begin coverage on the date that is mutually acceptable to
the entity and the Governing Board; however, the new participant will be required to share losses with the
other members of the WCP for the entire program year. The application for participation shall be submitted
at least 60 days prior to the date the entity wishes coverage to begin to ensure that the State Certificate of
Consent to Self-Insure is received prior to the inception date, and that the Governing Board has adequate
time to review and evaluate the acceptability of the applicant.

5.1.2

Approval/Rejection of Application
5.1.2.1 The Governing Board shall, after reviewing the resolution and other underwriting criteria, determine the
acceptability of the exposures presented by the applicant entity shall notify in writing, of its decision to accept
or reject the request within ten days after the decision has been made.

Section 5.2
5.2.1

Participants’ Duties
Each member entity shall be responsible for providing accurate and factual data required by the Authority on a timely
basis to determine appropriate cost of coverage. Failure to comply may subject the member entity with sanctions, up to
and including termination from the WCP.

5.2.4

5.2.2

The participants shall provide payroll, using the State DE-6 form and all other requested information in conformance
with the policies adopted by the Governing Board.

5.2.3

The participants shall disclose activities not usual and customary in their operation.
The participants shall at all times cooperate with the Authority's General Manager, WCPM, CC, claims adjusting
company, and loss control personnel, in regards to underwriting activities of the Authority, which shall include the
collection of loss data in accordance with the ICRMA Third Party Claims Administration Data Request Standards.
5.2.4.1

Each year of the WCP, each member entity will complete and return a renewal application to Staff
by a specified date.

5.2.4.2

Applications received by staff more than ten calendar days after their due date will be subject to a
5% surcharge on the member’s next year’s LP premium. Staff will send by overnight mail a reminder
to the member entity in question together with an additional application.

5.2.4.3

Applications received by staff more than 20 calendar days after their due date will be subject to a
10% surcharge on the member’s next year’s LP premium. Staff will send a reminder by overnight
mail to the member in question.

5.2.4.4

Applications not received by Staff 60 calendar days prior to the beginning of the new WCP year will
subject the participant to the previously referenced surcharge and, in addition, the participant may
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receive a rate different from the pooled rate obtained for the member entities as a group. Any rate
obtained outside of the group rate may subject the participant to additional broker fees. The
participant may also be subject to suspension of coverage until a completed application is received
by staff, have no coverage placed, or be terminated from the WCP. A written notice of this will be
provided to the participant not in compliance.
5.2.4.5
5.2.4.6

All surcharges levied against members in violation of this policy will be invoiced directly to the
individual member by the Treasurer of ICRMA.
Any late fee assessed in accordance with the provisions of this Section may be appealed. Such appeal shall be
in accordance with the Authority’s Dispute Resolution Policy.

5.2.5

Each year the Authority shall bill participants for a workers' compensation deposit premium for the next program year.
The billings shall be due and payable in accordance with the Authority’s Bylaws.

5.2.6

Billings may be made to participants for a program year found to be actuarially unsound. All billings for payments to
bring a program year into an actuarially sound condition are due and payable upon receipt.

5.2.7

Participants that have formerly participated in the WCP, but have withdrawn as a participant, shall be required to pay
all applicable billings for the program years in which they participated. Delinquent billings, together with penalties and
interest, shall be charged and collected from the participant in accordance with the policies adopted by the Governing
Board.

5.2.8

Penalties and interest shall be charged against any amounts delinquent in accordance with the policies adopted by the
Governing Board.

Section 5.3
5.3.1

Termination
Voluntary Termination
5.3.1.1
A participant which has maintained participation in the WCP for three full program years may terminate its
participation if, by December 1, a written notice to terminate participation is forwarded to the Authority from
the participant. Any such timely notice to terminate participation may be revoked by the participant by
providing written notice to the Authority by January 15. A member’s written notice to terminate participation
must include the Council resolution or meeting minutes authorizing such action. Any notice of revocation of
that notice shall be made in writing by the City Manager or other duly authorized official of the participant,
and shall be followed as soon as reasonably practicable by the participant’s Council resolution or meeting
minutes authorizing revocation of the notice to terminate participation.
5.3.1.2

5.3.2

5.3.2.2
5.3.3

A participant that has not maintained its participation in the WCP for three full program years shall not
be permitted to withdraw from the WCP prior to the end of its commitment period and shall be
obligated for payment of premiums for these three years.

Involuntary Termination
5.3.2.1
The Board may initiate termination of future participation for the following reasons:
5.3.2.1.1
Termination as a member of the Authority;
5.3.2.1.2
Declination to cover the participant by the entity providing excess coverage;
5.3.2.1.3
Nonpayment of premiums, assessments, or other charges;
5.3.2.1.4
Frequent late payment of premiums, assessments, and/or other charges: subject to interest
and penalty charges;
5.3.2.1.5
Failure to timely provide requested underwriting information;
5.3.2.1.6
Consistent poor loss history relative to the pool;
5.3.2.1.7
Substantial change in exposures which are not acceptable in this WCP;
5.3.2.1.8
Financial impairment that is likely to jeopardize this WCP’s ability to collect amounts due in the
future; and/or
5.3.2.1.9
Revocation of Certificate to Self-insure.
The Governing Board shall have the authority, as provided in Section 5.1.3.14 of the Authority Bylaws to send
termination notice to a participant. Such notice shall be sent at least 60 days prior to termination.
Termination of participation, whether voluntary or involuntary, in future program years does not relieve the terminated
entity of any benefits or obligations of those program years in which the entity participated. These obligations include
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payment of assessments, retrospective adjustments, or any other amounts due and payable. In addition, the obligation
to provide timely claims data for evaluation of claims exposure does not cease with termination from the program. Any
participant which voluntarily withdraws as a participant from the WCP shall not be permitted to renew participation in
the program until the expiration of three years from the date of the participant’s withdrawal.
ARTICLE 6 - TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION
The WCP may be terminated and dissolved any time during the first three years by the written consent of all participants, and thereafter by
the written consent of two-thirds of the participants. However, this WCP shall continue to exist for the purpose of disposing of all claims,
distributing assets, and all other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of the WCP.
Upon termination of the WCP, all assets of the Authority shall be distributed only among the participants, including any which previously
withdrew pursuant to Article 5, in accordance with and proportionate to their deposit premiums and assessments paid during the term of
participation. The Governing Board shall determine such distribution within six months after the last pending claim or loss, covered by the
WCP has been finally resolved and there is a reasonable expectation that no new claims will be filed.
ARTICLE 7 – EFFECTIVE DATE AND SUPREMACY
These Bylaws shall be effective immediately upon the date of approval and upon adoption shall supersede and cancel any prior Bylaws
and/or amendments thereto.
ARTICLE 8 – AMENDMENTS
These Bylaws may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the participants’ representatives of the Governing Board
present and voting at the meeting provided prior written notice, as provided within the Agreement, has been given to the Governing Board.
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December 14, 2017

Governing Board

Subject:

Member Withdrawal Notices of Alhambra, Downey, and Hermosa Beach

Action for consideration:
Review and file
Background:
The cities of Alhambra, Downey, and Hermosa Beach provided written notice of intent to withdraw
from ICRMA by the December 1 deadline. This notice is rescindable until January 15. RPA staff
sent a letter to the Council and staff at the cities acknowledging receipt of the letters.
It is common for program costs to be cited as the key driver in the staff recommendations to
withdraw from ICRMA. The attached metrics document was prepared to help members better
understand the coverage and services provided by ICRMA, and to allow for the performance of a
more accurate due diligence exercise. RPA staff scheduled meetings with all three cities prior to the
January 15 deadline to discuss the cost indications received and assist with the comparison of
ICRMA costs and coverages with other alternatives. In at least one instance, ICRMA was the least
expensive option, but the information presented to Council showed different results because the
analysis did not include an apples-to-apples comparison.
Starting in the mid-1970s, public entities were unable to purchase some types of insurance and/or
obtain affordable coverage in the commercial market. By the mid-1980s, commercial liability
insurance was virtually unavailable for public entities. As a result, state legislation was enacted to
authorize public entities to self-insure and pool their assets to jointly control their risks and pay their
claims. In 1980 ICRMA developed its liability risk retention pool. In 2003 ICRMA developed a
workers’ compensation risk retention pool. During the past 35 years, ICRMA has added multiple
programs and services to meet member needs. Attached is a summary list of resources available to
ICRMA members.
According to the Association of Governmental Risk Pools, public entity risk pooling is the single
most successful example of inter-local cooperation in North America and beyond, saving billions of
taxpayer dollars and thousands of lives. Beginning in earnest some 30 years ago, it is a success story
that grew organically from the inability and unwillingness of much of the traditional insurance
industry to understand and address the changing risk dynamics of governmental entities. Today,
AGRiP estimates that 80% of the cities, towns, schools, counties and special districts in the United
States address some or all of their risk management and risk financing needs through these memberowned, member-governed, non-profit pools. For over 30 years, ICRMA has been providing
programs and services to its municipal members. ICRMA is a member-driven organization, and its
members benefit from the pool’s coverage and initiatives.
Attachments:

Letters from Alhambra, Downey, and Hermosa Beach
Pool Comparison Matrix
ICRMA Resources

Prepared by:

Beth Lyons, Executive Director
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HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COU

FROM
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BY ANIL GANDY FINANCE DIRECTOR

i

i

That the City Council adopt
i

i

i

i

i 0

A

The City of Downey like most municipalities in California is a member of a joint powers
authority that forms a risk pool through which cities provide a combination of self insurance
pooled coverage and other risk management products and programs Downey is currently a
member of the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority ICRMA

One of the City Council s ongoing priorities is to ensure cost effective service delivery and
reduction of financial risk To that end staff is studying various insurance options available to
the City This due diligence analysis is not expected to be complete until mid December 2017
at which point the City will have the appropriate information to make an informed decision
regarding the best insurance options for the City However the provisions of the ICRMA
agreement and by laws require the City to provide notice of withdrawal to ICRMA by December
1 2017 which is prior to the completion of the City s analysis

Adoption of the attached resolution will preserve the City s right to withdraw from ICRMA if the
study shows the City would be better off with another option another risk pool or purchasing
insurance on the insurance market or a combination of the two

Should the analysis currently
underway demonstrate that ICRMA continues to be the best option for the City Council will be
asked to rescind this resolution at its first meeting in January 2018

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to adopting the resolution and sending notice to withdrawal from
ICRMA

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A

Y

Resolution
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WHEREAS the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority ICRMA provides
variety of pooled insurance products to its member cities and

WHEREAS the City of Downey is currently an ICRMA Governing Board Member and
participates in various ICRMA insurance programs and

WHEREAS the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for Insurance and Risk

Management Purposes and the By laws of the ICRMA establish the guidelines for participation
in the insurance and other related programs offered by ICRMA and further provide the process
for withdrawal from the ICRMA and

WHEREAS the City of Downey is currently performing a due diligence analysis of its
current method for providing insurance and related programs and
WHEREAS the City of Downey wishes to preserve its right to withdraw from ICRMA
should the current analysis show that withdrawal would be advantageous to the City and

WHEREAS the City of Downey may elect to adopt a resolution rescinding this notice to
withdrawal by January 15 2018 should the current analysis show that withdrawal would not be
advantageous to the City and

WHEREAS the ICRMA program by laws require a Member to provide specific
notification of intent to withdraw via the adoption of a governing body resolution
NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DOWNEY DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS

SECTION 1 The City will withdraw from the Independent Cities Risk Management

Authority at the end of its current membership period effective at 11 59 p m on June 30 2018
SECTION 2 The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14T day of November 2017
FERNANDO VASQUEZ Mayor

MARIA ALICIA DUARTE CMC

Interim City Clerk
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I HEREBYCERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution
was adopted by the City Council of
h

the City of Downey at a Regular Meeting held on the 14 day of November 2017 by the
following vote to wit
AYES

Council Members

NOES

Council Member

ABSENT

Council Member
Council Member

ABSTAIN

MARIA ALICIA DUARTE CMC

Interim City Clerk
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Resource

Sample IT policies

Data Breach Team

Access to Data
Breach Coach

Cyber-Password
Defense

Cyber-Online
Security
Education

Equipment
Breakdown

Description

More information available:

Sample and template policies available
• Acceptable Use
• Information & Network
Security
• Mobile Computing
• Personal Device Use
Panel of industry-leading third party
vendors specializing in digital
forensics, medical ID fraud
monitoring, customer notification,
public relations, fraud consultation,
credit monitoring and payment card
industry investigations.
An independent law firm specializing
in data breach events, assist the city if
it has had a network security breach
incident, and/or if Personal
Identifiable Information (PII) lost or
stolen. Data Breach Coach Hotline
number 800-817-2665
• Improve cyber security
• Synchronizes across multiple
devices
• Includes auto login password
benchmarking, and
notifications
• Available to ICRMA member
employees
• Online training to deploy and
educate employees
• Two courses: Security
Awareness Basics and Security
Awareness for Information
Technology
• Enables managers view
employee results and
completion statics
Boiler maintenance is essential to
managing a company’s exposure to
equipment damage and possible
disruption to business activities.

http://www.acecyberrisk.com/tools
(Must be logged in to view)
Details on creating an account at:
https://www.icrma.org/programs/insured
/cyber-liability/
https://www.icrma.org/programs/insured
/cyber-liability/

https://www.icrma.org/programs/insured
/cyber-liability/

https://go.dashlane.com/chubboffer

http://www.learncyber.com/chubboffer/

http://www.cna.com/SORCEcatalog

This information is provided as a brief resource. Please visit
https://www.icrma.org/wp-content/uploads/Admin_ICRMA_Services_2017_2018-1.pdf
or call our office at (949) 349-9877.
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Resource

Investment Policy
review
Actuarial Services

Claims Audits

Nurse Case
Management

Pre-Employment
Screenings &
Med-Evals
Crisis Response
coverage

Special Events
Program

Learning
Management
Systems
ICRMA
Universities

Description

More information available:

Public Financial Management (PFM)
free service to all ICRMA Members.
PFM reviews and comments on
member city investment policies
ICRMA annually engages an actuary to
estimate each member’s exposure to
losses. Reports are prepared for both
the liability and workers’
compensation programs.
Audits review member TPA claims
handling. Liability audits are
performed in the odd years and
workers’ compensation audits in the
even years.
Hotline that allows injured employee
or supervisor to report a claim, receive
assessment, first aid advice, and
recommended course of action from a
registered nurse.
Pre-employment Physicals provides
preplacement employee medical
evaluations, fitness for duty
evaluations and ancillary services.
Public Crisis Response Coverage
provides PR services, and payment for
certain expenses, incurred during a
qualifying event that generates
adverse multi-state or national news.
Program designed to provide liability
protection for event sponsors when
they are unable to secure coverage or
coverage is too low to meet the city’s
requirements.
Assign and track completion of
training courses to prevent potential
hazards, meet legal requirements, and
address loss drivers
Nine sessions per year focused on
specific loss drivers that affect
members.

https://www.icrma.org/services/investme
nt-policy-review/
https://www.icrma.org/services/actuarial

https://www.icrma.org/services/claimsaudits/

Companynurse.com

https://www.icrma.org/services/preemployment-physicals/
https://www.icrma.org/programs/crisisresponse-protocol/

https://www.icrma.org/programs/insured
/special-events/

https://www.safetynational.com/mapclient-services/safety-training-source/
https://www.icrma.org/meetings/icrmauniversities/

This information is provided as a brief resource. Please visit
https://www.icrma.org/wp-content/uploads/Admin_ICRMA_Services_2017_2018-1.pdf
or call our office at (949) 349-9877.
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Resource
Enquiron

Description

Employment practices resource offers
free unlimited confidential advice from
employment law attorneys, online
sexual harassment prevention training
courses, employee handbook builder,
forms, posters, and more.
Risk Management Covers training elements designed to
Certification
help the City’s employees understand
program
the nuts & bolts of Risk Management,
attending a conference, participating
in an online training, or attaining a
professional designation
Workers’
Safety National provides over 150
Compensation
online Workers’ Compensation
Training
trainings and resources. These include
Safety Essentials Online, Workers’
Comp Kit, Safety Training Source,
Safety: Emergency Responder Vehicle
Education (SERVE), a Distracted Driving
Course, and Office Ergonomic
Solutions.
Scholarship
Covers costs associated with attending
Program
risk management seminars and
conferences to increase knowledge of
pooling operations, risk management,
and related issues.
Rent-a-Risk
Provides expertise in the area of risk
Manager
management (contractual risk
transfer, claims, loss prevention &
control, etc.)
Online Resource
• Comprehensive sample programs
Library
with implementation guides
• Sample Forms Best Practices
Training Tools
• Sample Training Matrices
• Safe Driving Simulators
• Safety Communications
• Safe Practices Guidelines
• Recommended Resources

More information available:
https://www.icrma.org/services/employm
ent-practices-resource-center/

https://www.icrma.org/members/training/
risk-management-certification/

https://www.icrma.org/members/training/
worker-safety/
https://www.safetynational.com/mapclient-services/safety-trainingsource/safety-training-source-list/

https://www.icrma.org/services/scholarsh
ip-program/

https://www.icrma.org/services/rent-arisk-manager/
www.icrma.org
(You must be logged in as a member to
access)
https://www.safetynational.com/mapclient-services/public-entity/

This information is provided as a brief resource. Please visit
https://www.icrma.org/wp-content/uploads/Admin_ICRMA_Services_2017_2018-1.pdf
or call our office at (949) 349-9877.
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Resource

Risk Control
Service Days

Risk Audits and
Consultation
Structured
Settlement
resources

Vendor & Expert
panel resources

Property
Appraisals
Contract Review

Description

More information available:

• Loss analysis and focused risk
control services, Safety Program
Evaluation, and other services
(trainings, inspections and audits)
Onsite interview-style audit
consultation on risk issues across all
coverage lines, loss driven services,
employment Practices Helpline.
Structured settlements bridge the
settlement gap and potentially
reducing overall costs.

https://www.icrma.org/services/riskcontrol/

The Vendor and Expert programs
provide a selection of experts and
venders for the attorney firms. These
programs allow for vetting service
providers and cost reductions of up to
15% of the normal market rate.
Appraisals are conducted by a third
party provider every five (5) years to
maintain independent, accurate
property valuations.
Review contracts (before execution) to
ensure proper coverage is in place and
help limit the city’s exposure

Contact ICRMA’s Liability Program
Manager, for details:
John Beringer
jberinger@carlwarren.com
(657) 622-4235

https://www.icrma.org/services/riskcontrol/
Contact ICRMA’s Liability Program
Manager, for details:
John Beringer
jberinger@carlwarren.com
(657) 622-4235

Contact Beth Lyons for details:
Beth_Lyons@riskpooladministrators.com
(949) 349-9879
Contact ICRMA’s Loss Control Director,
Bob May:
Biem47@outlook.com
(760) 221-8205

This information is provided as a brief resource. Please visit
https://www.icrma.org/wp-content/uploads/Admin_ICRMA_Services_2017_2018-1.pdf
or call our office at (949) 349-9877.
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Liability Program
COVERAGE:

ICRMA

Pool Self-Insured Retention

$3,000,000

Probability Level Funding/Discount Factor

70% / 2%

Member Retained Limit
Automobile Liability (non-owned & hired)
Liability Program includes coverage for:
 Law Enforcement Liability
 Sexual Abuse

Drone Aircraft Liability (strict guidelines)
 Public Officials’ E&O Liability
 Employment Practices Liability
 Liquor Liability
 Employment Benefits Liability
Public Crisis Response coverage

Definition of Named Insured

Claim dispute resolution process

Alternate Alternate
A
B

Member selected
from $100K to $8M
$30,000,000
Per member, per occurrence
$30,000,000
Per member, per occurrence
Various aggregates may apply
and clash coverage as
outlined. Refer to the
Memorandum of Coverage
(MOC) for complete terms.
$300,000
First dollar coverage
Employees, Past & Present
Officials, Volunteers,
Councils, Commissions,
Agencies, Districts,
Authorities & similar Boards
Claims Cmte ► Board ►
Court system (see MOC)

Ability to select TPA

YES

Ability to select defense counsel (from panel of
over 100 attorneys)

YES

City Attorney firm may serve on defense panel

YES

Structured Settlement /Expert Witness resources

YES

Litigation Management Policies & Procedures

YES

Government Code Section 984 applicable?

YES

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Workers’ Compensation Program
Coverage

ICRMA Limits
Statutory
$2,000,000
$2,000,000
60% / 2%

Limit of Liability - any one loss
Employer’s Liability Coverage - any one loss
ICRMA Self-Insured Retention
Probability Level Funding/Discount Factor
Member Retained Limit
Labor Code 4850 Benefits Included
Incidental Longshoremen’s & Harbor Workers’
Compensation Act Coverage
Domestic or International Crisis Management
Expenses
Nurse Triage - injured employee or supervisor
reports claim, receive first aid advice,
recommended course of action, assessment of the
injury, and answers to questions
Ability to select TPA
Utilization Review and Bill Review
ScripNet Prescription Cards
Ability to select defense attorney
Covered Parties
Coverage provided outside of California

Department of Industrial Relations (DIR)
Assessment

Alternate Alternate
A
B

Member selected: $350K,
$500K, $750K, or $1M
YES – up to $2M SIR
Included
Up to $50,000 Annual Agg.
YES
Vendor: Company Nurse
YES
Varies by Member TPA
Varies by Member TPA
YES
Employees and officers
Volunteers if resolution
adopted
YES
Members reimbursed up to the
amount payable under CA WC
law, regardless of jurisdiction
selected by the employee
Included
ICRMA coordinates reporting
& payment for the members

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Property / Auto Physical Damage Program

Coverage
Property Appraisals
Property – per manuscript policy form
All Risks of Direct Physical Loss or Damage to
Real Property, Personal Property, Equipment
Breakdown, Business Interruption, Auto Physical
Damage including coverage extensions, subject to
policy terms & exclusions.

ICRMA

Alternate Alternate
A
B

YES
ICRMA coordinates;
performed every 5 years
$250,000,000
Per Occurrence Full
Replacement Cost –Real
& Personal Property

Coinsurance, Margin Clause or Cap on Recovery

No

Earthquake Sprinkler Leakage

Included
None

Flood
Sub limits include, but are not limited to:
Course of Construction
Increased Cost of Construction & Demolition
Decontamination Costs
Newly Acquired Property (365 days to report)
Revenue Interruption
Errors & Omissions
Business Interruption
Unnamed Locations
Fine Arts
Traffic Signals
Police & Fire Dogs
Police Horses
Misc. Unscheduled Equip./Contractors Equip.

Policy Limit
Policy Limit
$10,000,000
$25,000,000
$10,000,000
$25,000,000
Policy Limit
$5,000,000
$100,000/ $2,000,000
maximum
$2,500,000
$20,000 per dog
$50,000 per horse
$5,000,000/
$250,000 Per Occ.

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Property / Auto Physical Damage Program, continued
Coverage

ICRMA

Data, Programs, or Software
Computer Systems Non-Physical
Contractor’s Equipment incl. Rented Mobile
Equipment
Leased Office Equipment
All Other Losses
Deductibles:
Off Premises Service Interruption – PD
Off Premises Service Interruption – BI
Vehicles
All Risk coverage for scheduled Vehicles Including
Specialized Equipment included in values and
Contractor’s Equipment, against Collision, Upset or
Overturn of a vehicle, or comprehensive unless
caused by a peril excluded. Coverage applies to

$1,000,000
$250,000

Owned, Rented & Leased Vehicles. No requirement to
insure all Vehicles
Vehicle Deductible:
Contractor’s Equipment:

Newly Acquired Vehicles
Towing & Labor Costs
Rental Reimbursement
Pollutant Cleanup and Removal
Borrowed or Loaned Vehicles
Leased and Rented Contractor’s Equipment
Blanket Contractor’s Equipment
Equipment Leased from others

Alternate A

Policy Limit
$50,000
$10,000
$10,000
24 hour waiting period
Per schedule on file
$250,000,000
Per Occurrence
Replacement Cost (Vehicles
purchased after 1990)
Fair Market Value (Vehicles
purchased prior to 1990)
$5,000
$10,000
Up to $1,000,000 (No reporting
required)
$25,000
$500 per day/ $10,000 max.
$10,000
Included per written contract up
to $1,000,000
$50,000 per item & per
occurrence
$1,000,000 max. per item
$100,000 per item
$100,000 per occurrence

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Property / Auto Physical Damage Program, continued

Coverage

ICRMA

Towing & Labor Costs
Rental Reimbursement
Pollutant Cleanup and Removal
Borrowed or Loaned Vehicles
Leased and Rented Contractor’s Equipment
Blanket Contractor’s Equipment
Equipment Leased from others

$25,000
$500 per day/ $10,000
max.
$10,000
Included per written
contract up to $1,000,000
$50,000 per item &
per occurrence
$1,000,000 max. per item
$100,000 per item
$100,000 per occurrence

Alternate Alternate
A
B

Earth Movement & Flood

Coverage

ICRMA

Real and Personal property of every kind and
description, for All Risk of Direct Physical perils,
loss or damage, subject to policy terms &
exclusions.
Coinsurance, Margin Clause or Cap on Recovery

$250,000,000
Per Occurrence
Full Replacement Cost –
Real & Personal Property
No

Flood, including Wave Wash, in Special High
Hazard Flood Zones
Earth movement including:
Earthquake
Landslide
Earth Sinking
Rising
Shifting
Sinkhole Collapse
Mine Subsidence

Sublimit include, but are not limited to:
Law & Ordinance
Course of Construction
Newly Acquired Property (365 days to report)

Alternate Alternate
A
B

$120,000,000 per
Occ/$100,000 Aggr.
$120,000,000* (Deductible
5% of TIV each location
$100,000 min per occ.
*PML based on 500 Year
Return Period

Policy Limit
Policy Limit
$25,000,000

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Earth Movement & Flood, continued

Coverage
Errors & Omissions
Revenue Interruption
Unnamed Locations
Rented Mobile Equip./Contractors Equip.
Fine Arts
Traffic Signals
Mold / Fungus
Police & Fire Dogs
Police Horses
Deductible:

Boiler & Machinery – Equipment Breakdown
Total Limit Per Breakdown –
Repair or Replacement Value for Property
Damage
Actual Loss Sustained for BI & Extra Expense
Newly Acquired Property (365 days to report)
Business Income
Expediting Expense
Ammonia Contamination
Data and Media
Consequential Loss
Green Upgrades
Errors and Omissions
Expediting Expenses

ICRMA
$25,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$5,000,000
$2,000,000 / $100,000
per item
$2,500,000
$2,500,000
$20,000 per dog
$50,000 per horse
$2,500 Fine Arts,
$5,000 Trees & Shrubs,
Rented Equipment
All other Losses:
$10,000 per occurrence

Alternate Alternate
A
B

$250,000,000 Combined single limit
Included
Included
$5,000,000
$2,500,000
$1,000,000
$2,500,000
25% of the PD
Loss/$100,000 Max.
Policy Limit
$5,000,000

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Earth Movement & Flood, continued

Coverage

ICRMA

Alternate Alternate
A
B

Boiler & Machinery – Equipment Breakdown continued…
Fungus, Wet Rot and Dry Rot
Newly Acquired Premises
Ordinance or Law
Spoilage Damage
Water Damage
Deductible – Property Damage
Spoilage
Business Interruption/Extra Expense
Utility/Business Interruption - Extra Expense
Utility Interruption - Waiting Period

Crime
Coverage
Government Crime Policy form
Employee Theft
Inside the Premise – Theft of Money &
Securities

$250,000
Included/365 Days
$10,000,000
$2,500,000
$5,000,000
$10,000
$10% or $10,000
1 Times Daily Value
1 Times Daily Value
24 Hours

ICRMA Limits &
Deductible
$5,000,000 / $25,000
$5,000,000 / $25,000

Forgery Or Alteration

$5,000,000 / $25,000

Outside the Premise

$5,000,000/ $25,000

Computer Fraud
Funds Transfer Fraud
Funds Transfer – False Pretense
(Social Engineering)
Credit, Debit or Charge Card Forgery

$5,000,000/ $25,000
$5,000,000/ $25,000

Money Orders and Counterfeit Money

$5,000,000/ $25,000

Destruction of Electronic Data and Computer
Programs
Faithful Performance
Definition of Named Insured- Employees,
Officers, Volunteer, Bonded Positon

Alternate Alternate
A
B

$100,000/ $10,000
$5,000,000/ $25,000

$5,000,000/$5,000
$5,000,000/$10,000
$1,000,000/$10,000

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Crime Continue
Coverage
Privacy Liability
Data Breach Fund (with use of approved
vendors)
Internet Media Liability
Network Extortion
Network Security Liability
Business Interruption
Payment Card Loss-Compliant
Services include:

Deductible

ICRMA Limits

Alternate Alternate
A
B

$3,000,000 Per Occ./
$10,000,000 Pool Agg.
$3,000,000 Per Occ./
$1,000,000 Pool Agg.
$3,000,000 Per Occ./
$10,000,000 Pool Agg.
$3,000,000 Per Occ./
$10,000,000 Pool Agg.
$3,000,000 Per Occ./
$10,000,000 Pool Agg.
$3,000,000 Per Occ./
$10,000,000 Pool Agg.
$2,000,000 Per Occ./
$5,000,000 Pool Agg.
 24/7 access to data breach
coach (no deductible)
 Data breach team panel:
legal, computer forensic,
notifications, call center,
public relations, crisis
communications, fraud
consultation, credit
monitoring, fraud alert,
identity restoration advice.
 Assistance with providing
sample IT policies
$15,000
8 hour waiting period before
business interruption coverage
begins

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Governance
Item

Self-insured program rating basis
CAJPA Accredited

Efficiency and Convenience

Additional Programs Offered
Minimum Commitment Period
Withdrawal Notice Requirement
Withdrawal penalties
Governance:
Board
 6 meetings/year
 Every member is
active/engaged


ICRMA

Estimated
Value/Cost

Alternate A Alternate B

Payroll & loss
experience
YES
with Excellence
YES
ICRMA handles
annual insurance
renewals, claims
audits, actuarial
services, and vendor
coordination
YES;
stand-alone
placements available
3 years
7 months (12/1)
No

YES

6 meetings/year

Hoc Committee
Member Ownership
Board retains decision-making
rather than delegating to Executive
or Administrative Committee
City directs litigation within its
retained limit

YES
YES

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.

Page 9 of 13
12/7/2017

Page 262 of 266

www.icrma.org
18201 Von Karman, Suite 200, Irvine, CA 92612
Additional Services

Item

Services contracted

Litigation Management /
Claims oversight

Claims Audit

Annual Actuarial Analysis

ICRMA
 Pool administrator
 Liability and WC
program managers
 Financial services
 Financial auditor
 Investment advisor
 Actuary
 Claims auditor
 Coverage
counsel/general
counsel
 Broker
 Nurse triage
provider
 Pre-employment
physical
evaluations
provider
Included
Biannual claim
reviews between
ICRMA, City, TPA
adjuster, and
defense attorneys
Biennial claim audits
of member Liability
and WC TPAs
Included
ICRMA funds’
performance of
individual studies for
each member

Estimated
Alternate A Alternate B
Value/ Cost

Included
$5,000
annually
$8,000 $10,000
Annually

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Additional Services continued…
Item
Website
Webinars
ICRMA University

Learning Management System

Rent a Risk Manager
Evidence of coverage letters
Template policies available
Loss control
Contract review
Loss control services
Pre-employment Medical Screening
management

ICRMA
Interactive website
with training
resources and risk
management content
Hundreds of online
modules available
In-person, expert-led
trainings on risk
management topics
per year

Estimated
Alternate A Alternate B
Value/ Cost

Supervisors assign
training and track
attendance
Provides projectbased expertise
Submitted online;
letters generated by
administrator
Yes
Programs & services
only; does not
include
salaries/benefits
Included
Included
Robust, customized
services
Included
Services provided by
Occu-Med

$2,000 $6,000
Annually

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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Additional Services continued…
Item
Online Renewal and Exposure
Tracking
Ergonomic Evaluations

Scholarship Fund

Risk Management Fund

ICRMA
Members complete
renewal apps & update
property schedules online
Online or office
assessments through
Remedy Interactive
Members may use
toward approved
conferences such as
PARMA, PRIMA,
AGRiP, CAJPA
Included
Members may use
toward any risk
management purpose

Nurse Triage - injured
employee or supervisor reports
claim, receive first aid advice,
recommended course of action,
assessment of the injury, and
answers to questions

YES
Vendor: Company Nurse

Enquiron

Employment related legal
advice

Estimated
Alternate A Alternate B
Value/ Cost
Included
Included
Estimated at
$2,500 per
person (up to
3 attendees
per member)
Up to $5,000
per year
contribution;
capped at
$25,000
$5,000+
approximate
annual value
Included

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.

Page 12 of 13
12/7/2017

Page 265 of 266

www.icrma.org
18201 Von Karman, Suite 200, Irvine, CA 92612

Cost of Coverage – Member Name
Line of Coverage

ICRMA

Alternate A

Alternate B

Liability Program
Limit - $30,000,000
Member Retained Limit
($100,000-$8,000,000)
Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability*
WC Limit - Statutory
-$2,000,00
Member Retained Limit
($350,000-$1,000,000)
Property Program + Auto Physical Damage
TIV $2.6 Billion
Limit $250,000,000
Deductible -Property $10,000
Deductible - APD-$5,000
Earth movement & Flood
TIV EM+FL $665 Million
Limit EM+FL $120 Million
Deductible 5% of TIV or $100,000 Minimum
Crime
Deductible - $25,000
Cyber
Deductible - $15,000
TOTAL:
Are all services provided by ICRMA included
within the price listed?
If not, please attach another page which lists all
services not included.

*ICRMA members pay a DIR Assessment as part of the
workers’ compensation program. This assessment is levied by
the State based upon indemnity payments and is typically
excluded from quotes provided by other pools and insurance
carriers.
OTHER COVERAGE:
Difference in Condition (DIC): 5% of TIV at time of loss for
each unit, subject to $100,000 Minimum

Yes/No

This information is provided as a resource and does not include all of the terms, coverages, exclusions, and conditions.
Read the entire MOC or policy for details.
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